STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY

2016 CHARTER SCHOOL EXPANSION AMENDMENT REQUEST

Schools Requesting to Operate Additional Campuses

Released January 15, 2016
Amendment Requests Due March 1, 2016



Section I: Introduction from Board Chair Adam Johnson
Dear Charter School Governing Body,

On behalf of the State Public Charter School Authority and our nearly 25,000 incredible students,
we thank you for your interest in amending your written charter or charter contract to expand a
high-performing school in Nevada to serve additional students on new campuses under an
amended and restated charter contract. Whether you are applying to expand from a single Nevada
charter school campus or to add new campuses to an emerging network of schools here in the
Silver State, we understand the tremendous amount of work and commitment required to expand a
quality school and achieve operational excellence across multiple sites while maintaining fidelity to
your mission, vision, and academic model.

The development and release of this Amendment Request format reflects the sweeping education
reforms adopted during the 2015 Legislative Session and our recognition of the opportunities and
challenges that many of our existing multi-site operators have faced as they have grown their
schools to serve multiple communities. Multi-site charter schools are large, complex public entities
which may serve thousands of students and employ hundreds of staff. The 2015 Legislature
recognized this reality and requires that an authorizer review the track record of the charter school
with relation to academic, financial, and organizational performance and determine whether the
school has the capacity to operate additional campuses with a high degree of quality and
consistency across all domains.

We have designed this process to allow governing bodies and leadership teams to assist in this
process through an evaluation of their own capacity and determine where they will need to invest
additional resources to ensure success. As with all submissions to the State Public Charter School
Authority (SPCSA), this amendment request is intended to be a document which is the result of
deep, thoughtful engagement by the governing body and staff employed by the school. While the
SPCSA acknowledges and appreciates the contribution of vendors and contractors, including
education management organizations, to the growth and vitality of the state’s charter school
movement, it is important to emphasize that the sole legal accountability for the promises and
commitments made by the school to students, parents, families, the surrounding community, and to
the people of Nevada and their authorized representative, the State Public Charter School
Authority, lies with the governing body of the school and it’s direct, authorized employees.

The SPCSA is committed to quality in every aspect of our operation, and we firmly believe that
quality authorizing leads to quality schools. We are committed to granting expansion amendments
only to those schools who clearly demonstrate the academic track record and financial and
operational capacity and business planning necessary to govern and operate high-performing
networks of schools. We particularly welcome amendment requests from schools who seek to
serve at risk students in and around our urban cores of Clark and Washoe counties, develop



intentionally diverse populations in our growing suburbs, and the underserved populations of our
rural and Native American communities.

Our statutory responsibility compels us to provide our students and families with the very best
options the charter community can provide. We are confident that we have created a demanding,
thorough, and transparent amendment request and review process.

As you complete your amendment request, please feel free to contact the SPCSA staff with any
questions. Again, thank you for your interest in recommitting to this vital work and investing more
of your time and talents in our effort to build and deliver a high quality public school option to
every student in Nevada.

Sincerely,

Adam Johnson
Board Chair



Section II: Instructions

OPERATOR APPLICANT INSTRUCTIONS

Specifications

It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that the content is complete, detailed, and
easily understood and followed by reviewers; external experts; and parents, families, and the
general public.

This request may be completed with responses following each question (e.g., the questions
following the headings Parent and Community Involvement, Driving for Results, Human
Resources, etc.). Please leave the text of the question in the document to facilitate review and
public transparency.

All narrative elements of the application must be typed with 1-inch page margins and 11-point
Cambria font, single-spaced.

All headings must be in 11, 12, or 14 point Cambria font.
Tables may be in either 11 or 10 point Cambria font.

Each major section (Executive Summary, Meeting the Need, Academic Plan, etc.) must begin on
a separate page, as indicated in the RFP document.

All pages must be consecutively numbered in the footer, including all attachments.

The table of contents must identify the page number of each major section of the narrative and
each required attachment.

Schools are encouraged to utilize Microsoft Word’s cross-referencing features to allow for
automatic updates to page numbers within the document for any element discussed in more
than one section. Simply referring reviewers to content in another section or expecting
reviewers to seek out and infer an answer from information which may or may not be found in
an attachment is unacceptable and will be deemed unresponsive. Petitioners are expected to
exercise appropriate judgement in balancing responsiveness with excessively duplicative
content. Itis highly advisable to answer the question posed and refer the reviewer to additional
contextual information that will inform review with transitional and referential phrases such as
“As discussed in greater detail in the Section __ beginning on page _, the school will...” and
“Reviewers seeking more information on __ may wish to refer to the section labeled __
beginning on page __. More specifically, the school will...”

References and citations should be placed in the footer.

The name of each major section and attachment, e.g. “Attachment 1,” etc. must be placed in the
footer to facilitate easy review and navigation of the materials. Bookmarking of individual
sections and attachments in Acrobat is strongly encouraged to enhance readability and facilitate
a thorough review.



Schools are encouraged to use Microsoft Word’s styles features
(http://shaunakelly.com/word/styles/stylesms.html) to manage formatting, provide for
bookmarking and cross-referencing, and facilitate the generation of the table of contents and
other features through the heading styles functionality.

If a particular question does not apply to your team or application, simply respond with an
explanatory sentence identifying the reason this question is not applicable to your school AND
including the term “not applicable” within the sentence.

All questions, including those identified as “Not Applicable” and tables not utilized must be left
in the document. Tables which are accompanied with directions permitting the school to
modify the number of rows and to customize the designated content may be changed as
indicated.

Applicants MUST submit amendment requests electronically in Epicenter, the statewide
document management center for school submissions to the State Public Charter School
Authority. All documents, other than budget documents and data submissions better suited to
Excel, must be submitted as PDF documents. All PDF documents, other than those individual
pages containing signatures or facilities documentation, must be submitted as converted (not
scanned) documents.

The following is a list of attachments to accompany the application:

Attachments Necessary to Assess Facility Compliance

1. Aletter of transmittal signed by the Board chair formally requesting the amendment and
identifying each of the elements to be submitted in support of the request.

2. Agenda for Board Meeting Where Board Voted to Request an Amendment to Add Additional
Grades, Expand Enrollment, or Occupy a New or Additional Facility

3. Draft or Approved Minutes for Board Meeting Where Board Voted to Request an
Amendment to Add Additional Grades, Expand Enrollment, or Occupy a New or Additional
Facility

4. Ifafacility has been identified, the physical address of the facility and supporting
documentation verifying the location, including the Assessor’s Parcel Number and a copy of
the Assessor’s Parcel Map for the proposed facility OR, if a facility has not been identified, a
discussion of the desired community of location and the rationale for selecting that
community AND an assurance that the school will submit such documentation for review
and approval prior to acquisition of any facility in compliance with NAC 386.3265

5. [Ifafacility has been identified, a copy of the proposed purchase and sale agreement or a
copy of the proposed lease or rental agreement OR a narrative explaining the rationale for
the budgeted cost of acquisition of an owned or leased facility AND an assurance that the
school will submit such documentation for review and approval prior to acquisition of any
facility in compliance with NAC 386.3265

6. Ifafacility has been identified, a copy of the floor plan of the facility, including a notation of
the size of the facility which is set forth in square feet OR, if a facility has not been identified,
a discussion of the general specifications to be utilized during the facility search, including
approximate square footage AND an assurance that the school will submit such
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10.

documentation for review and approval prior to acquisition of any facility in compliance
with NAC 386.3265

If a facility has been identified, the name, address, and full contact information of the
current owner of the facility and any proposed landlord and a disclosure of any relationship
between the current owner or landlord and the school, including but not limited to any
relative of a board member or employee within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity
and any connection with an educational management organization, foundation, or other
entity which does business with or is otherwise affiliated with the school OR a description
of the process and resources the school will use to identify a facility AND an assurance that
the school will submit such information for review and approval prior to acquisition of any
facility in compliance with NAC 386.3265

Full Certificate of Occupancy OR a detailed construction project plan and timeline, including
a Gannt chart, identifying all facility development activities necessary to obtain a full
certificate of occupancy prior to the first day of school AND documentation of the inspection
and approval processes and timelines for the state, municipal, or county agencies which will
issue the Certificate of Occupancy, including a discussion of whether such agencies issue
temporary or conditional approvals and a copy of the standard form documentation that the
sponsor can consult in such circumstances to confirm compliance with NAC 386.3265
Documentation demonstrating that the proposed facility meets all applicable building
codes, codes for the prevention of fire, and codes pertaining to safety, health and sanitation
OR a detailed construction project plan and timeline, including a Gannt chart, identifying all
facility development activities necessary to obtain all such code approvals prior to the first
day of school AND documentation of the inspection and approval processes and timelines
for the state, municipal, or county agencies which will conduct all code inspections,
including a discussion of whether such agencies issue temporary or conditional approvals
and a copy of the standard form documentation that the sponsor can consult in such
circumstances to confirm compliance with NAC 386.3265.

Documentation demonstrating the governing Body has communicated with the Division of
Industrial Relations of the Department of Business and Industry regarding compliance with
the federal Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) in compliance with NAC 386.3265

Attachments Necessary to Assess School Capacity

11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

Letters of Community Support/Partnership (preferably PDF conversion but may be scanned
to PDF)

School and network leadership team job descriptions

Resumes and student achievement data for proposed school leader (if available)
Competencies used for school leader selection

Regional Director resume or job description

CMO/Local Network organizational charts

New Board Member Information Sheets

Incubation Year Planning Table



19. EMO agreement documentation (if school will contract with a non-profit or for-profit EMO for
additional services or this expansion will result in additional payments to an existing EMO) OR
an assurance that the school is not contracting with an EMO

20. Operational execution plan

21. Budget narrative

22. Financial Plan

23. Local Network Budget

24. For schools which replicate an EMO or CMO model from another state which do not yet
have Nevada performance data: school performance data sheet and data from network’s
internal assessments demonstrating that the Nevada school is performing at a level similar
to schools in other geographies. Please also provide historical financial documents for the
entity including audited financial records for the entity and, if any of the schools operated
by the management organization are technically separate entities, audited financials for
each such school as well as any other campus by campus financial evaluations conducted by
charter school authorizers. At least three years of school financial audits are required for
any school operating for three years or longer. This may be provided in the format of your
choosing.

25. School Data Worksheet

e When submitting resumes and biographies of proposed new board members and staff, label
each document with the individual’s affiliation with the proposed school (board member,
principal, teacher, etc.) and combine the files into a single converted PDF document.

e Review all elements of your request for completeness before submitting. Incomplete requests
will not be accepted, and schools are not able to amend, revise, or supplement their request
after it has been submitted unless the SPCSA, at its sole discretion, requests additional
information or the SPCSA board votes to reject the request and the applicant chooses to
resubmit a revised request at a later date.

e Schools are strongly encouraged to maintain final Microsoft Word versions of all written
materials. In the event that a school elects to resubmit a request with additional content and
documentation, the school will be expected to use the Track Changes function to identify any
additions or deletions to the application. Specific format requirements for such resubmissions
will be furnished to applicants upon request.

Applicants are reminded that all requests for facilities or enrollment expansion amendments are
public records and are posted on the SPCSA web site. Once a request is approved, it is expected that
the complete charter application and the approved amendments will be posted on the school’s web
site or will otherwise be made available via electronic means upon request from any member of the
public. To ensure the broadest range of accessibility for public documents, the SPCSA strongly
encourages applicants to consult the Accessibility Guidance offered by our peer authorizer, the
Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education:

http://www.doe.mass.edu/nmg/MakingAccessibleDocuments.pdf and


http://www.doe.mass.edu/nmg/MakingAccessibleDocuments.pdf

http://www.doe.mass.edu/nmg/accessibility.html. The usage of the Microsoft styles feature
discussed earlier will also help to facilitate accessibility.

Eligibility Requirements

To be eligible to submit an expansion amendment in the fall 2015 expansion amendment cycle,
a school must be in good standing in all three domains of the Authority’s academic, financial,
and organizational performance frameworks and it must not be considered a low-performing
school or otherwise ineligible according to any definition set forth in law or regulation.
Ineligible schools include, but are not limited to those schools which operate an elementary,
middle, or high school rated below the three star level; schools which operate an elementary,
middle, or high school program that is a priority or focus school; schools which operate high
schools with graduation rates below 60 percent; and schools rated at the approaches,
unsatisfactory, or critical level on the Authority Performance Framework either in aggregate or
at the elementary, middle, or high school level.

A school which does not have at least one independent financial audit and one year of academic
performance data in the Nevada system of accountability is ineligible to apply for an expansion
amendment unless the school was approved by the Authority as an EMO replication of a high
performing charter school in another state or the operator applied as a CMO applicant and has
replicated a high performing charter school model from another state. In such cases, the school
will be required to submit updated academic, financial, and organizational performance data in
all three domains from the replicated EMO school or CMO school network. Such schools are
also encouraged to submit, rigorous, objectively verifiable internal assessment data which
demonstrates that the Nevada-based charter school is making progress similar to that of the
schools in other states with similarly rigorous academic standards and statewide assessment
systems and evaluative criteria. Such non-Nevada schools must be continuing to meet the
academic, financial, and organizational performance targets which made them eligible for
replication in Nevada for the Authority to consider utilizing their results as a proxy for the
performance of a Nevada replication school utilizing the same model. It is also important to
note that the Authority will only favorably consider internal assessment results for Nevada
campuses which meet or exceed those of schools utilizing the same model in such states. Put
simply, such data must, in the Authority’s sole discretion, support the finding that the Nevada
replication school is on track to perform as well or better than the replicated school on a
rigorous, statewide assessment. In the event that the Authority mandates a system-wide
assessment to supplement the statewide test and provide for additional data in the event of a
testing irregularity or a change in state testing provider, schools should expect that data from
that assessment will outweigh data provided from a school’s internal assessment system.

Schools are advised that fiscal or organizational issues which are discovered during the review
process, including issues related to, raised in, or uncovered during a review of the annual
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independent audit which was due to the Authority on December 1, 2015, will result in denial of
the expansion amendment request.

Submission Instructions

1. Schools must submit their complete amendment request into the Charter
Amendment section of Epicenter by 5:00 pm PT on March 1, 2016
2. Inorder to complete and submit your request, you will need to meet the following
minimum technology requirements:
a. Alocal copy of Microsoft Office Word 2007 and Microsoft Office Excel 2007
b. Alocal copy of Adobe Acrobat Standard or Professional or a third party PDF-creation
solution that allows for converting, combining, and consecutively paginating files into
portable document format
c. Alocal copy of Microsoft Office Project and Microsoft Office Visio or other software or a
school-selected suitable web-based equivalent (e.g. Lucidchart for flowcharts) with the
capacity to produce detailed Gannt charts, flowcharts, and explanatory graphics for
inclusion in the Microsoft Word narrative or the requested attachments
d. Microsoft Internet Explorer Version 9 or above OR Google Chrome Version 40 or above
A reliable Internet connection
f.  Alaptop or desktop computer with at least 50 Mb of free space to store downloaded
amendment request documents and local copies of your submission
3. Schools may upload amendment requests up to 5:00 pm PT on March 1, 2015. Once the
request is submitted, schools will be unable to access, edit, or revise the documents

Guidance and Resources for Applicants

Schools are encouraged to familiarize themselves with current Nevada law and regulations relating
to charter schools. As Nevada’s statutes and regulations are continuing to evolve, it is advisable to
monitor and evaluate all changes to ensure that any proposed changes to the charter meet current
expectations. The Authority does not have the capacity or the statutory authority to provide
individual guidance or legal advice. Charter schools are encouraged to consult the Charter School
Association of Nevada and an attorney who is well versed in charter school law for guidance in
interpreting those elements of statute and regulation for which the Authority has not incorporated
its policy expectations in this document.

Nevada Revised Statutes: NRS 386.490 et seq. contains the vast majority of law pertaining to
charter schools: https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-386.htmI#NRS386Sec490.

During the 2015 legislative session, the state adopted a number of reforms related to charter
schools. Key bills which passed include:

e SB509: Balances additional operating flexibility for charter schools with broad changes in
charter school authorizing and accountability:
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/78th2015/Bills/SB/SB509 EN.pdf



https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-386.html#NRS386Sec490
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SB460: Provides for an accountability framework to evaluate the performance of a small subset
of charter schools which have a mission to exclusively serve opportunity youth, students with
disabilities, and other particularly vulnerable populations:
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/78th2015/Bills/SB/SB460 EN.pdf

SB208: Codifies existing minimum expectations regarding the notification of families when a
new charter school is scheduled to open in a community and changes the expectations around
recruiting and enrolling students:
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/78th2015/Bills/SB/SB208 EN.pdf.

SB390: Permits but does not require charter schools to give admissions preference to students
who attend overcrowded schools or underperforming schools within a 2 mile radius of a
campus: https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/78th2015/Bills/SB/SB390 EN.pdf

SB200: Permits but does not require charter schools on military bases to give admissions
preference to students of personnel residing on or employed by the military base:
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/78th2015/Bills/SB/SB200 EN.pdf

Nevada Administrative Code: As a state with a biennial legislature, Nevada relies heavily on its
regulatory framework to provide guidance on the interpretation and execution of its laws. The
provisions of NAC 386.010 through 386.47 govern the administration of the state’s charter school
program: https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-386.html.

The state adopted a number of changes to the NAC regarding charter schools during the 2014
interim. Most of these modifications reflect the creation of the SPCSA in 2011 and the creation of a
charter school accountability system in 2013. Some of these changes have not yet been codified

into the existing NAC:

e R036-14A: http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Register/2014Register/R036-14A.pdf
e R069-14A: http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Register/2014Register/R069-14A.pdf
e R075-14A: http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Register/2014Register/R075-14A.pdf
e R076-14A: http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Register/2014Register/R076-14A.pdf

Due to the legislative changes during the 2015 session, schools should anticipate that many of these
regulations will be revised to reflect the most current law during the fall of 2015 and the winter of
2016 as Nevada continues to adopt best authorizing and oversight practices and policies from other
leading charter school states. This amendment request document is one of the first efforts to
incorporate those changes.

Pursuant to SB509, the Authority may require that schools enter into amended and restated charter
contracts as a condition of granting an amendment; this mechanism allows us to require schools to
develop additional technical amendments and contractual changes as statutory and regulatory
requirements evolve.
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Additional Guidance and Resources for Schools

The Nevada charter school movement and the SPCSA have undergone dramatic changes in the past
four years as a result of legislative changes in the 2013 legislative session and the sweeping
education reforms adopted during the 2015 legislative session. As noted above, the policy and
operating landscape for charter schools has undergone significant shifts, including some changes
which have yet to be codified into regulation and standard practice.

In light of these changes and the Authority board’s deep commitment to accountability and
continuous improvement, the expectations and standards for charter application approval and for
ongoing operation and expansion have continued to evolve and our process has become
increasingly more rigorous. Consequently, schools are strongly cautioned against excessive
borrowing of language from “boilerplate” Nevada charter application material and sample
resources that are widely available on the internet, including legacy materials on a variety of state
web sites, including documents maintained for a subset of existing schools on the SPCSA website.

The Authority also recognizes that overseeing and operating high performing schools with multiple
campuses is a complex task requiring flexibility and sophistication. Nevada’s multi-site charter
schools are the Silver State’s own homegrown charter management organizations. Like similar
networks in other states, our homegrown CMOs directly hold charters to operate multiple
campuses in Nevada. As they plan their growth, schools which have limited experience operating
charter schools with multiple campuses and those which have not fully made the mindset shift from
operating a small school to a more district-like entity are encouraged to reach out to the top
performing multi-site charter school networks in leading charter school markets, including not only
states in the western United States, but also CMOs in places like New York, Massachusetts, and the
District of Columbia. While there are some contextual differences between states, you will find that
many of these networks have experienced challenges as they have grown and can share lessons
learned about how to grow intentionally, strategically, and effectively.

Schools are encouraged to avoid quoting entire statutes or regulations, or including documents that
could just as well be referred to rather than provided in their entirety in the application. Do not
simply print materials off the Nevada Department of Education’s website or the State Public Charter
School Authority’s website for inclusion in the amendment request; the Review Team can access
those websites if necessary. Including documents and statutes and regulations in their entirety will
result in an unmanageably large submission. Rather than quoting or including the entire text of
statute, regulation and/or documents in the application, include only relevant excerpts or
summarize the statute, regulation or document. Do not hesitate to provide citations of relevant
statutes or regulations along with a thoughtful, original discussion of how the school intends to
implement the requirements of the law, regulation, or process in a way which is fully aligned with
the mission, vision, and program outlined in the application. In designing their policies, processes,
and procedures, schools are encouraged to consider the who, what, where, when, and why for each
element in the school’s operating system.
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Overview of the Spring 2016 Expansion Amendment Cycle

With the Spring 2016 charter expansion amendment cycle, the State Public Charter School
Authority has adopted a format which features questions focused on the particular academic,
financial, organizational, and governance opportunities and challenges associated with multi-site
operation.

The State Public Charter School Authority views the granting of the charter as an investment of
public dollars and the public trust in the service of public schoolchildren. The evaluation of each
application and each applicant revolves around the same essential question: will this school be an
academic, organizational, & financial success?

The expansion request is evaluated based on the strength of the plan in each of those domains,
while applicants are evaluated based on their capacity to execute the program they’ve proposed
both based on the coherence, thoroughness, and thoughtfulness of each element of the application
and on the data gathered during both the (discretionary) capacity interview process and
background research and due diligence on both proposed members of the expanded governing
board and proposed staff members. Successful requests will share many of the same
characteristics.

Successful Amendment Requests Will Demonstrate...

Domain Criteria

Governance Strong Governing Team which Significantly Exceeds Statutory Minimum
Criteria with Proven Track Record of Transparency and Accountably
Governing a Multi-Million Dollar Public Entity

Leadership School and Network Leaders with Exemplary Track Record of Academic and
Operating Results with Similar Model/Population

Strong Operating Team with Proven Track Record of Transparency and
Accountably Operating a Multi-Million Dollar Public Entity

Academic Proven School Model With Proven Track Record of Producing 4/5 Star
Accountability Results with Target Population

Fiscal Strong School and Network Financial Model With Proven Track Record of
Accountability Increasing Annual Fund Balances!

! Such fund balance increases are intended to track free cash on hand, and should be exclusive of any capital
refresh, expansion, or bond-mandated reserves budgeted for and maintained by the school.
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Track Record of Clean Audits

Business Transparent and Appropriate Client/Vendor Relationship with Any
Relationships Identified Service Providers

Developing a high quality multi-site school design and operating plan is a challenging and time-
consuming endeavor that requires extensive collaboration by the governing body and leadership
team of the charter school. Reading and making recommendations on charter amendments is also a
time-consuming activity for SPCSA board members, staff, and any external evaluators with whom
the Authority may works to ensure a diversity of perspectives and expertise in the review process.

It is important to note that in contrast to other statewide independent charter school board
authorizers with similarly sized portfolios, the SPCSA currently has very limited staff approved to
manage school communications, the charter application process, the amendment request process,
the pre-opening process for new charter schools and new campuses, performance management of
existing charter contracts, or the process for renewing and closing charter schools based on
performance issues. All State Public Charter School Authority employees other than the Director
are primarily funded as either state agency fiscal support staff or as staff to the agency’s district-like
local education agency funding. Consequently, schools are cautioned that timelines for review and
feedback may be subject to change or modification.

For the Spring 2016 amendment cycle, all requests are projected be on the same review timeline:

Full Request Submitted March 1 2016

Initial Technical Review to Confirm Eligibility and Completeness Early March
2016

Requests for Clarification (at discretion of SPCSA staff) late March 2016

Review of Amendment Request by Internal and Possible External Reviewers | late March 2016

Capacity Interviews (At SPCSA Director Discretion) Mid April 2016
Reviewer Conference and Generation of Staff Recommendations Late April 2016
SPCSA Board Meeting: Public Hearing: Staff Recommendation, School May-June 2016

Presentation, & Board Vote

Schools that are unable to submit an amendment request which meets their own high standards
during the spring round are strongly encouraged to begin working on an application for the fall
2017 cycle as soon as possible. While there are likely to be some changes to the timeline, process,
and format, the essential questions will remain the same.

13



Section III: Request for Amendment

CAMPUSES OPENING FALL 2016 AND BEYOND

Please submit an amendment request that addresses the following questions / issues.
There are no page limits for individual sections except for the Executive Summary. The total
amendment request may not exceed 128 pages (not including the requested attachments and the
28 pages of questions and tables included in this document).

Please keep in mind that your amendment request is a professional document. The quality of the
document that you submit should reflect the quality of the school that you propose to expand.
Review teams will be able to navigate well-organized, effectively edited documents easily,
thereby focusing their energy on reviewing the content of each application. Grammar, spelling,
and formatting all make an impression on a reviewer. Responsive answers are critical: ensure
that you have fully answered the question and have thoroughly researched the relevant section
of law, regulation, and policy. Organization and clarity are essential: use of appropriate cross-
referencing by page number and, where appropriate, sub-section headings to linked areas of the
application when elaborating on or demonstrating alignment to a key strategic element of the
proposal will limit the possibility that an essential point is missed by a reviewer due to a lack of
clarity and specificity.

The purpose of this Expansion Amendment Request is to assess the potential of existing charter
school boards to produce high-quality student outcomes and function as highly effective,

accountable, and transparent providers of public education as they transition from being single site
or small multi-site charter schools into charter management organizations with the capability and
maturity to achieve at consistently high levels in all domains while continuing to scale their impact
in their communities and in other communities across the state.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
4 Page Limit
Provide a brief overview of your school, including:

e An overview of the mission and vision for the expanded school network
e Proposed model and target communities

e The outcomes you expect to achieve across the network of campuses

e The key components of your educational model for the expanded school

e The values, approach, and leadership accomplishments of your school or network leader and
leadership team

e Key supporters, partners, or resources that will contribute to your expanded school’s success

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas (CASLV) is a STEM-focused, college-prep public charter school
that gives students in grades K-12 an opportunity to achieve their full potentials. The mission of
CASLV is to provide a safe, rigorous college preparatory environment that promotes social
responsibility and a culturally diverse community dedicated to becoming lifelong learners bound
for success. CASLV currently serves over 1,500 students across the valley, with more than 4,000
students on its waitlist.

CASLV’s stellar reputation, which speaks for itself, has only grown in magnitude since its inception.
Having started off as a replication model of Coral Academy of Science - Reno (CAS), which is a
renowned school in Northern Nevada, CASLV has raised the bar even higher by adding more
components to its already rigorous education programs. CASLV is accredited by the leading
accreditation institution, AdvancED.

CASLV’s faculty and staff are dedicated to challenging all students academically, instilling college
awareness at all grade levels, and motivating them towards STEM careers by providing the
necessary tools to help develop 21st century and leadership skills.

Belief Statements
C - Challenge: Every student is challenged to enhance character and fulfill their academic potential.

A - Acceptance & Achievement: Accepting the diversity of our peers and achieving goals beyond
ourselves.

S - Safety: Providing a safe learning environment that sets boundaries to allow students to achieve
greatness.

L - Lifelong Learning: Fostering a love of lifelong learning.
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V - Values: Developing well-rounded individuals while promoting integrity and responsibility.

Some of the highlights of our team’s qualifications to provide the services for this project are as
follows:

e CASLV has received the top Nevada Department of Education designations “High
Achieving,” “5-star School,” “Quality School,” and “Reward School” for each school year it
has been operational. In addition, CASLV is the #1 high school in Nevada and #72 in the
nation according to the Washington Post’s “America’s Most Challenging High Schools” list of
2014. CASLV will exceed in your expectations on each and every factor defined in your
Statement of Objectives. CASLV is headed by Mr. Ercan Aydogdu, Executive Director of the
CASLV and was responsible for achieving the highest rating for the school in the State of
Nevada. He is committed to make all resources available for the success of the additional
Henderson campus and will make his priority to make this school one of the top schools in
the State of Nevada.

With a waitlist of over 4,000 for our Henderson location, we are in need of adding another campus
to support the current demand and need, as well as being able to have a separate Middle and High
School campus. CASLV’s new campus process guarantees the continuation of CASLV’s
extraordinary success and includes the following:

e Proven educational program: The same successful educational model with all aspects will
be implemented at the new location. Feedback from school administration, parents and
students and later from the school staff may cause other site-specific programs to develop.

e CASLYV Central Office support and Supervision: CASLV central office will supervise every
step of the startup and program implementation at the new campus. CASLV has a proven
replication model at multiple locations in Nevada.

e Seed administrators and teachers to ensure successful replication: As previously done
at already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and teachers at
current schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the educational
program at the new Henderson campus. In order to facilitate a smooth transition and long-
term sustainability, the central office will transfer some of its core teaching faculty and
administration to the new campus. This strategy has been successful in effectively
instituting CASLV’s proven educational model.

e Proven human resources management: CASLV central office will handle teacher
recruitment for the new campus.

e Professional training: A thorough professional development program will be
incorporated.

Weekly coordination meetings: School principals and central office staff will hold weekly
meetings to oversee the entire replication process.
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MEETING THE NEED

TARGETED PLAN

(1) Identify the community you wish to serve as a result of the expansion and describe
your interest in serving this specific community.

(a) Over the next three years, we will be serving our Henderson and Henderson-
Adjacent area students in the K-12th grades. We will be providing up to 750
additional placements for incoming students.

(2) Explain how your expansion model, and the commitment to serve this population,
including the grade levels you have chosen, would meet the district and community
needs and align with the mission of the SPCSA.

(a) Our commitment to serve all of our students has always proven to be unparalleled.
This Henderson area expansion will serve our current students as well as an
additional 750 new students. We have chosen to use this new Henderson campus to
allow a restructure of all campuses in an effort to streamline all campuses and keep
continuity across all of the campuses. This will allow our Sandy Ridge Campus to
focus on their efforts for grades 4th through 7th. Both Tamarus and Windmill
Campuses will then be able to both serve grades K through 3rd. To accomplish this
we will be building a new, high tech capable, STEM focused school for 8-12th grades
in Henderson/Henderson-adjacent area over the next three years. Since we have
such a large wait list, adding 750 more students will help alleviate some of this and
allow more families the opportunity to educate their student with CASLV.

GROWTH RATE AND RATIONALE

(1) Describe the school’s six-year growth plan for developing new schools in Nevada
and other states. Please describe the proposed scope of growth over the next 6 years, including
both the schools that the campuses the school has already been approved to open, those it is
currently applying to open and any additional campuses that it anticipates applying to open in
the next six years (number of campuses, locations, proposed six-year enrollment projections,
and grade configuration/type of schools).

(a) Provide a rationale for the proposed six-year growth plan;
for example, how the school determined the appropriate pace and scope of the
proposed growth and why the school is well-positioned to implement the
growth plan. If locating in a new community within your present county of
location or a new county within Nevada, please explain the rationale for the
geographic expansion. If planning to operate new campuses in other states,
please explain the rationale for that expansion.
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Our commitment to serve all of our students has always proven to be unparalleled. This Henderson
area expansion will serve our current students as well as an additional 750 new students. We have
chosen to use this new Henderson campus to allow a restructure of all campuses in an effort to
streamline all campuses and keep continuity across all of the campuses. This will allow our Sandy
Ridge Campus to focus on their efforts for grades 4th through 7th. Both Tamarus and Windmill
Campuses will then be able to both serve grades K through 3rd. To accomplish this we will be
building a new, high tech capable, STEM focused school for 8-12th grades in
Henderson/Henderson-adjacent area over the next three years. Since we have such a large wait
list, adding 750 more students will help alleviate some of this and allow more families the
opportunity to educate their student with CASLV. In our recent lottery, we were able to only take
100 students, most of which made up our kindergarten population. We have siblings of enrolled
students that have to go through their own lottery and waitlist to get enrolled into CASLV, let alone
other students from the general public. By adding another campus in Henderson we will be able to
support our current families and also offer more opportunities for students to participate in our
outstanding program.

(2) Specifically identify the key risks associated with this growth plan and describe the
steps the school is taking to mitigate these risks. Respondents should demonstrate a
sophisticated and nuanced understanding of the challenges of replication in general and as
they relate specifically to their school growth plans based on current and historic experience of
charter school management organizations and similar types of multi-site social enterprises
and non-profit and for-profit organizations. The response should detail specific risks and
explain how the school will minimize the impact of each of these risks, and ideally provide
contingency plans for them. Examples may include:

a. Inability to secure facilities/facilities financing;

i. We are currently working on and investigating areas that would work for
our new campus

b. Difficulty raising philanthropic funding;
i. Notapplicable
c. Insufficient talent pipeline/difficulty recruiting faculty;

i. We are already developing a plan for teacher and faculty recruitment and we
have some key teachers on already developed campuses that will transfer to
the new campus to help with the startup and implementation of the CASLV
program

d. Insufficient leadership pipeline/difficulty recruiting school leaders;
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i. As previously done at already replicated Coral Academy schools, some
existing administrators and teachers at current schools will be transferred
to the newly opened site to implement the educational program.

e. Misalignment between the founding school and leader and new campuses and
leaders, and;

i. There will be formal and informal systems that will prepare leaders for their
responsibilities. School leaders and the central office will hold weekly
meetings to oversee the entire replication process and ongoing
communications between all campuses.

f.  Ambiguous student performance outcomes and the need to curtail expansion if
performance drops.

i. CASLV has consistently performed at a high level, with an overall 4-5 star
rating. This is something we will continue to look at closely on all levels -
staff administration, and the board. If issues and concerns come up where
we are not performing at a high level we will take immediate action to fine
tune academic plans, procedures, and structures that are in place to ensure
student success.

2. Discuss lessons learned during the school’s past replication efforts and those of any
replicated school or organization from another jurisdiction. For example: specifically
identify each challenges encountered and how the school addressed them, as well as how
the school would minimize such challenges for the proposed campuses.

a. Open and ongoing communication with students, parents, and staff will be key to
ensure our new Henderson campus is operating smoothly.

PARENT AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

(1) Describe the role to date of any parents, neighborhood, and/or community
members involved in the proposed expansion of the school.

Involvement with our community members and parents about the need for an additional campus in
Henderson has been an ongoing conversation.
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(2) Describe how you will engage parents, neighborhood, and community members
from the time that the application is approved through the opening of the new campus(es) or
grade levels. What specific strategies will be implemented to establish buy-in and to learn
parent priorities and concerns during the transition process and post opening?

Open, dynamic and transparent communication between parents, teachers, administration
and community leaders is an imperative paragon of success in any excelling school.
Recognizing that educational success will be realized only when the essential underlying
triad of student-teacher-parent/guardian is in harmony, the purpose of Coral Academy of
Science is to create a partnership that will provide our children with the support necessary
to reach their highest potential intellectually, socially, emotionally, and physically.

(3) Describe how you will engage parents in the life of the expanded school (in addition
to any proposed governance roles). Explain the plan for building family-school partnerships
that strengthen support for learning and encourage parental involvement. Describe any
commitments or volunteer activities the school will seek from, offer to, or require of parents.

CASLV’s traditional activities/programs:

Back to School Nights

Parent-Teacher Conferences

Home Visit Program

Around the World Festival

Winter Festival

Harvest Festival

Muffins for Moms

Doughnuts for Dads

STEM Expo

Fall Picnics

Parent-School-Community Sports Activities
CASLV communicates with parents in variety of ways. Social Media channels such as Facebook,
Twitter and LinkedIn are constantly updated. Newsletters, report cards, emails, and webpage are
extensively utilized by administration and faculty to preserve consistent communications with

parents. CASLV provides 24/7 access to its SIS, where parents have access to all academics (grades,
progress) and discipline information for their children simply by going online. The school’s website

20



is another great tool for parents; announcements, forms, upcoming events and activities are
updated regularly to ensure that parents and the schools are on the same page.

CASLV believes that these type of events will be instrumental in building a strong platform for
community relations at the new Henderson campus.

(4) Discuss the community resources that will be available to students and parents at
the expanded school. Describe any new strategic partnerships the expanded school will have
with community organizations, businesses, or other educational institutions that are part of
the school’s core mission, vision, and program other than dual-credit partners discussed in
subsequent sections. Specify the nature, purposes, terms, and scope of services of any such
partnerships, including any fee-based or in-kind commitments from community organizations
or individuals that will enrich student-learning opportunities. Include, as Attachment 11,
existing evidence of support from new community partners such as letters of
intent/commitment, memoranda of understanding, and/or contracts.

Community involvement is a fundamental aspect of CASLV’s mission and vision. Community
partnerships are extremely important as it broadens the students’ opportunities to be exposed to
various opportunities in and out of the school day. CASLV will continue to seek partnerships that
will enrich our school program.

(5) Describe the school’s ties to and/or knowledge of the target community. How has
the school learned from and engaged with this community to date? What initiatives and/or
strategies will you implement to learn from and engage the neighborhood, community, and
broader city/county?

CASLV will prioritize deep engagement with the tarte community through a multifaceted marketing
campaign to educate parents and families about school choice. The development of target
community engagement will be multidimensional as part of our strategic plan and gathering
knowledge from a variety of community stakeholders especially from parents, families, and
targeted at-risk subgroups through focus groups and other mechanisms.

(6) Identify any organizations, agencies, or consultants that are partners in planning
and expanding the school, along with a brief description of their current and planned role and
any resources they have contributed or plan to contribute to the school’s development. If the
school is new to this county, describe how your previous work has prepared you to establish
relationships and supports in this new community.

This proposal if for expansion of our current community in the Henderson area. We have outlined
our expansion plans, resources, and roles below through our Academic Plan, Operational Plan, and
Financial Plan.
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ACADEMIC PLAN

MISSION & VISION

The mission of your school should describe the purpose of your school, including the students and
community to be served and the values to which you will adhere while achieving that purpose. The
vision of your school should describe what success looks like for students, for the school as a whole, and
for any other entities that are critical to your mission. The mission and vision statement should align
with the purposes of the Nevada charter school law and the mission of the State Public Charter School
Authority and serves as the foundation for the entire proposal.

(1) Explain whether the proposed mission and vision for the network is different from
the existing school’s mission and vision and how they differ. Describe the reasoning behind
any modifications. Explain whether the mission and vision outlined will replace the current
mission and vision of the charter holder, or if the school proposes to complement a broader
organizational mission and vision with campus or grade-level specific variants. How will the
entity as a whole ensure consistency and coherence of its mission and vision?

MISSION & VISION

“The mission of CASLV is to provide a safe, rigorous college preparatory environment that
promotes social responsibility and a culturally diverse community dedicated to becoming lifelong
learners bound for success."

School Beliefs
C - Challenge: Every student is challenged to enhance character and fulfill their academic potential.

A - Acceptance & Achievement: Accepting the diversity of our peers and achieving goals beyond
ourselves.

S - Safety: Providing a safe learning environment that sets boundaries to allow students to achieve
greatness.

L - Lifelong Learning: Fostering a love of Lifelong learning.
V - Values: Developing well rounded individuals while promoting integrity and responsibility.

At CASLV, we recognize that educational success will be realized only when the essential
underlying triad of student-teacher-parent/guardian is in harmony.
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We, as educators, will create a partnership among this triad that will provide our youth with the
support necessary to reach their highest potential- intellectually, socially, emotionally and
physically.

The educational vision and innovation crucial to accomplishing this mission are organized under
two main headings: specific elements and whole-school design.

The specific design elements fall into five categories: 1) rigorous curricula, instruction, and
assessment; 2) leadership, governance, and staffing; 3) parent and community involvement; 4)
technology; and 5) financing. The whole-school design involves the comprehensive and continuing
effort to realize these five essential elements in an integrated manner.

[t is our belief that each child has an inherent curiosity and love of learning; and that each child has
a unique intelligence, level of capability, and learning style. With this in mind, we will motivate our
students and expect them to strive toward their highest levels of capability while addressing their
individual learning styles, thus fostering within them a lifelong love of learning.

Continuous improvement, persistent innovation, positive response to change, and a commitment to
continuous growth will be expected of all the people and programs at CASLV. The public's
resources and those of the Board of Directors must be effectively committed to ensure that these
expectations will be met. Then, and only then, will our proven successful educational vision infused
with the energy of local innovation harmonize the triad of student-teacher-parent/guardian
support to accomplish our mission, that of providing each student with the motivation and
resources to reach his or her highest potential and realize his or her greatest aspirations.

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, in alliance with the community, to guide the school
in holding true to its mission. To this end, the Board of Directors will provide the school with the
support, which will ensure optimal conditions for the achievement and continuing growth and
development of each student.

CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTIONAL DESIGN

The framework proposed for instructional design must both reflect the needs of the anticipated
population and ensure all students will meet or exceed the expectations of the Nevada Academic
Content Standards.

(1) Historical Performance

23



(a) Performance Data: schools are only eligible to complete the
amendment request and business plan if the existing schools meet the
Authority’s eligibility criteria; these criteria reflect a proven academic track
record of success with Nevada students and our operating expectations or
similar performance in another state. However, a school is welcome to provide
any additional historical academic performance metrics that fall outside of the
operator’s contractual performance plan (e.g. average student growth on an
adaptive test such as ACT Aspire, NWEA MAP, SCANTRON, Renaissance
Learning’s STAR, etc.). If provided, describe student performance on these
metrics. Please only provide data in vendor-produced score reports and note
that the Authority may require additional time and resources to review and
vet such data.

CASLV AYP
School Year CASLV
2007-2008 High Achieving
2008-2009 High Achieving
2009-2010 Adequate
2010-2011 Adequate
2011-2012 High Achieving / 5-Star & Quality School
2012-2013 4-Star
2013-2014 5-Star & Reward School
2014-2015 5-Star & Reward School

(b) Interventions: Please explain any past performance that has
not met the organization’s expectations. How was the underperformance
diagnosed, how were appropriate intervention(s) determined, and how are they
being implemented? What are the key areas in which existing schools/campuses
need to improve, and what are the priorities to drive further success?

CASLV is well equipped to meet the needs of a diverse student body with multiple learning styles.
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Students are assigned class activities based on their identified levels that are determined by MAP
and other placement test results. Teachers differentiate instruction per their students’ cognitive
and social needs. In-class assessments are also used to determine the level of understanding and
design individualized instruction. Teachers utilize strategies that include tiered assignments,
interest centers/groups, independent projects, flexible grouping, and varying questions. For
students achieving substantially below grade level, educational materials that provide review and
re-teaching are used. Schoolwide cluster grouping and within-class ability grouping strategies will
be employed to cater instruction to students in need. CASLV’s flexible scheduling will allow
students who are struggling to attend enrichment and remediation classes to fill in the gaps in their
learning. Teacher and classroom aides will implement pull-out and push-in interventions as part of
the RTI. One-on-one and small group tutoring sessions will support in class instruction as extended
school hour programs.

(2) Academic Vision and Theory of Change

(a) Model Non-Negotiables: What are the key non-negotiables
(i.e. the key school design components, policies, practices, etc. that underlie
school culture and academic outcomes) of your school model? Please include
details about the critical elements that are constant across the organization's
schools and those that may vary. Discuss any campus-level autonomies in
implementing the educational plan.

The heart of the mission of CASLV is to provide a solid academic foundation in the core subject
areas through implementation of a rigorous curriculum. In order to do so, the following are always
taken into consideration at CASLV:

e Technology based curricula (integrated units with computer classes and application of
subjects in advanced classes)

e CASLV has an academic probation policy, per which all student grades are monitored and
certain actions are taken for underachievers. These actions include but are not limited to
loss of privileges, suspension from sports/extra-curricular activities, parent conferences,
and placement on an improvement plan.

e CASLV provides extra-curricular activities such as robotics, basketball, debate, art, student
council, Key Club, NHS ,CMLP, Math Counts, Lego Robotics, and Science Olympiads.

e Parents are notified immediately if a teacher suspects that a student may be having
difficulty in mastering a specific skill. All teachers are available after school to assist
students with homework.

e Good communication is established among administrators, teachers and parents through
CAS School Information System.

CASLV’s STEM-focused and college-prep education program is based on an inquiry approach to
science, technology, engineering, and math to improve access and success in STEM fields in college.
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According to research conducted about the benefits of an inquiry-based science program for special
populations, inquiry-oriented teaching may be especially valuable for many at-risk and diverse
populations. In one study, language-minority students were found to acquire scientific ways of
thinking, talking, and writing through inquiry-oriented teaching.

CASLV’s elementary program prepares students for success in middle and high school by providing
arigorous integrated STEM education. The inquiry-based hands-on instructional approach not only
teaches young students to “learn to learn,” but also prepares them for success in the pursuit of
future STEM careers. CASLV administrators firmly believe that it is essential to start early and
provide a motivating education program grounded in STEM.

For grades 3rd through 5th, a team of two elementary teachers share two classes, one teaching
math and science, the other reading and writing, while each their own social studies. CASLV has
managed to provide equal time for science and social studies whereas many schools have to alter
teaching them due to devoting more time to math and reading.

CASLYV believes that an educated citizen in the 21st century must have the skills and understanding
to participate and work productively in a technologically oriented and global environment. A
significant step toward helping students achieve their maximum potential involves providing a
rigorous, relevant, and college-preparatory curriculum. While the curriculum concentrates on
STEM, it also provides a solid instruction in humanities and social sciences to educate the whole
child. Advanced courses are offered to spur interest in and prepare for all students in STEM related
careers. Science classes employ technology in laboratory explorations and experimentation.
Computer simulations assist in expanding the number of lab opportunities in all grade levels.
Teachers effectively use the inquiry-based approach to engage students in the learning process
while encouraging high levels of interest. Students’ observations and reflections are the key factors
for maximum learning results through hands-on instruction.

To enhance critical-thinking skills, students work on inquiry-based activities and projects outside of
the classroom throughout the school year. Each year, CASLV organizes a school-wide science fair in
which all students participate. CASLV students then move on to participate in the regional and
statewide science fairs. CASLV organizes and participates in local and statewide math and computer
programming competitions, STEM fairs and Expos. Through various activities, competition days
will become a targeted event to arouse student interest.
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(3) Performance Management

(a) Measuring Progress: Describe the school’s approach to
performance management across the network and with individual campuses,
including the systems used to measure and evaluate both academic and non-
academic performance of each site and of the network as a whole. What
performance management systems, processes, and benchmarks will the school
use to formally assess this progress? Explain how the school addresses
underperformance and describe the corrective action plan procedures.

In addition to the classroom and state assessments, students are tested using NWEA’s MAP testing
which is then used to inform instructional decisions. As a growth-based instrument, MAP testing
allows the teachers and administrators to monitor student growth and project state assessment
performance. The tools provided in NWEA also help teachers group the students for more effective
differentiation.

Based on student performance in the classroom, state tests, and MAP test results, the grade level or
department level teams discuss student needs and possible interventions. There is an RTI process
in place for the students who are consistently struggling or need to close and academic gap. These
students are approximately the bottom 20% of the whole population. The following services are
available for these students:

Parent-Teacher conferences

Student Success Team Meetings

After and during school tutoring and homework help
Small group instruction with a specialist

Academic Clubs

[-Ready and Accelerated Reader

(b) Closure: Describe the conditions that would cause the school
to petition the Authority close a consistently low performing campus. Be
specific about threshold metrics the school would use to inform its decision.

CASLV has consistently performed at a high level, with an overall 4-5 star rating. This is
something we will continue to look at closely at with on all levels - staff, administration, and
our board. If issues and concerns come up where we are not performing at a high level we
will take immediate action to fine tune academic plans, procedures, and structures that are in
place to ensure student success.
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(c) College Readiness (HS Only): Describe the mechanisms
that the school employs to accurately, reliably, and consistently track college
acceptance, enrollment, and persistence rates. If historical data is available on
college acceptance, enrollment, and/or persistence rates, please include it. Cite
the percent of total alumni for which the school has data on each metric. If data
is not available, please include plans to create mechanisms to accurately,
reliably, and consistently track student acceptance, enrollment, and persistence
rates.

Not applicable with current expansion proposal.

(d) Readiness to Replicate: What academic, financial, and
operational metrics does the school and its Board use to determine readiness for
replication?

CASLV meets all requirements of the Charter School Performance Framework (CSPF). We have
consistently met the designation of Quality or Meets Standards with our existing CASLV campuses.

PROGRAMS OF DISTANCE EDUCATION (Distance Education Expansion Amendments)

A charter school that wishes to provide distance education (online, virtual, cyber, etc.) courses and/or
programs (NRS 388.820-388.874 and NAC 388.800-388.860) must submit a distance education
application to the Nevada Department of Education prior to or in conjunction with its amendment
request to the SPCSA.

For applicants who do not propose to offer a program of distance education or who already have
approval to operate such a program, please provide a brief statement explaining that the questions in
this section are not applicable.

(1) Describe the system of course credits that the school will use.

(2) Describe how the school will monitor and verify the participation in and completion
of courses by pupils.

(3) Describe how the school will ensure students participate in assessments and submit
coursework.

(4) Describe how the school will conduct parent-teacher conferences.

(5) Describe how the school will administer all tests, examinations or assessments
required by state or federal law or integral to the performance goals of the charter school in a
proctored setting.

The questions in this section are not applicable to CASLV.
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PRE-KINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS (All Operators Currently Operating or Proposing to Operate
Pre-K)

A charter school that wishes to provide pre-kindergarten services to students who will later enroll in
its K-12 programs must apply separately to the Nevada Department of Education to offer education
below the kindergarten level following charter approval. Approval to offer pre-kindergarten cannot be
guaranteed. Consequently, revenues and expenditures related to pre-kindergarten should not be
included in the initial charter application budget. Please note that state-funded pre-kindergarten
programs are not directed through the state Distributive Schools Account for K-12 education. In
addition to a limited amount of state pre-kindergarten funding available through the Department of
Education, the SPCSA is also a sub-recipient of a federal grant to expand early childhood services in
certain high-need communities through programs approved by NDE. Applicants are encouraged to
review resources available at http://www.doe.nv.gov/Early_Learning_Development/. For applicants
who do not propose to offer pre-kindergarten, please provide a brief statement explaining that the
questions in this section are not applicable.

(6) Identify whether the school plans to offer pre-kindergarten in the first year of
operation at the new campus or in any subsequent year of the charter term.

(7) Identify whether the school will offer fee-based pre-kindergarten services. If the
school does plan to offer fee-based pre-kindergarten, explain how the school will ensure that
parents will be informed both initially and on an ongoing basis that both state and federal law
preclude a K-12 charter school from giving admissions preference to students to whom it has
previously charged tuition.

(8) Describe the school’s plans for ensuring that the pre-kindergarten program aligns
with the mission, vision, and program of the school’s other grades and meets all other state
requirements.

(9) Explain how the school’s proposed pre-kindergarten program may meet the federal
pre-kindergarten expansion grant criteria.

The questions in this section are not applicable.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS AND POSTSECONDARY READINESS (New High
School Amendments Only)

High schools approved by the SPCSA will be expected to meet or exceed Nevada graduation
requirements. For operators who do not propose to operate a high school program during the initial
charter term or who already have approval to operate a high school, please provide a brief statement
explaining that the questions in this section are not applicable.

29


http://www.doe.nv.gov/Early_Learning_Development/

(1) Explain how the school will meet state requirements. Describe how students will
earn credit hours, how grade-point averages will be calculated, what information will be on
transcripts, and what elective courses will be offered. If graduation requirements for the
school will exceed those required by the State of Nevada, explain the additional requirements.

(2) Explain how the graduation requirements will ensure student readiness for college
or other postsecondary opportunities (e.g., trade school, military service, or entering the
workforce).

(3) Explain what systems and structures the school will implement for students at risk
for dropping out and/or not meeting the proposed graduation requirements, including plans
to address students who are overage for grade, those needing to access credit recovery
options, and those performing significantly below grade level.

The questions in this section are not applicable.

SPECIAL POPULATIONS

Pursuant to State and federal law, SPCSA schools are required to serve the needs of all students in
special populations. Beginning in the 2016-17 school year, the State of Nevada will switch to a
weighted formula for special education. For the first time, this will provide for equitable special
education funding across all Nevada public schools. Over time, this will necessitate current SPCSA-
sponsored charter schools moving from a defined continuum of service to a broader continuum of
services. All operators submitting amendment requests to the SPCSA after the conclusion of the 2015
Legislative Session should plan on offering students a broad continuum of services.

The SPCSA operates under the following principles with regards to special populations of students:

SPCSA schools serve all eligible students. SPCSA schools do not deny the enrollment of any student
based on needs or disability.

1. SPCSA schools are to ensure streamlined access for all students requiring special programs.

2. SPCSA schools develop programs to support the needs of their students.

3. SPCSA schools do not counsel or kick any students out.

4. SPCSA schools utilize best practices to expose students to the most inclusive environments
appropriate.

5. Ifneeded, an SPCSA school is responsible for developing more restrictive placements to meet
the needs of the highest needs students, including but not limited to clustered placements in
consortium with other charter schools.

6. SPCSA schools are responsible for providing high functioning, trained special education teams,
which focus on student advocacy and high expectations. IEP teams (including school’s
leadership) make placement decisions at IEP meetings. Decisions are made based on
evidence/data to support what is best for the student.
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Special Education

(1) Track Record: Please explain the extent to which the board and leadership team
(instructional leader, etc.) has experience working to achieve high academic outcomes of
students with disabilities, including students with mild, moderate, and severe disabilities.

(2) Identification: Describe in detail the school’s Child Find process. How will the
school identify students in need of additional supports or services?

(a) (Elementary Schools Only) How will the school accurately
identify students prior to and following enrollment (e.g., those who require pre-
school special education and related services) and in the early grades (PreK, K,
1, or 2) for appropriate services?

(b) (Middle and High Schools) How will the school identify and
serve students who require special education services and develop transition
plans?

(c) (All Schools) How will the school handle over-identification
of students as having a disability that qualifies them for special education
services? What will be the process to transition a student out of special
education who has been incorrectly identified as having a disability in the past?

CASLV will utilize a Student Success Team (SST) as a prior intervention strategy. Prior intervention
is employed when concerns have been expressed about academic achievement or the behavioral
needs of an individual student. In most instances, prior intervention assists the school in
determining whether the student has needs that can be met within the regular education setting
without the need for special education, or whether the student is suspected of having a disability.

SST assists students by providing modifications and alternatives to meet the student’s needs. SST
participation stimulates the school community to work together with the common aim of providing
appropriate interventions and assistance for students with special needs in the least restrictive
environment.

If a student is suspected of having a disability, CASLV will initiate procedures to evaluate the
student for eligibility under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and the NAC.

Child Find - CASLV conducts annual child identification activities to create public awareness of
special education programs, advise the public of the rights of eligible children and parents, and
alert community residents and school personnel of the need to identify, locate, and assess children
ages birth through 21. These measures include: 1) Child Find screenings; 2) Child Find referral log
maintenance; 3) yearly advertising and posting of public notices regarding Child Find activities;
and 4) communication with outside agencies regarding possible referrals.

Referral - CASLV accepts referrals from a variety of sources, including parents, custodians, school
personnel, outside agencies, and the student. Unless the student is immediately suspected of having
a disability, prior intervention strategies must be attempted and documented before an evaluation
referral is appropriate. However, the evaluation process will not be delayed for the purpose of
conducting prior interventions.
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Within 45 school days of the parent's consent for initial evaluation, the school shall conduct the
initial evaluation and determine whether the student is eligible for special education and related
services.

When the school feels the student has been over-identified as having a disability that qualifies them
for special education, the school will contact the parent for permission for the school psychologist
to give a full assessment including a complete academic screening. An MDT meeting will take place
where teachers will share MAP scores and classroom achievements as part of the evaluation.
Parents will share their concerns and observations. A team decision will then be made to exit the
student from the IEP if the team is in agreement.

(3) Continuum of Services: How will the school provide a broad continuum of
instructional options and behavioral supports and interventions for students with a range of
disabilities? Specifically describe how students with severe intellectual, learning, and/or
emotional disabilities will be served. Provide a chart which graphically illustrates the
continuum of services which identifies, by disability and level of severity, the means by which
students with disabilities will be able to receive an appropriate public education in the least
restrictive environment (note—this graphic may be created using a commercial program like
Microsoft Visio or a free or low-cost internet based solution such as Lucidchart). Identify the
resources, personnel (including administrative responsibilities), and direct and related
services the school is likely to provide both within general education classrooms and in other
settings (e.g., collaborative team teaching (CTT), Special Education Teacher Support Services
(SETSS), speech therapy, physical therapy, occupational therapy, counseling, etc.) as well as
the services or settings that will be provided through a consortium or other collaborative
initiative with other charter schools or through a third party contract.

CASLV offers a range of services that are available to the students so that they are served in the
least restrictive environment.

(4) Enrollment: Describe the school’s strategy and plan to recruit, enroll, and retain
students with disabilities. How will the school proactively address parent and community
perceptions around the availability and appropriateness of the charter school to the needs of
students with disabilities?

CASLV’s best strategy and plan to recruit, enroll, and retain students with disabilities is by parents,
educators, and staff putting the word out in the community. Families seek us out for enrollment
with our history of providing exemplary services to every student.

(5) General Education Collaboration/Access: How will special education and related
service personnel collaborate with general education teachers (e.g., team teaching, team
planning, etc.) to ensure that all students are able to access a rigorous general academic
curriculum?

Collaboration/consultation/co-teaching services focus on special educators and general educators
working together to best meet the needs of students with disabilities as well as children who may
be "at-risk". Each school operates Student Success Teams (RTI) to promote data driven instruction,
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to individualize learning experiences and to effectively integrate resources which would positively
impact the child's educational program.

The Individual/Small Group Instruction program provides students with disabilities support that
helps to increase their opportunity to benefit from regular class placement. This is supplemental
instruction which focuses on targeted IEP goals and objectives. Depending upon each student’s
individual needs, this instruction could include academic support, as well as assisting students in
becoming independent in the "process" of learning through the use of compensatory strategies, and
study/organizational techniques.

The Resource Room serves children whose disabilities require intensive programming. Continued
participation in the child's regular class activities is encouraged. The Resource Rooms offer an
alternative/modified curriculum in a small group setting, which provides personalized options that
are not offered in the general education program. These placements are considered cross-
categorical, meaning students with a variety of disabilities are served in the same special class.

(6) Staffing: How will you ensure qualified staffing to meet the needs of students with
disabilities across a broad continuum? Note: Federal and Nevada law requires licensure for
the special education teachers, related service personnel, and psychologists at all charter
schools, including those which are permitted to waive other licensure requirements due to
their academic track record.

CASLYV shall utilize a licensed teacher in special education, with an endorsement in the area of
disability represented by the majority of the pupils in the unit. In addition, any teachers working
with gifted and talented students will meet the requirements for licensure for teaching in a
program for the gifted and talented.

(7) Staff Development: How does the school plan to train general education teachers to
modify the curriculum and instruction to address the unique needs of students with
disabilities across a broad continuum?

Each year, before the start of the school year, the special education department provides staff
development to the entire school population to address the unique needs of students with
disabilities. Special education teachers also meet with individual teachers who are in contact with
students with unique needs to inform them of how to better modify the curriculum and instruction
to meet their needs. In the future, these staff development sessions can be extended to staff
meeting times when necessary.

(8) Discipline: Explain how the school will protect the rights of students with
disabilities in disciplinary actions and proceedings and exhaust all options in order to promote
the continuation of educational services in the home school.

CASLV shall ensure that no pupil with a disability will be suspended, expelled or excluded from
attendance if the suspension, expulsion or exclusion results in a change of placement of the pupil
during any school year except upon compliance with the provisions of this section and the 2004
IDEA.
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Before initiating any suspension, expulsion or exclusion that will result in a change of placement for
the pupil, the school will inform the school district special education office and convene a meeting
of the committee that developed the pupil’s individualized educational program. CASLV may
appoint another qualified personnel to meet with the committee as warranted. School personnel
may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when determining whether to
order a change in placement for a child with a disability who violates a code of student conduct.

Except for children with disabilities who have been suspended for not more than 10 days, within
10 school days of any decision to change the placement of a child with a disability because of a
violation of a code of student conduct, the school and their local education agency (LEA), the
parent, and relevant members of the individualized education program (IEP) team (as determined
by the parent and LEA) shall review all relevant information in the student's file, including the
child's IEP, any teacher observations, and any relevant information provided by the parents to
determine if the conduct in question was:

e (Caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to, the child's disability; or
e Directresult of the LEA's failure to implement the IEP.

If the charter school and their LEA, the parent, and relevant members of the [EP team make the
determination that the conduct was a manifestation of the child’s disability, the [EP team shall:

e Conduct a functional behavioral assessment and implement a behavioral intervention plan
for such child, provided that the LEA had not conducted such assessment prior to such
determination before the behavior that resulted in a change in placement described in
Section 616(k)(1)(C) or (G);

In the situation where a behavioral intervention plan has been developed, review the behavioral
intervention plan if the child already has such a behavioral intervention plan, and modify it, as
necessary, to address the behavior; and

Except as provided in Section 616(k)(1)(G), return the child to the placement from which the child
was removed, unless the parent and the LEA agree to a change of placement as part of the
modification of the behavior intervention plan.

School personnel may remove a student to an interim alternative educational setting for not more
than 45 school days without regard to whether the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of
the child’s disability, in cases where a child has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person
while at school, on school premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of an SEA or
LEA. The term “serious bodily injury” is defined in Section 1365(h)(3) of Title 18, U.S. Code, to
mean a bodily injury that involves a substantial risk of death, extreme physical pain, protracted and
obvious disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of a bodily member, organ,
or mental faculty.

In making the determination under Section 615(k)(3)(B)(i), the hearing officer may order a change
in placement of a child with a disability. In such situations, the hearing officer may: (1) return a
child with a disability to the placement from which the child was removed; or (2) order a change in
placement of a child with a disability to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for
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not more than 45 school days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the current
placement of such child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others.

When an appeal under Section 615(k)(3) has been requested, the SEA or LEA shall arrange for an
expedited hearing, which shall occur within 20 school days of the date the hearing is requested, and
shall result in a determination within 10 school days after the hearing.

The school and their LEA shall be deemed to have knowledge that a child is a child with a disability
if, before the behavior that precipitated the disciplinary action occurred:

e The parent of the child expressed concern in writing to supervisory or administrative
personnel of the appropriate educational agency, or a teacher of the child, that the child is in
need of special education and related services;

e The parent of the child has requested an evaluation of the child pursuant to Section
614(a)(1)(B); or

e The teacher of the child, or other personnel of the LEA, has expressed specific concerns
about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child, directly to the director of special
education of such agency or to other supervisory personnel of the agency.

The school and their LEA shall not be deemed to have knowledge that the child is a child with a
disability if the parent of the child has not allowed an evaluation of the child pursuant to Section
614 or has refused services under Part B or the child has been evaluated and it was determined
that the child was not a child with a disability under Part B.

(9) Monitoring: What are your plans for monitoring and evaluating both the progress
and success of students who qualify for special education and related services across a broad
continuum, and the extent to which your special education program complies with relevant
federal and state laws? How will curriculum and instructional decisions be tracked and
monitored by IEP teams and school personnel?

Our special education program complies with relevant federal and state laws. Each child with an
identified disability has an annual IEP meeting and a three year re-evaluation meeting. Students
are monitored and evaluated on a regular basis by classroom assessments, observation, MAP
testing and standardized testing.

(10) Parental Involvement: What appropriate programs, activities, and procedures will
be implemented for the participation of parents of students with a broad range of disabilities?

Parents are always highly encouraged to keep in close contact with all teachers through email and
conferences. Teachers often reach out to parents on a weekly basis to keep parents informed of
missing and upcoming assignments. Parents are highly encouraged to attend and be an active part
of all IEP meetings.

35



(11) For Distance Education Schools: Describe how the school will provide appropriate
services in the distance education learning environment to students with disabilities across a
broad continuum. Ifyou are not proposing to operate a distance education or virtual school,
please explain that this is not applicable.

Distance education is not applicable to CASLV.

OPERATIONS PLAN

(1) Organization Governance Structure & Board Development:

(a) Describe how the organization’s governance structure will
adapt to oversee and support the 6-year growth plan and addition of new
school(s). Include any impact on: (1) the composition of the Board, the Board’s
roles and responsibilities, and the Board’s development priorities and (2) the
Board’s relationship to individual campuses

The Governing Body shall elect Members by the vote of a majority of the Governing Members then
in office, whether or not the number of Governing Members in office is sufficient to constitute a
quorum, or by the sole remaining Governing Member.

The Governing Body may elect any person who in its discretion it believes will serve the interests of
the school faithfully and effectively. Not more than two persons who serve on the governing body
may represent the same organization or business or otherwise represent the interests of the same
organization or business. Pursuant to NAC 386.345(1), a majority of the members of the governing
body must reside in the county in which the charter school is located. The Governing Body shall
consist of:

L. One member who is a teacher or other person licensed pursuant to chapter 391
of NRS or who previously held such a license and is retired, as long as his or her
license was in good standing.

II. One member who:

Satisfies the qualifications of paragraph (i); or
= Is a school administrator with a license issued by another state or who
previously held such a license and is retired, as long as his or her license was
held in good standing.
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IL One parent or legal guardian of a pupil enrolled in CASLV who is not a teacher or
an administrator at the School
IV. Two members who possess knowledge ami experience in one or more of the
following areas:
= Accounting;
Financial services;

Law; or
*  Human resources
V. At large Governing Members, which includes other persons of good moral

character such as parents, educators, community leaders and representatives of
nonprofit organizations and businesses that do not have contracts with the
School

(b) Describe the diverse skillsets that currently exist on the
Board and note any additional type of expertise that the Board may seek to help
support the growth plan.

Dr. Hasan Deniz is an Assistant Professor of Science Education at the University of Nevada, Las
Vegas, who teaches masters level science methods courses. Dr. Hasan Deniz received his bachelor
degree from Dokuz Eylul University Biology Education. His background includes secondary
teaching and introductory college science and methods courses at Indiana University. Dr. Deniz is
an active researcher in the areas of students' epistemological beliefs in science and evolution
education.

Ms. Anne Diggins is the Director of Recruitment and Student Services and a Project Director for the
Precollege Science Education Initiative at the University of Nevada School of Medicine. Ms. Diggins
received her Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism from the University of Nevada, Reno in 1986,
and her Master of Arts degree from the College of Education at the University of Nevada, Reno in
2001.

Ms. Arlene Ishii Hayman has a Bachelor of Science degree from University of Hawaii, and a Bachelor
of Education degree with Distinction in June 1974. She completed a master’s degree in education
from University of Nevada in 2007. Ms. Hayman has also been a certified teacher since January
1997. She has taught for several years at different schools. She has also mentored University of
Nevada, Las Vegas teacher interns through the Curriculum & Instruction Teacher Education
Program. In addition, she served as Science Site Leader at Paradise Professional Development
School, promoting science instruction in the school by attending Clark County School District
meetings and communicating information to the staff. She completed the Coaches Training for
Critical Friends Group through Southern Nevada Writing Project at University of Nevada, Las Vegas
in 2008. Moreover, she is a member of the Science Cadre for Clark County School District. She was a
recipient of a Science Teacher of the Year Award from the Southern Nevada Science Teachers’
Association. She achieved National Board Certification.

Dr. Baloglu teaches Hospitality and Tourism Marketing, Marketing Strategy, Research Methods, and
Statistics at the University of Nevada, Las Vegas (“UNLV”) and serves as Associate Dean of the
Hospitality Department at UNLV. Prior to UNLV, Dr. Baloglu taught at Mersin School of Tourism
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and Hotel Management in Turkey, and Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University. He has a
Bachelor's degree in Tourism and Hotel Administration from Cukurova University, a Master of
Business Administration degree from Hawaii Pacific University and a Ph.D. from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University.

Mr. Tandogan is the Executive Director of Coral Academy of Science Reno. Mr. Tandogan received
his Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from Ankara and went on to receive his Master of Science in
Mathematics from Ataturk University in Erzurum. Mr. Tandogan also attended California State
University’s Single Subject Teaching Credential Program in Long Beach, California.

J. Brin Gibson to oversee the division, which advises the Gaming Control Board and Nevada Gaming
Commission and regulatory matters. Gibson has worked in the gaming and regulatory department
for the statewide law firm Lionel Sawyer & Collins. His projects have included work on the creation
of a gaming control system for the country of Vietham and review of the gaming regulatory
structure of another overseas jurisdiction. Brin has also been appointed Associate Adjunct
Professor and teaches water law with the Southern Nevada Water Authority CEO and General
Counsel at the William S. Boyd School of Law at the University of Nevada, Las Vegas. He is assistant
editor of the forthcoming Nevada Gaming Licensing Guidebook, edited by fellow Lionel Sawyer &
Collins attorneys Robert Faiss and Mark Clayton. Brin's projects have included environmental
permitting and due diligence for one of the world's largest manufacturers of clean energy
technology, and water rights work in Southern Nevada. In 2011, he was appointed by Governor
Brian Sandoval to serve as a member of Nevada's Colorado River Commission, which is responsible
for acquiring, managing and protecting Nevada's water and hydroelectric power resources deriving
from the Colorado River. The Commission works with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation and the other
six Colorado River Basin states to effectively manage one of the country's most important natural
resources.

Beth Kazelskis has played an active role with CASLV parents and has served as the PTO president
before joining the CASLV board.

(c) Identify any Board development requirements relative to the
organization’s governance needs at each stage of growth.

(d) Describe how the Board identifies and addresses conflicts of
interest. Attach a code of ethics that includes a formal conflict of interest policy
and specifies the procedures for implementing the policy.

No person shall serve on the Governing Board that has a conflict of interest, actual or perceived, in
the school. A conflict of interest occurs when a governing body member acts on a school matter that
could benefit or harm him or his immediate family members personally. An "interested person” is:
(1) any person or spouse currently being compensated by the school for services rendered to it
within the previous 12 months, as a full-time or part-time employee, (2) contractors with the school
or their spouse, (3) vendors with the school, or (4) lessors of the school facility or other property
used by the school.
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(2) Organization Charts and Decision-Making Authority:

(a) Provide the following organizational charts:

° Current

° Vision for school in three years (clearly identify both
campuses requested in this amendment request as well as any additional
campuses that the operator anticipates applying to open within three years)

° Vision for school in six years (clearly identify both
campuses requested in this amendment request as well as any additional
campuses that the operator anticipates applying to open within six years)

The organization charts should represent the all national and state operations and clearly delineate
the roles and responsibilities of - and lines of authority and reporting among - the governing board,
staff, any related bodies (e.g., advisory bodies or parent/teacher councils), and any external
organizations that will play a role in managing the schools. If the school intends to contract with an
education management organization or other management provider, clearly show the provider's
role in the organizational structure of the school, explaining how the relationship between the
governing board and school administration will be managed. Please include all shared/central
office positions and positions provided by the Management Organization (CMO or EMO) in the
organizational chart, if applicable.

Current and proposed organizational charts have been included in the attachments.
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(3) Describe the proposed organizational model; include the following information:

(a) Job descriptions for each leadership or shared/central office
role identified in the organizational chart (provide as Attachment 12)

(b) Resumes of all current leadership (provide as Attachment
13).

(c) Previous student achievement data for the proposed
instructional leaders at each proposed campus (if available) (provide as part of
Attachment 13)

(4) Describe the leadership team'’s individual and collective qualifications for
implementing the multi-site school design and business and operating plan successfully,
including capacity in areas such as:

(a) School leadership;

(b) School business operations and finance;

(c) Governance management and support to the Board;
(d) Curriculum, instruction, and assessment;

(e) At-risk students and students with special needs;
(f) Performance management; and

(g) Parent and community engagement.

Collectively, the CASLV core administrative team has extensive experience in in all areas of school
administration in varied experiences and settings. These experiences include:

School leadership and developing strong school leaders

School business operations, finance, and budgeting

Governance management and support to the Board

Creating and continuing to develop curriculum, instruction, and assessment

Supporting and developing programs for at-risk students and students with special needs
Performance management

Developing and continuing to build parent and community engagement

(5) Explain who is responsible for school leader coaching and training and what those
processes will look like in action. Please include any existing competencies used for school
leader selection and evaluation, if available (provide as Attachment 14).

(6) Explain your school leader’s role in the successful recruitment, hiring, development
and retention of a highly effective staff.

The school leader plays a key role in recruiting, hiring, and developing highly effective staff. The
new school leader of the Henderson campus will work closely with human resources director for
recruitment, hiring and retention of the highly effective staff members and site directors at the
existing CASLV campuses as he/she identify the needs of new campus employees.
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(7) Explain your campus instructional leader’s role in providing instructional guidance
and school culture guidance. How will the leadership team work in support of the campus
instructional leader’s guidance?

Executive Director and Chief of Academics will make sure that new campus director and
instructional coaches are replicating the curriculum and the program of the current campuses. The
school leader and instructional coach will be responsible for carrying the current curriculum and
programs to recruited teachers and office staff and they will continue providing instructional
guidance and support year round. Formal and informal professional development for both
returning and new staff will be required and be focused on schools mission, vision, curriculums and
developing programs. This will be developed and organized by the Chief Academic Officer,
Instructional Coaches, Site Directors, and multi school collaboration to ensure student success and
academic achievement.

(8) What systems are in place in your leadership team structure to ensure redundancies
in knowledge and skill?

As we continue to grow, our CASLV administrative team also grows. We are recruiting additional
members to our central office team with high education and experienced backgrounds. We are
training all team members first for school mission, vision, curriculum, programs and expectations.
Then team members continue to attend city, state and nation wide conferences and professional
development programs to keep up with the ongoing developments. The Executive Director and
Governing Board are also working on additional options of reimbursing the cost of admin team’s
professional development courses.

LEADERSHIP FOR EXPANSION

(1) Describe the operator’s current or planned process for recruiting and training
potential network leaders. Explain how you have developed or plan to establish a pipeline of
potential leaders for the network as a whole. If known, identify candidates already in the
pipeline for future positions.

As previously done at already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and
teachers at current schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the
educational program.

The central office will supervise every step of getting the new Henderson campus up and running as
well as program implementation. CASLV has a proven replication model at multiple locations in
Nevada. There will be formal and informal systems that will prepare leaders for their
responsibilities. School leaders and the central office will hold weekly meetings to collaborate and
support continued growth and program expansion. There will be a thorough professional
development program that will be incorporated to ensure alignment and collaboration at all
campuses.
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(2) Identify the proposed regional director candidate, if applicable, and explain why this
individual is qualified to lead the expansion of the organization (provide a resume as
Attachment 15). Summarize the proposed leader’s academic and organizational leadership
record. Provide specific evidence that demonstrates capacity to design, launch, and manage a
high-performing charter school network.

(a) If aregional director candidate has not yet been identified,

provide the job description (as Attachment 15) or qualifications and discuss the
timeline, criteria, and recruiting and selection process for hiring the regional

director. Note: It is strongly encouraged that schools proposing to open new
campuses in the 2017-18 school year, identify the regional leader (Regional
Director, Executive Director, etc.) in the proposal. The SPCSA reserves the right
to require schools which do not have network leadership and support position
candidates identified to defer opening new campuses until the 2017-18 school
year and to add additional criteria to the pre-opening requirements for such

campuses.

This is not applicable to CASLV

STAFFING

(1) Complete the following table indicating projected staffing needs for the proposed
campuses over the next six years. Schools should also complete the second table outlining
projected staffing needs for the entire network over the next six years. Include full-time staff
and contract support that serve the network 50% or more. Change or add functions and titles
and add or delete rows as needed to reflect organizational plans.

Proposed New Campus(es)

Year | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23

Management Organization Positions
[specify] N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total Back-Office FTEs 0 0 0 0 0 0
School Staff
Principals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Dean of Academics 1 1 1 1 1 1
Dean of Students 1 1 1 1 1 1
Counselor 1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1

Test Coordinator
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I Classroom Teachers 45 45 45 45 45 45 I
| Front Office 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Total FTEs at School 52 52 52 52 52 52 |
Network
Year | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23
Number of elementary 4 4 4 4 4 4
schools
Number of middle 1 1 1 1 1 1
schools
Number of high schools 1 1 1 1 1 1
Total schools 6 6 6 6 6 6
Student enrollment 3393 3490 3565 3615 3640 3640
Management Organization Positions
Executive Director / CEO 1 1 1 1 1 1
Chief Academic Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
Chief Financial Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
Chief Talent Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
Chief Operations Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
Chief Growth Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
IT Manager 2 2 2 2 2 2
Purchasing Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1
Accounting Manager 2 2 2 2 2 2
Head Registrar 1 1 1 1 1 1
Book Keeper 1 1 1 1 1 1
Total Back-Office FTEs 13 13 13 13 13 13
Elementary School Staff
Principals 4 4 4 4 4 4
Assistant Principals 6 6 6 6 6 6
Counselor 3 3 3 3 3 3
Classroom Teachers 60 60 60 60 60 60
(Core Subjects)
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Classroom Teachers 20 20 20 20 20 20
(Specials)

Special Education 5 5 5 5 5 5
Teachers

ELL/TESOL Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2
Office 8 8 8 8 8 8
School Operations 2 2 2 2 2 2
Support Staff

Total FTEs at 110 110 110 110 110 110
Elementary Schools

Middle School Staff

Principals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Assistant Principals 2 2 2 2 2 2
Counselor 1 1 1 1 1 1
Test Coordinator 1 1 1 1 1 1
Classroom Teachers 34 34 34 34 34 34
(Core Subjects)

Classroom Teachers 10 10 10 10 10 10
(Specials)

Special Education 2 2 2 2 2 2
Teachers

ELL/TESOL Teachers 1 1 1 1 1 1
Office 2 2 2 2 2 2
School Operations 1 1 1 1 1 1
Support Staff

Total FTEs at Middle 55 55 55 55 55 55
Schools

High School Staff

Principals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Assistant Principals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Deans 2 2 2 2 2 2
Counselor 1 1 1 1 1 1
College Advisor 1 1 1 1 1 1
Test Coordinator 1 1 1 1 1 1
Classroom Teachers 34 34 34 34 34 34
(Core Subjects)

Classroom Teachers 10 10 10 10 10 10
(Specials)

Special Education 2 2 2 2 2 2
Teachers

ELL/TESOL Teachers 1 1 1 1 1 1
Office 2 2 2 2 2 2
School Operations 1 1 1 1 1 1
Support Staff
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Total FTEs at High 57 57 57 57 57 57
Schools
| Total Network FTEs 222 222 222 222 222 222 |
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HUMAN CAPITAL STRATEGY

Describe your strategy, plans, and timeline for recruiting and hiring teachers for a multi-site
charter school. Explain key selection criteria and any special considerations relevant to your school
design. Note: schools with strong track records of academic success, as determined by the Department
of Education, are eligible to waive teacher licensure requirements for all teachers except for special
education and ELL professionals as long as they meet all other federal and state requirements.
Maintaining such a waiver is contingent on the school continuing to achieve at the 3 Star level or
higher (or equivalent) on the statewide system of accountability. Please refer to Section 46 of SB509
(2015 session) for additional information.

(1) Recruitment: Identify whether recruitment will be managed at the campus or
network level. Identify key partnerships and/or sources the operator will rely upon of teachers
and leaders. Identify the process the operator will rely upon to identify and develop high-
quality leaders and high-quality teachers.

Teacher recruitment is based on strong academic preparation, professional competence,
intellectual rigor, emotional maturity, enthusiastic professional attitude, knowledge of instructional
practices, and ability to contribute to the furtherance of the school's educational goals. In doing so,
the following criteria are used:

e CASLV employs properly licensed teachers under The Nevada Department of Education,
Office of Educator Licensure

e CASLV adheres to the provisions of NCLB Act and its waivers. CASLV teachers will be highly
qualified in the core courses taught

e Teachers will possess the necessary technology skills to implement the educational
program, manage the school website, communicate with parents through our School
Information System, and use e-mail tools

e Teachers will abide by our staff handbook and constitute role models for our students and
school communities

CASLV central office will set up a hiring committee in charge of interviewing teacher candidates.
The hiring committee will consist of the school director, the department head of the relevant
subject, an instructional coach and a teacher of the relevant subject. The interview process includes
a sample lesson through which prospective teachers’ classroom management skills and subject
competency are observed. In addition, teachers’ technology and computer skills are put to test in a
session. CASLV’s years of success in hiring qualified teachers has proven that this process is very
effective in recruiting the best talents.
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Hiring Schedule

CASLV Central office will hire the Principal at least three months prior to the school’s
commencement. Preferably, principal will have experience in teaching science and/or technology,
and in school administration.

In order to recruit new staff, open positions will be advertised frequently visited nationwide
websites such as  www.TEACHERS-TEACHERS.com, @ www.EDJOIN.org, LinkedIn.com,
www.careerbuilder.org, and in local newspapers. CASLV attends and hosts local education career
fairs to reach out the best candidates and referrals from CASLV staff and parents will also be taken
into consideration.

The hiring committee will conduct interviews during the months of March through August to hire
the teachers. The hiring committee will consider the school’s mission and the target student
population in selecting the most qualified teachers for the positions available.

(2) Leadership Pipeline: Discuss the specific measures and timelines the organization
will employ to identify and develop organizational and school leaders. For example, explain:

e How the school plans to identify leadership internally and externally;

e Who will be responsible for hiring leaders;

e Formal and informal systems that will prepare leaders for their responsibilities;
e The school’s philosophy regarding internal promotions;

e The timing for identifying leaders in relation to the launch of a new campus; and,

e Internal or external leadership training programs.

As previously done at already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and
teachers at current schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the
educational program.

The central office will supervise every step of the program implementation at the new Henderson
campus. CASLV has a proven replication model at multiple locations in Nevada. There will be
formal and informal systems that will prepare leaders for their responsibilities. School leaders and
the central office will hold weekly meetings to oversee the entire replication process. There will be
a thorough professional development program that will be incorporated to ensure alignment and
collaboration at all campuses.

47


http://www.teachers-teachers.com/
http://www.edjoin.org/

(3) Professional Development: Identify the school’s plan to meet professional
development needs. Include whether professional development will be managed at the school
or network level and how new campuses will be added to existing professional development.
Also identify the method the school will use to determine the effectiveness of professional
development.

CASLV teachers are key people in carrying out the mission, vision and goal of the school and
therefore at the forefront of developing and maintain the school culture over the years. The
teaching staff is supported through a number of means to help them grow and perform well. CASLV
teacher professional development programs:

Integrate with school goals to improve education;

Guided by a coherent long-term plan;

Driven by disaggregated data on student outcomes;

Designed according to teacher-identified needs;

Primarily school-based;

Provide a strong foundation in subject content and methods of teaching;
Informed by research on teaching and learning;

Designed around collaborative problem-solving;

Enable teachers to work with colleagues, in and beyond their school building;
Continuous and ongoing, providing follow-up support for further learning;
Incorporate principles of adult learning with sufficient time and other resources;
Evaluated ultimately on the basis of its impact on teacher effectiveness and student learning

Throughout the academic year, the teachers are exposed to many professional development
practices and programs as below:

e Summer In - Service Programs

e Induction Programs

e Mentorship Programs

e (lass Observations and Conferences

e Personal Growth and Improvement Plans

e Personal Need Based Workshops and Trainings
e Goal Setting with Coaches
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e School Improvement Plans Based Workshops
e Summative Performance Reviews

e Peer Observations

e Weekly Reflections

e Walkthroughs

e Wrap-up Meetings

e Summer Institutes and Workshops

e (lass Observations and Conferences

The core components of professional development include in-house and outside training activities.
The in-house professional development consists of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs)
meeting at school bi-weekly to discuss teaching practice, peer mentoring through peer observation
to improve teaching practice, department level meetings to oversee the consistency and coherency
in teaching and learning, and professional development days, a minimum of 10 days to build a
learning culture at school. The outside professional development days include attending training
events such as conferences.

Every academic school year starts with an extensive in-service program consisting of orientations
for new staff, required annual trainings and workshops for school programs. There will be 5 days of
in-services just before the school opens in academic year. New teachers will go through additional
trainings. The induction program will consist of the following trainings and sessions:

General School-wide Expectations and Non-negotiables,

Personnel Handbook and Benefit Programs,

Internal and External Communication

Teacher Performance and Support Programs

School-Wide Academic Goals, State and NWEA MAP Tests

Academic Policies and Practices

Master Calendar, Daily Schedules, Syllabi, Lesson Structures and Annual Plans
Professional Learning Communities, Staff Meetings, Grade and Department Chair duties
SIS use, Teacher Portal Network, Computers and E-mail System

Positive Behavioral Support System, Incentive and Recognition Programs

Supervision Duties and Responsibilities
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8.

9.

e Emergency and Safety Plans
e Annual Sexual Harassment and Bullying Prevention Trainings
e (Child Abuse and Neglect Training

e Special Education and Section 504 Training

New teachers will go over additional training and workshops to orient to the policies, practices, and
procedures of the school. Mentor teachers will provide personal and professional support to the
new teachers.

(4) Performance Evaluations and Retention: [dentify the school’s approach to staff
performance evaluations. Identify how frequently the organization plans to: evaluate teachers,
campus administrators, and network leaders and staff, who will evaluate whom, and how the
organization plans to retain high-performing teachers and administrators?

CASLV firmly believes that teacher quality is the most important variable in increasing student
achievement. At CASLV, cumulative teacher evaluation protocols are implemented and recorded
using an online tool. The annual and cumulative evaluation is based on multiple measures including
formal and informal observations, classroom artifacts, professional contributions, and a major piece
on student achievement and growth. A panel of observers including the key admin team takes part
in recording and finalizing each evaluation. The evaluations span a definite period of time and are
based on several performance categories. This evaluation model is based on current, best practices
and national research findings. The system will have the following performance components:

Relationship with Students
Classroom Management
Instructional Skills

Proficiency In Instruction

Student Achievement

School Improvement Programs
Extra-Curricular Activities

Personal Qualities And Competencies

Requested Documents/Materials/Duties

10. Credentialing And Experience
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(5) Compensation: Explain the board’s compensation strategy and salary ranges for
network and school level staff. Discuss how the compensation structure enables the
organization to attract and retain high quality staff and describe any incentive structures such
as bonuses or merit pay. Compare the proposed salary ranges to those in other organizations,
charter schools and local districts, as applicable.

Historically, the teacher retention rate at CASLV has been about 70%. The following incentives are
offered by CASLV in order to maintain high levels of teacher retention.

e Highly competitive salary

e Public Employee Retirement System contribution
e Health, dental and life insurance

e Personal and sick days

e Small classes, low teacher-student ratio

e Friendly environment

e Available instructional technology

CASLV is committed to offer highly competitive wages in order to retain its best faculty and staff.
Benefit package includes one of the best healthcare coverage in the region with low co-payments,
large physicians’ network, zero or minimal hospitalization fees, dental care coverage and more. In
addition, CASLV offers Public Employee Retirement System contributions. Moreover, we find that
small classes and low teacher-student ratio play an important role in retaining our best faculty.
Teachers tend to express higher levels of satisfaction when the number of students in classrooms is
relatively low. The average class size (in 2014-2015) at CASLV is 21 which is a major source of
attraction for teachers.

SCALE STRATEGY

(1) Describe the steps that you will take to scale your model to new sites, including the
people involved and the resources contributed both by the founding campus and the new
campuses.

@Proven educational program: The same successful educational model with all aspects will
be implemented at the new location. Feedback from school administration, parents and
students and later from the school staff may cause other site-specific programs to develop.

@CASLYV Central Office support and Supervision: CASLV central office will supervise every
step of the startup and program implementation at the new location. CASLV has a proven
replication model at multiple locations in Nevada.

@Seed administrators and teachers to ensure successful replication: As previously done at
already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and teachers at
current schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the educational
program at our new campus. In order to facilitate a smooth transition and long-term
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sustainability, the central office will transfer some of its core teaching faculty and
administration to the new campus. This strategy has been successful in effectively
instituting CASLV’s proven educational model.

@®Proven human resources management: CASLV central office will handle teacher
recruitment for the new campus.

@Professional training: A thorough professional development program will be incorporated.

@Weekly coordination meetings: School principals and central office staff will hold weekly
meetings to oversee the entire replication process.

(2) Ifthe schoolis affiliated with a CMO or EMO that operates schools in other states,
compare your efforts to scale operations to Nevada to past scale efforts in other states.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(3) Describe your plan for embedding the fundamental features of the model that you
described in

As previously done at already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and
teachers at current schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the
educational program at our new campus. In order to facilitate a smooth transition and long-term
sustainability, the central office will transfer some of its core teaching faculty and administration to
the new campus. This strategy has been successful in effectively instituting CASLV’s proven
educational model.

(4) Explain any shared or centralized support services the management organization
will provide to campuses in Nevada.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(5) Describe the structure, specific services to be provided, the cost of those services,
how costs will be allocated among campuses, and specific service goals of the network. Please
also include how the school will measure successful delivery of these services. In the case of a
charter management organization proposing to contract with an education management
organization, service goals should be outlined in the term sheet and draft contract provided
later in Attachment 19. Note that Nevada law allows charter schools to contract for the
management or operation of the school with either a for-profit or nonprofit education
management organization.

Please see Attachment 19.
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(6) Using the table below, summarize the division school- and organization-level
decision-making responsibilities as they relate to key functions, including curriculum,
professional development, culture, staffing, etc. This division of responsibilities will be
evaluated both in the context of Nevada law and regulation and best organizational and
authorizing practices nationally.

Mgmt Org Network Leader Board Decision-
Function Decision- Decision-Making Making Ca'?".’“s Lead_e g
. Decision-Making
Making
Performance Executive N/A Governing Board Principal/
Goals Director Instructional Coach
(ED)/Chief
Academic Officer
(CAO)
Curriculum ED/CAO N/A Governing Board Principal/
Instructional Coach
Professional ED/CAO N/A Governing Board Principal/
Development Instructional Coach
Data Mgmt & ED/CAO N/A Governing Board Principal/
Interim Instructional Coach
Assessments
Promotion ED/CAO N/A Governing Board Principal/
Criteria Instructional Coach
Culture Central Office N/A Governing Board School
Administrative
Team
Budgeting, ED/CFO N/A Governing Board Principal /Registrar
Finance, and
Accounting
Student Central Office N/A Governing Board School
Recruitment Administrative
Team
School Staff ED/HR N/A Governing Board School
Recruitment & Administrative
Hiring Team
HR Services ED/CFO/HR N/A Governing Board Principal
(payroll,

benefits, etc.)
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Development/ Central Office N/A Governing Board School

Fundraising Administrative
Team

Community Central Office N/A Governing Board School

Relations Administrative
Team

IT ED/IT Manager N/A Governing Board Principal

Facilities Mgmt | ED/Facilities N/A Governing Board Principal

Manager

Vendor ED/CFO N/A Governing Board Principal

Management /

Procurement

Student Support | Central Office N/A Governing Board School

Services Administrative
Team

Other Central Office N/A Governing Board School

operational Administrative

services, if Team

applicable

STUDENT RECRUITMENT AND ENROLLMENT

Like all public schools, public charter schools must be open to any such child, regardless of that child’s
race, gender, citizenship, or need for accommodations or special education services. Thus, recruitment
and enrollment practices should demonstrate a commitment to providing all students equal
opportunity to attend the school, and help schools avoid even the appearance of creating barriers to
entry for eligible students.

(1) Explain the plan for student recruitment and marketing for the new campuses that
will provide equal access to interested students and families, including how the school will
comply with the requirements of SB208 (2015 session). Specifically, describe the plan for
outreach to: families in poverty; academically low-achieving students; students with
disabilities; and other youth at risk of academic failure. For schools which are giving one or
more statutorily permissible admissions preferences pursuant to NRS 386.580 or SB390 (2015
session), please indicate if you plan to focus your student recruitment efforts in specific
communities or selected attendance areas.

To meet the SPSCA’s criteria CASLV will implement the following. First, the National School Lunch
Program which is likely to attract students who receive free and reduced lunch and would factor
into their decision to attend CASLV. We will also implement an intense grassroots campaign that
reaches students and families in non-traditional means that are likely to educate families about
CASLV and the charter application process, who would normally not know about these options.
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Finally we will send mailers out to the surrounding area to inform families that we will have more
openings for our Henderson campus.

(2) Provide a detailed discussion of the school’s track record in recruiting and retaining
students that reflect the ethnic, socioeconomic, linguistic, and special needs diversity of the
current charter school and each campus to at least the level reflected by the attendance zones
where the charter school will operate facilities before approving the proposal. Please provide
the school’s past enrollment and retention performance for all years since the inception of the
school broken out by race, ethnicity, language other than English, disability and 504 status, and
eligibility for free and reduced priced lunch both as a school and in comparison to the school’s
current zoned schools.

CASLV is committed to recruiting and retaining a diverse population of students that reflects the
demographic profile of its campuses’ surrounding school zones as evident by our current campuses
and opening of our new campus out on Nellis Air Force Base.

(3) Detail how the school’s programmatic, recruitment, and enrollment strategies are
designed to recruit, enroll, and retain a student population that is representative of the zoned
schools which prospective students would otherwise attend in the community. Schools which
do not currently represent their communities based on the data identified above and are not
serving an at-risk population are expected to add several of the following programmatic,
recruitment, and enrollment strategies to merit approval: (1) participation in state-funded
pre-K programs (including federal pre-K) for low-income students; (2) substituting online and
social media marketing which advantages affluent and well-connected populations with a
community-based, grassroots campaign which targets high need populations in the
community, including aggressive door-to-door outreach and publishing marketing materials in
each language which is spoken by more than 5 percent of families within each attendance
zone; (3) an explicit commitment to serving a broad continuum of students with disabilities
and the expansion of programs, including cluster programs or consortia, to meet the needs of a
broad spectrum of student needs; (4) a weighted lottery2 which provides additional
opportunities for specific target populations to be admitted to the school in a manner
consistent with state and federal law; and (5) other enrollment policies and strategies which
have had a demonstrated track record of success in dramatically increasing the diversity of
student populations in a high achieving charter school to at least the poverty, disability, and
ELL profile of the zoned school.

2 See http://www.publiccharters.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/CCSP-Weighted-Lottery-Policy-factsheet-
updated-GS-8-27-2015-2.pdf for one possible approach in this evolving area of charter school policy.
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To meet the SPSCA’s criteria CASLV will implement the following. First, the National School Lunch
Program which is likely to attract students who receive free and reduced lunch and would factor
into their decision to attend CASLV. We will also implement an intense grassroots campaign that
reaches students and families in non-traditional means that are likely to educate families about
CASLV and the charter application process, who would normally not know about these options.
Finally we will send mailers out to the surrounding area to inform families that we will have more
openings for our Henderson campus.

(4) Whatis the enrollment calendar for both the first year of operation and subsequent
years of operation? Please specify the dates on which the school will begin accepting
applications and how long the enrollment window will last prior to conducting a lottery.

Applications open window for the next school year is November 1st to February 28t All
applications that are submitted between November 1st and noon of February 28th, will be included
in the lottery. The lottery will the first business day after the application closes. Any applications
received after February 28t will be subject to an additional lottery if applicable.

Once the lottery takes place CASLV will mail the lottery results to the address provided on the
online application within 7 days of the lottery. This letter will provide further information for you
based on the results of the lottery.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas School shall not base admission on intellectual ability,
measures of achievement or aptitude, athletic ability, or discriminate on the basis of ethnicity, race,
religion or disability.

School receives all kindergarten enrollment applications for the following school year during the
announced enrollment window which will be determined by the school administration. The
enrollment window applies only to kindergarten; for all other grades, if the grade is not yet full, a
pupil must be enrolled and receive instruction at the time the pupil seeks enrollment; if the grade is
full, the pupil’s name is placed on an enrollment waiting list and chosen from the waiting list by
lottery as soon as a space becomes available in the grade. Coral Academy will conduct a public
lottery on a pre- announced lottery date if school has more applications than open spaces available
in each grade level.

The lottery will consist of the names of all students whose parents have filled and returned the
application form to the school registrar either as paper records or electronically. Once the
enrollment has reached capacity, students will be put onto a waiting list. An exception to this is
kindergarten enrollment: if more pupils apply than the building can accommodate, all names are
subject to the lottery. Once students are on a waiting list they will receive an announcement
notifying them of their status and the procedures for holding the lottery. They will be asked to
confirm whether or not their child(ren) should be left on the enrollment “Wait List”.

For each grade, those names will be drawn from a “jar” or sorted by a software application to put
the waiting list in a random order. The students then will be accepted in that order as long as there
are available spots. The rest of the students will remain in the waiting list at their randomly
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determined position. Any new application will be added to this waiting list without a wait list
number until all the names in the original waitlist are used. Another lottery will be conducted to
determine the waitlist order of the applicants that have applied later.

(5) What enrollment targets will you set and who will be responsible for monitoring
progress towards these targets? What is your target re-enrollment rate for each year? How did
you come to this determination? What are the minimum, planned, and maximum projected
enrollment at each grade level? Outline specific targets in the table below.

The plan for the new Henderson/Henderson-Adjacent campus would be to have a separate High
School running from grades 8th through 12th, with approximately 750 students, being fed into
from our existing campuses. Both Tamarus (currently K-2) and Windmill (currently 3-5) would be
K-3 campuses and our Sandy Ridge campus (currently 6-12) will be a 4th-7th grade campus.

What systems will you put in place to ensure that staff members are knowledgeable about all legal
enrollment requirements pertaining to special populations and the servicing of particular
populations of students and can answer parent inquiries in a manner consistent with the letter and
spirit of state and federal law?

All site registrars are trained/re-trained yearly on the enrollment process and requirements. Once
the student is accepted through the lottery process they completed the enrollment packet. If a
student has a part of a special populations (IEP/504) then the registrar completes enrollment and
notifies either the Special Education Coordinator or 504 Coordinator to review the student’s file
and meet with the family to make an academic support plan.

(6) Describe the student recruitment plan once your school has opened. In what ways
will it be different than your pre-opening year, in terms of the strategies, activities, events,
persons responsible and milestones? How will the school backfill vacancies in existing grades?

This Henderson area expansion will serve our current students as well as an additional 750 new
students. Once the new Henderson campus has been approved, postcards to the homes within a 2
mile radius of the school (per SB 208, at least 45 days before the lottery date) will be sent out to
families in order to initially place students in the first year. Ongoing enrollment for subsequent
years will follow our current model where current students advance to the next grade each year.
The added seats will be filled with our extensive waitlist, so filling the new seats will not be difficult.
Recruitment at the new Henderson campus will mirror the procedures we have in place at our
existing campuses and will include many events such as - Math Matters, Social Media, Open Houses,
Family Nights, Festivals, STEM Expo, and other events that the central office incorporates.
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(7)

Complete the following tables for the proposed school to open in 2017-18. Schools
applying for multiple campuses must complete enrollment summary tables for each school

campus opening in fall 2016 and fall 2017.

(a) Minimum Enrollment (Must Correspond to Break Even

Budget Scenario Assumptions discussed in budget narrative)

Grade Number of Students
Level 2017-18 | 2018- 2019- 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23
19 20

Pre-K N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
K 360 360 360 360 360 360
1 360 360 360 360 360 360
2 360 360 360 360 360 360
3 360 360 360 360 360 360
4 200 400 400 400 400 400
5 400 400 400 400 400 400
6 200 200 200 200 200 200
7 200 200 200 200 200 200
8 200 200 200 200 200 200
9 175 200 200 200 200 200
10 150 175 200 200 200 200
11 125 150 175 200 200 200
12 100 125 150 175 200 200
Total 3390 3490 3565 3615 3640 3640
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of the planned enrollment described in subsection b will necessitate a charter

(b) Maximum Enrollment (Note: Enrolling more than 10 percent

amendment)

Grade Number of Students

Level 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23
Pre-K N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
K 360 360 360 360 360 360
1 360 360 360 360 360 360
2 360 360 360 360 360 360
3 360 360 360 360 360 360
4 200 400 400 400 400 400
5 400 400 400 400 400 400
6 200 200 200 200 200 200
7 200 200 200 200 200 200
8 200 200 200 200 200 200
9 175 200 200 200 200 200
10 150 175 200 200 200 200
11 125 150 175 200 200 200
12 100 125 150 175 200 200
Total 3390 3490 3565 3615 3640 3640
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(8) Describe the rationale for the number of students and grade levels served in year
one and the basis for the growth plan illustrated above. Note: particular weight will be given
to rationales which prioritize academic achievement over financial returns.

(a) Schools proposing to open new elementary facilities with
more than 400 students or more than 3 grade levels should identify and discuss
the specific elements of the school model and organizational track record
detailed throughout the request that demonstrate that the proposed expansion
model is designed to compensate for the known organizational and academic
challenges which accompany serving larger student bodies and multiple grade
levels in a startup environment.

The projected opening of the new Henderson campus will align with our current schools and be
able to support some of the huge demand we have. Currently we are overcrowded at our Windmill
campus and are also in need of breaking up our High School and Middle School students to better
support their needs. By having Windmill and Tamarus both be K-3 campuses, we will eliminate the
overcrowding at Windmill and better align our current section of students.

(b) Schools proposing to add a new middle or high school facility
with more than 200 newly enrolled students in sixth grade or above or more
than 2 grades above fifth grade should identify and discuss the specific elements
of the school model and organizational track record detailed throughout the
request that demonstrate that the proposed expansion model is designed to
compensate for the known organizational and academic challenges which
accompany serving larger student bodies and multiple grade levels in a start-up
environment.

BOARD GOVERNANCE

(1) Explain the governance philosophy that will guide the board, including the nature
and extent of involvement of key stakeholder groups.

The Governing Body shall conduct or direct the affairs of the public charter school and exercise its
powers, subject to the limitations of Nevada public charter school law, applicable state and federal
laws, the executed charter, and these Rules. The Governing Body may delegate the management of
the activities of the public charter school to others, so long as the affairs of the public charter school
are managed, and its powers are exercised, under the Governing Body's ultimate
jurisdiction. Without limiting the generality of the powers hereby granted to the Governing Body,
but subject to the same limitations, the Governing Body shall have all the powers enumerated in
these Rules, and the following specific powers:

a. To elect and remove Governing Members;
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b. To select and remove Officers, agents and employees of the public charter school; to
prescribe powers and duties for them; and to fix their compensation;

c. To enter into contracts, leases and other agreements which are, in the Governing Body's
judgment, necessary or desirable in obtaining the purposes of promoting the interests of the
public charter school;

d. To act as trustee under any trust incidental to the public charter school's purposes, and to
receive, hold, administer, exchange and expend funds and property subject to such a trust;

e. To acquire real or personal property, by purchase, exchange, lease, gift, devise, bequest,
or otherwise, and to hold, improve, lease, sublease, mortgage, transfer in trust, encumber,
convey or otherwise dispose of such property;

f. To borrow money, incur debt, and to execute and deliver promissory notes, bonds,
debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations and other evidences of debt
and securities;

g. To lend money received only from private sources and to accept conditional or
unconditional promissory notes therefore, whether interest or non-interest bearing, or
secured or unsecured;

h. To indemnify and maintain insurance on behalf of any of its Governing Members, officers,
employees, sponsor or agents for liability asserted against or incurred by such person in
such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, subject to the provisions of
Nevada law and the limitations noted in these Rules,

i. To develop and approve the annual budget and financial plan which shall be monitored
and adjusted as necessary; to submit a final budget to the state pursuant to statute and
resolutions

J. To cause an annual inspection or audit of the accounts of the School, as well as any other
audits required by law;

k. To ensure ongoing evaluation of the School and provide public accountability; and

[. To establish and approve all major educational and operational rules, policies and

procedures.

(2) Describe the governance structure of the expanded school when the board is fully

composed, including the primary roles of the governing board and how it will interact with the
principal/head of school and any advisory bodies. Explain how this governance structure and
composition will help ensure that a) the school will be an educational and operational success;
b) the board will evaluate the success of the school and school leader; and c) there will be
active and effective representation of key stakeholders, including parents.

Since this is an extension of the model we already have in place, the board make-up will remain the

same.
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(3) Please submit board member information for current and proposed new board
members in the provided Board Member Template (provide as part of Attachment 17). Please
note that at least 75% of new board members for SY 2016-2017 must be identified at the time
of the submission of the expansion request.

Please see attachment 17

(4) Provide, as part of Attachment 17, a completed and signed Board Member
Information Sheet for each proposed new Board member as well as the board member’s
resume and a thoughtful biographical summary outlining the particular qualifications of each
board member as relates to both service on a public charter school board and to the specific
needs of this particular charter school.

This is not applicable for our current expansion.

(5) Describe the board’s ethical standards and procedures for identifying and
addressing conflicts of interest. Will the board be making any changes to its Bylaws, Code of
Ethics, and Conflict of Interest policy in light of the expansion or new statutory or regulatory
requirements, including SB5097?

No person shall serve on the Governing Board that has a conflict of interest, actual or perceived, in
the school. A conflict of interest occurs when a governing body member acts on a school matter that
could benefit or harm him or immediate family members personally. An "interested person" is: (1)
any person or spouse currently being compensated by the school for services rendered to it within
the previous 12 months, as a full-time or part-time employee, (2) contractors with the school or
their spouse, (3) vendors with the school, or (4) lessors of the school facility or other property used
by the school.

(6) Identify any existing, proposed, or contemplated relationships that could pose
actual or perceived conflicts if the expansion request is approved, including but not limited to
any connections with landlords, developers, vendors, or others which will receive
compensation or other consideration directly or indirectly from the school; discuss specific
steps that the board will take to avoid any actual conflicts and to mitigate perceived conflicts,
including the new requirements of a Code of Ethics in SB509 and the nepotism regulations
applicable to charter schools.

This is not applicable to CASLV’s expansion
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(7) Describe the board’s history since inception, including a discussion of turnover.
How does the board proactively manage governance and succession? How does the board
propose to significantly exceed the statutory minimum criteria for board qualifications in light
of the complexity and risk associated with governing a large, multi-site charter school
network? What elements, characteristics, and behaviors of specific, analogous high performing
multi-site charter school networks, non-profit social enterprises, and for-profit organizations
with similar levels of revenues or complexity has the governing body elected to emulate in its
governance and in the operation of the school? Describe concrete and specific plans for
increasing the capacity of the governing board. How will the board continue expand and
develop over time?

CASLV was originally set up to be similar to the existing Coral Academy of Reno. Two founding
board members of CASLV still serve on the CASLV board today. As CASLV grew, so did positions
and needs of the board. Some of the expansions of the CASLV board over the last several years have
included creating a seat for a parent representative to help connect the board to the concerns of
parents, and having representation from educators from K-12 or the college setting.. The board’s
goals have been to balance new membership, new ideas, and community members with the
institutional memory and mission of CASLV. With the addition of new campuses the board will
consider adding a second parent representative. Board meetings are held at each of the campuses
to give families the opportunity to attend meetings, as well as to familiarize itself with each campus
and school programs.

As CASLV has grown, the board has put more structure into place, for the hiring of executive staff;
and the evaluation of executive staff; as well as the data the board sees annually to monitor the
achievement and development of the school and each campus.

(8) Describe the kinds of orientation or training new board members will receive and
what kinds of ongoing development existing board members will receive. The plan for training
and development should include a timetable, specific topics to be addressed, and requirements
for participation.

Orientation is an area we need to improve upon and it should be placed upon a future agenda item
to come up with an orientation outline. On the other hand we give access to each board member to
the website of BoardOnTrack.com to get online training. Board members are also attending to the
annual Nevada Association of School Boards (NASB) conferences. Our board members will also
attend Attorney General’s office’s new board member training. Nevada Open Meeting Law Manual
has been provided to each board member.

(9) Describe the working relationship between the board and staff (academic,
operations, and financial) and the working relationship between the board, staff, and any
education management organization. Outline the regular reports that will be provided to the
board, their frequency, and who will provide them. This may include financial, operational,
and/or or academic reports.

The board requires regular executive director updates, combined with site director reports and
presentations. As we continue to grow our administrative team, additional reports and information
will need to be provided to the board.
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(10) Describe any advisory bodies or councils to be formed, including the roles and
duties of those bodies. Describe the planned composition; the strategy for achieving that
composition; the role of parents, students, and teachers (if applicable); and the reporting
structure as it relates to the school’s governing body and leadership.

The Governing Body may create committees for any purpose, the President of the Governing Body
shall appoint members to and designate the chairs of such committees. A Board Committee will
consist of not fewer than two Governing Members, who shall serve at the pleasure of the President,
except that any executive committee shall comprise not fewer than five Governing Members.

a. Standing Committee. The Governing Body shall have a standing Finance Committee,
chaired by the Treasurer. Additional members of the Finance Committee will be appointed
by the President.

b. Authority of Board Committees. The President may delegate to a Board committee any of
the authority of the Board, except with respect to:

1. The election of Members;

11. Filling vacancies on the Governing Body or any committee which has the
authority of the Governing Body;

111. The fixing of Governing Member compensation for serving on the Board or on
any committee;

iv. The approval of any self-dealing transaction, as defined by the Nevada law.
v. The amendment or repeal of these Rules or the adoption of new Rules; and

vi. The appointment of other committees of the Governing Body, or the members of
the committees.

c. Procedures of Committees. The Governing Body may prescribe the manner in which the
proceedings of any Board Committee are to be conducted. In the absence of such
prescription, a Board Committee may prescribe the manner of conducting its proceedings,
except that the regular and special meetings of the Committee are governed by the
provisions of these.

(11) Explain the process that the school will follow should a parent or student have an
objection to a governing board policy or decision, administrative procedure, or practice at the
school.

A parent or student can appeal to Nevada Charter School Authority at any time. If they appeal to the
school’s administration, then school administration takes it to the Board and Board discusses it at
the closest meeting.
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(12) What goals will be established for the board and how will board members be held
accountable? Outline the key expectations for board members in the table below. What
actions would trigger removal from the board and under what process?

A board member can be removed from the board if he or she is convicted of any crime or a board
member is consistently absent in board meetings (e.g. 3 board meetings in a row)

Goal Purpose Outcome Measure

Oversee academic |Ensure that students are provided witha |CASLV keeps the school test
achievement challenging education scores above the state and
national averages

Oversee financial |Ensure that the school spends money Account audit
stability aligned with its mission by standard
accounting regulations

Set goals for Ensure that the school increases its Student enrollment targets being
expansion student population in the new sites as met
planned

INCUBATION YEAR DEVELOPMENT

(1) Provide a detailed start-up plan as well as specific organizational goals for the
planning year (SY 2015-2016) to ensure that the school is ready for a successful launch in fall
2016. Using the template provided, outline key activities, responsible parties, and milestones
and submit as Attachment 18.

The new Henderson campus will be an extension of the CASLV model we already have in place. The
central office and current site directors will work closely with the new leadership at the new
campus to ensure that all milestones and activities are completed on time.

(2) Please describe the plans for leadership training and development of the selected
school leader during the incubation year prior to school opening and how these plans support
your year 0 goals. If partnering with an organization, please briefly describe the main
components of the training program.

CASLV has a proven replication model at multiple locations in Nevada. As previously done at
already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and teachers in current
schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the educational program at our
new Henderson campus. In order to facilitate a smooth transition and long-term sustainability, the
central office will transfer some of its core teaching faculty and administration to the new campus.
This strategy has been successful in effectively instituting CASLV’s proven educational model.
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(3) Explain who will work on a full-time or nearly full-time basis immediately following
assignment of a location to lead development of the school(s) and the plan to compensate
these individuals.

CASLV central office will supervise every step of the startup and program implementation at the
new location

SCHOOL MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

If the school does not intend to amend an existing management contract or enter into a new
management contract with a for-profit or non-profit education management organization (EMO),
please explain that this sub-section is “Not Applicable” and skip to the next sub-section.

(1) How and why was the EMO selected?
This is not applicable to CASLV.

(2) Explain whether the management organization will provide services to the charter
school as a whole or will it be assigned to provide specific services at an individual campus or
campuses or a particular program (e.g. a portfolio management governance model).

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(3) Describe the relationship between the school governing board and the service
provider, specifying how the governing board will monitor and evaluate the performance of
the service provider, the internal controls that will guide the relationship, and how the
governing board will ensure fulfillment of performance expectations.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(4) Disclose fully and provide an explanation of any existing or potential conflicts of
interest between the school governing board and proposed service provider or any affiliated
business entities, including, without limitation, any past or current employment, business or
familial relationship between any officer, employee, or agent of the proposed service provider
and any prospective employee of the charter school, a member of the committee to form a
charter school or the board of directors of the charter management organization, as applicable.

This is not applicable to CASLV.
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(5) Please provide the following in Attachment 19:

(a) A term sheet setting forth the proposed duration of the
contract; roles and responsibilities of the governing board, the school staff, and
the service provider; scope of services and resources to be provided by the EMO;
performance evaluation measures and mechanisms; detailed explanation of all
fees and compensation to be paid to the provider; financial controls and
oversight; methods of contract oversight and enforcement by the governing
board and/or school staff; investment disclosure; and conditions for renewal
and termination of the contract;

(b) A draft of the proposed management contract which
complies with NRS 386.562 and SB509 (2015 session) and all other applicable
laws and regulations;

(c) As an exhibit to the proposed management contract, a
crosswalk of the academic, financial, and organizational goals of the charter
school set forth in the SPCSA Charter School Performance Framework, including
the school’s mission-specific goals, and a clear identification of each of the
performance goals and expectations for the education management organization
related to each charter school goal. This will serve as the board’s primary
evaluative tool for the education management organization.

(d) Documentation of the service provider’s for-profit or non-
profit status and evidence that it is authorized to do business in Nevada.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(6) Provide a brief overview of the organization's history.

CASLV is a STEM-focused, college-prep public charter school that gives students in grades K-12 an
opportunity to achieve their full potentials. The mission of CASLV is to provide a safe, rigorous
college preparatory environment that promotes social responsibility and a culturally diverse
community dedicated to becoming lifelong learners bound for success. CASLV currently serves over
1,550 students across the valley, with more than 3,200 on its waiting list for 200 available spots.

CASLV’s stellar reputation, which speaks for itself, has only grown in magnitude since its inception.
Having started off as a replication model of Coral Academy of Science - Reno, which is a renowned
school in Northern Nevada, CASLV has raised the bar even higher by adding more components to its
already rigorous education programs. CASLV is accredited by the leading accreditation institution,
AdvancED.

CASLV’s faculty and staff are dedicated to challenging all students academically, instilling college

awareness at all grade levels, and motivating them towards STEM careers by providing the
necessary tools to help develop 21st century and leadership skills.
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(7) Listany and all charter revocations or surrenders, bankruptcies, school closures,
non-renewals, or shortened or conditional renewals for any of the schools managed by the
organization and provide explanations. For all such schools, please provide contact
information, including name, business mailing address, business telephone number—including
extension or direct line, and business email address, for the current leader of the school’s
authorizing office and a summary of the correspondence or discussions between members of
the governing body and this individual and other knowledgeable authorizer personnel
contacted. Include a summary of all performance issues related to each revocation, surrender,
bankruptcy, closure, non-renewal, or shorted or conditional renewal. Discuss the lessons
learned by the governing body based on this ongoing due diligence and how this research has
informed provisions that the governing body has required in the proposed management
agreement.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(8) Explain any performance deficits or compliance violations that have led to formal
authorizer intervention with any school managed by the organization. Provide details as to
how such deficiencies were resolved. For all such schools, please provide contact information,
including name, business mailing address, business telephone number—including extension or
direct line, and business email address, for the current leader of the school’s authorizing office
and all other authorizer personnel contacted. Include a summary of the correspondence or
discussions between members of the governing body and this individual and other
knowledgeable authorizer staff regarding all performance issues related to each non-renewal,
shortened or conditional renewal, or renegotiation or reduction in services. Discuss the
lessons learned by the governing body based on this ongoing due diligence and how this
research has informed provisions that the governing body has required in the proposed
management agreement.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(9) Listany and all management contract non-renewals, shortened or conditional
renewals, or renegotiations or reductions in services provided for any of the schools managed
by the organization and provide explanations. For all such schools which are still in operation,
please provide contact information, including name, legal home or business mailing address,
home or business telephone number, and personal or business email address, for the current
board chair office and all other board members and school personnel contacted. Include a
summary of the correspondence or discussions between members of the governing body and
this individual and other knowledgeable staff or board members regarding all performance
issues related to each non-renewal, shorted or conditional renewal, or renegotiation or
reduction in services. Discuss the lessons learned by the governing body based on this ongoing
due diligence and how this research has informed provisions that the governing body has
required in the proposed management agreement.

This is not applicable to CASLV.
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SERVICES

(1) Provide, as Attachment 20, a description of how the school leadership team will
support operational execution. Please provide narrative or evidence that illustrates the staffing
model, performance metrics, and the school’s plan for supporting all operational needs of the
school, including but not limited to those listed below. In this space and in the finances section,
demonstrate how you will fund the provision of these services.

(a) Transportation: Describe your plans for providing student
transportation. If the school will not provide transportation, please identify how
the school will ensure that this does serve as a barrier to enrollment or ongoing
attendance.

This is not applicable to CASLV.

(b) Food Service: Outline your plans for providing food service at
the school, including whether and how you will be your own school food
authority or will contract with another provider. If the school will not provide
food service, please identify how the school will ensure that this does serve as a
barrier to enrollment or ongoing attendance.

CASLV uses Wholesome Tummies & WT Café - www.wtcafe.com for their hot lunch provider. They
also supply lunches for FARM students.

(c) Facilities maintenance (including janitorial and landscape
maintenance)

The new Henderson campus will be included in the support we are already providing from the
Central Office.

(d) Safety and security (include any plans for onsite security
personnel)
The new Henderson campus will be included in the support we are already providing from the
Central Office.

(2) Technology: Outline the technology infrastructure and support mechanisms across
your school, staff, and teachers. Your outline should include but not be limited to reliable and
secure wide area networking, local area networking (e.g., wireless and cables), hardware (e.g.,
personal computing devices, servers, telephony, storage, routers, switches), technology
policies and procedures, device management, and end user support, including the management
of user rights and privileges.

Technology encompasses the tools and strategies for solving problems, using information,
increasing productivity and enhancing growth. CASLV’s goal is to help students live, learn and work
successfully and responsibly in an increasingly complex, technology-driven society. CASLV’s
technology standards will not only meet, but also exceed National Educational Technology
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Standards and Nevada State standards. In this regard, CASLV is committed to systematically
analyze and evaluate its technological arsenal to ensure they are up-to-date in a rapidly changing
global technological society.

CASLV’s technology update procedure is threefold: 1) research phase, 2) recommendation phase,
3) decision and approval phase.

Research Phase
Research phase involves multiple stages:

e Technology coordinators and IT managers attend annual state and nationwide technology-
bound and charter school conference. Technology coordinator also exchanges ideas with
the technology coordinators of other districts and charters.

e Every computer science teacher attends at least one technology-bound
workshop/conference each year to explore new instructional technologies.

e All academic departments hold end-of-year wrap up meetings where “utilizing modern
instructional technologies” are discussed and solicited to school administration. (February)

Recommendation Phase

Technology coordinator and computer science teachers make a list of recommendations of new
instructional technologies for the next academic year to Technology. (March)

Decision and Approval Phase

After thorough evaluation of all proposed recommendations on acquiring or updating instructional
technologies, final decision is made (April). Upon approval of the school budget, necessary orders
are placed in June to ensure timely delivery of equipment.

(3) Student Information Management: Timely communication of accurate student
information is critical for payments to schools, compliance, and performance
monitoring. Please describe how you will manage student information using the statewide
Infinite Campus system, and how you will build capacity around the use of the software in
order to independently maintain the system. Detail the staff members who will enter data
along with the project manager who will commit to trainings and regularly monitor student
information for accuracy.

Student information is entered as part of the enrollment process and overseen by our head
registrar and registrars at each campus.
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(4) Data Security: SPCSA charter schools record, generate and consume data that falls
under strict requirements for security, privacy, and retention (including FERPA and recent
legislation related to the protection of personally identifiable information (PII}). Describe the
systems and procedures you will implement in order to ensure you are compliant with these
obligations.

As is required by state and federal law, CASLV employees will protect the right of each student to
confidentiality. In the case of special education students, information regarding the eligibility and
placement, the IEP, program services, and social and emotional information about the student and
their family must be held in strict confidence. The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA) defines “confidential information” as personally identifiable information about a student
or a student's family which is not made publicly available because it is private in nature and has the
potential of causing harm or violating the privacy rights of the student or the student's family. This
includes the student’s name, name of parents and family, student’s address, social security number
or student number, and any personal characteristics that would make it possible to identify the
student.

Confidential information may only be shared with individuals who need the information to provide
services to the student or who have a legitimate educational interest for the information. A school
official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in
order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. School officials with compelling legitimate
educational interests include any teacher, school principal, administrator, school psychologist and
related service provider working with the student, substitute, assigned student teacher, teacher’s
aide, school board member, or other professional employed or contracted by the school to provide
education or educationally related services for the student, and the information is needed in order
to carry out his or her official duties regarding the student.

CASLV will inform the parents when the student’s personally identifiable information is no longer
needed to provide educational services to the pupil. A student's education records will be
maintained for the duration of his enrollment at the school. Student records will be maintained for
seven years after the student leaves CASLV.

After this period, the school will make reasonable efforts to inform the student's parents (or the
student, if the student has reached age 18) when education records are no longer needed to provide
educational services. If the parents or guardian wish to have a copy of the confidential records for
purposes of obtaining social security benefits or other services, they may requested a copy of the
confidential records prior to destruction. If a former student has become an adult (age 18 or older),
the notice of intent to destroy confidential records will be sent to him or her.

The Request for Destruction of Confidential Records form will be used as prior written notice to the
parents (or a former student who is now an adult) of the intent to destroy confidential special
education records.

CASLV will indefinitely retain a permanent record of each student’s name, address, telephone
number, grades, attendance, classes he attended, grades he completed and the year he completed
them. Upon the request of the parent of a pupil, or a former student who is now an adult, CASLV
will destroy any personally identifiable information, except the information previously listed in this
paragraph, which is no longer necessary to provide educational services.
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CASLV will not disclose personally identifiable information except as authorized by law. With the
exception of suspected child abuse or neglect reporting which has specific procedures, and
authorized persons, no person or outside agency may have access to the confidential records of any
special education student without first obtaining written, dated consent from the parent or eligible
student. This permission shall be for legitimate educational purposes only and shall be in effect for
one year. If continued contact is necessary new permission must be obtained.

CASLV may disclose the education records of a student without written consent of the parent or
eligible student. Circumstances where the release of records may occur include:

1. To school officials with a legitimate educational interest, including the student's special
education teacher, classroom teachers, substitutes, assigned student teachers; related
service interns, the school principal; the school counselor or social worker; school
administrators; School Board members; school psychologists and related service providers
working with the student; contract services providers, consultants, and others who are
hired by the school to provide services for the student; school clerical staff (for file
management purposes only); and teacher's aides under the direction and supervision of
licensed school personnel.

2. To authorized personnel of a school, school district, community college or institution of
higher learning in which a student seeks or intends to enroll.

3. To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena. If the education records of a
student are subpoenaed, the school will make a reasonable effort to notify the parent or
student (if 18 years of age or older) before complying with the subpoena. This is intended to
allow the parents/student the opportunity to challenge the subpoena.

4. To authorized representatives of federal or state agencies who are engaged in audit or
compliance activities. In such a case, the representatives must sign a record of access stating
the purpose of their need to access the education record. The school may disclose
personally identifiable information about a student from confidential records in an
emergency if the information is necessary for the health or safety of the student or other
individuals. This will be strictly construed.

5. Other entities specified in FERPA Sec. 99.31.

CASLV shall keep a record of access of persons who are allowed access to education records
collected, maintained, or used under Part B of the Act (except access by parents and authorized
employees of the participating agency), including the name of the party, the date access was given,
and the purpose for which the party is authorized to use the records.

Except for the parent and eligible student, school officials with a legitimate educational interest, a
party with written consent from the parent or eligible student, or a party seeking directory
information, each request or disclosure must be maintained in the educational record of the student
as long as the records are maintained. This record must include:

Name of the person;

Date access was given; and

Legitimate purpose for which the person is authorized to use the records.

The "Review of Student Record" form (Appendix A) to record authorized access to or
disclosure of information contained in education records.
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Before confidential information may be released to agencies or persons other than those described
in FERPA 99.31, the school must secure a written release from the parent, guardian, or eligible
student. The school will maintain a record of confidential information which has been released to
other agencies or programs by maintaining a copy of the "Parent Consent to Release or Exchange
Confidential Information” form (Appendix B) in the confidential special education file.

FACILITIES

(1) Describe the school’s capacity and experience in facilities acquisition and
development, including managing build-out and/or renovations, as applicable. Provide a
description and analysis of any construction or development delays which have impacted a
school or campus calendar and schedule in the past and a discussion of any organizational or
operational adjustments that have been made to prevent recurrence in the future.

We have successfully developed three campuses two of which have varying lease terms and the
third location we have purchased. We did not experience any delays with these three properties.
We have retained our own maintenance department to keep the properties in good repair. We have
experienced delays in opening an additional 4th Henderson location in existing buildings due to
community push-back, locational deficits, and financial restrictions associated with a non-profit
model. To avoid these same delays going forward, we are seeking locations which are in the
appropriate price, square footage, and most importantly, in areas where the nearby residents are
excited to have Coral Academy in their neighborhood.

(2) Identify the entity responsible for acquiring and maintaining school facilities and
describe that entity's relationship to both the school and any management organization. If
costs related to the facility will be borne by the proposed school's education management
organization or a related party such as a foundation, it should identify the level of capital
support the organization (or related party) is willing to provide to the school.

Coral Academy will have an investor like Red Hook Capital Partners LLC or any other
development group acquire and construct the proposed school facility. Coral Academy will enter a
Triple Net Lease which will require the school maintain the facility. Coral Academy will consider to
have lease to purchase option.
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(3) Ifaproposed facility has been identified and requires no construction or renovation
prior to the commencement of instruction, please provide:

(a) The physical address of the facility and supporting
documentation verifying the location, including the Assessor’s Parcel Number
and a copy of the Assessor’s Parcel Map for the proposed facility as Attachment
4

(b) A copy of the proposed purchase and sale agreement or a
copy of the proposed lease or rental agreement as Attachment 5

(c) A copy of the floor plan of the facility, including a notation of
the size of the facility which is set forth in square feet as Attachment 6

(d) The name, address, and full contact information of the
current owner of the facility and any proposed landlord and a disclosure of any
relationship between the current owner or landlord and the school, including
but not limited to any relative of a board member or employee within the third
degree of consanguinity or affinity and any connection with an educational
management organization, foundation, or other entity which does business with
or is otherwise affiliated with the school as Attachment 7

(e) A copy of the Certificate of Occupancy at Attachment 8

(f) Documentation demonstrating that the proposed facility
meets all applicable building codes, codes for the prevention of fire, and codes
pertaining to safety, health and sanitation as Attachment 9

(g) Documentation demonstrating the governing Body has
communicated with the Division of Industrial Relations of the Department of
Business and Industry regarding compliance with the federal Occupational
Safety and Health Act (OSHA) in compliance with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment
10

We do not have a proposed facility at this time.
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(4) Ifaproposed facility has not been identified or the proposed facility requires any
construction or renovation prior to the commencement of instruction, please provide:

(a) Either a discussion of the desired community of location and
the rationale for selecting that community AND an assurance that the school will
submit the documentation required in 1(a) for review and approval prior to
acquisition of any facility in compliance with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment 4 OR
the physical address of the proposed facility which requires construction or
renovation and supporting documentation verifying the location, including the
Assessor’s Parcel Number and a copy of the Assessor’s Parcel Map for the
proposed facility as Attachment 4

There are number of potential sites available for construction of a new facility in the Henderson
area. We are in the planning stage of narrowing down to a facility in the near future. The potential
Henderson location will be somewhere south of Cactus road, West of Eastern Ave. East of [-15 and
North of Volunteer road. There are number of existing residential communities and new
communities under construction. We believe that once this area is completely developed there will
be potentially 2400 Primary, middle school and high school students who could attend Coral
Academy in the Henderson area.

(b) Either a narrative explaining the rationale for the budgeted
cost of acquisition of an owned or leased facility AND an assurance that the
school will submit such documentation for review and approval prior to
acquisition of any facility in compliance with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment 5 OR,
if a facility has been identified which requires construction or renovation, a copy
of the proposed purchase and sale agreement or a copy of the proposed lease or
rental agreement as Attachment 5

As stated above we are in the planning stages of acquiring a location for southwest Henderson
facility. We will provide detailed information of the facility or identified land for a new school once
we have narrowed it to the final location.
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(c) Either a discussion of the general specifications to be utilized
during the facility search, including approximate square footage AND an
assurance that the school will submit such documentation for review and
approval prior to acquisition of any facility in compliance with NAC 386.3265 as
Attachment 6 OR, if a facility location has been identified but requires
construction or renovation, a copy of the proposed floor plan of the facility,
including a notation of the size of the facility which is set forth in square feet
AND an assurance that the school will submit final documentation in compliance
with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment 6

Coral Academy has engaged realtor, investment company and consultant to perform a site selection
study to identify an existing facility or land for construction of a new facility.

1. Existing facility should be approximately 50,000 square feet single story building or
approximately 5.0 acres of land for a new facility.

2. Location of the facility should not significantly impact the traffic in the surrounding areas that
could negatively impact the City of Henderson planning, zoning and permitting process.

3. All utilities have to be adjacent to the property for hook up. Coral Academy cannot afford to bring
utilities from far away locations.

4. Any new land acquisition can’t be in the 100 year flood zone that needs significant mitigation for
the development of a new facility.

5. Ingress and egress to the potential new facility needs to be a smooth operation. Coral Academy
consultants have narrowed down to few locations based on these criteria and will submit the site
selection study once it’s completed for the Board review and approval.
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(d) Either a description of the process and resources the school
will use to identify a facility AND an assurance that the school will submit such
information for review and approval prior to acquisition of any facility in
compliance with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment 7 OR, If a facility has been
identified but requires construction or renovation, the name, address, and full
contact information of the current owner of the facility and any proposed
landlord and a disclosure of any relationship between the current owner or
landlord and the school, including but not limited to any relative of a board
member or employee within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity and
any connection with an educational management organization, foundation, or
other entity which does business with or is otherwise affiliated with the school
as Attachment 7

Coral Academy site selection consultants will complete the site selection study using the criteria
identified in section 4 (C). A matrix will be developed as part of the study to identify the best site for
Coral’s Southwest Henderson location. If Coral Academy is not successful in acquiring the top
priority location based on the study, Coral will try to negotiate the next best location identified in
the study. Once the study is completed Coral will submit the detailed site selection study to the
Board.

(e) A detailed construction project plan and timeline, including a

Gannt chart, identifying all facility development activities necessary to obtain a
full certificate of occupancy prior to the first day of school AND documentation
of the inspection and approval processes and timelines for the state, municipal,
or county agencies which will issue the Certificate of Occupancy, including a
discussion of whether such agencies issue temporary or conditional approvals
and a copy of the standard form documentation that the sponsor can consult in
such circumstances to confirm compliance with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment 8

Attached is a preliminary schedule for the development of the southwest Henderson facility.
Attached is a Gannt schedule.

(f) A detailed construction project plan and timeline, including a Gannt chart, identifying all
facility development activities necessary to obtain all such code approvals prior to the
first day of school AND documentation of the inspection and approval processes and
timelines for the state, municipal, or county agencies which will conduct all code
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inspections, including a discussion of whether such agencies issue temporary or
conditional approvals and a copy of the standard form documentation that the sponsor
can consult in such circumstances to confirm compliance with NAC 386.3265 as
Attachment 9

The new facility will be located in the southwest Henderson area. All zoning, planning, design

review, construction permits and occupancy permits will be obtained from City of Henderson for
this facility.

(g) Documentation demonstrating the governing Body has
communicated with the Division of Industrial Relations of the Department of
Business and Industry regarding compliance with the federal Occupational

Safety and Health Act (OSHA) in compliance with NAC 386.3265 as Attachment
10

(5) For schools which are seeking to occupy multiple facilities over several years, please
list the number of facilities you project operating in each of the next six years and identify all

potential target jurisdictions at the county and municipal levels, including any unincorporated
areas.

(a) Describe the strategy and process for identifying and
securing multiple facilities, including any brokers or consultants you are

employing to navigate the real estate market, plans for renovations, timelines,
bond or third party financing, etc.

Coral Academy will engage in a site selection study with a project management firm to develop all
necessary tasks from planning to complete operations of the new facility.
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(b) Charter school facilities must comply with health and safety
requirements and all other mandates prescribed in statute and regulation. In
addition, charter schools must be prepared to follow applicable county and
municipal review procedures which vary significantly between jurisdictions.
Schools are expected demonstrate that they have thoroughly researched the
different local requirements and adjust their permitting, construction, and
inspection timelines accordingly. Discuss the research and planning that has
occurred to date for each of the targeted jurisdictions, including both
municipalities and unincorporated areas. Provide documentation of the current
inspection and approval processes and timelines for the state, municipal, or
county agencies within your proposed jurisdictions which will issue each
Certificate of Occupancy, including a discussion of whether such agencies issue
temporary or conditional approvals and a copy of the standard form
documentation that the sponsor can consult in such circumstances to confirm
compliance with NAC 386.3265 as part of Attachment 8. Provide documentation
of building, fire, safety, health and sanitation code compliance inspection and
approval processes and timelines for the state, municipal, or county agencies
which will conduct all such code inspections within your proposed jurisdictions,
including a discussion of whether such agencies issue temporary or conditional
approvals and a copy of the standard form documentation that the sponsor can
consult in such circumstances to confirm compliance with NAC 386.3265 as part
of Attachment 9.

Each site is looked at with a different perspective. When the final site has been selected, we look at
the surroundings and look to see how a new building can be woven into the existing fabric. Every
jurisdiction has varying timelines for both land use approval and permitting. City of Henderson
averages around two months for land use and zoning approval. Once the site and building design
has arrived, the submission for land use is submitted. In an effort to maintain a timely schedule,
while this is under review with the city, the preparation of documents for final permitting can run
concurrently so that once final approval for land use and zoning is arrived at the permit documents
can be submitted. This helps to shorten the overall schedule and minimize the design fees spent on
A/E. The current length of time for permitting the city of Henderson is on average three months.
Once permit is received construction would last for about fourteen months. Please refer to the
attached schedule for additional information.

(6) Please include the organization’s plans to finance these facilities, including:

(a) Total project cost for each facility
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Coral Academy has estimated that for a new faculty from ground up will be approximately $10
million. If there is an existing facility that meets Coral Academy’s criteria, an estimated budget will
be provided.

(b) Financing and financing assumptions

Coral Academy will enter into triple net lease with a development group for the facility.Coral
Academy board will decide based upon market rates whether or not enter into a lease agreement.

(c) Total facility costs that the financial model can handle - debt
service + lease + maintenance + utilities + etc. for each facility and for the
network as a whole

Coral Academy targets to have no more than 20% of revenues be attributed to: rent+debt
service+maintenance+utilities for each campus.

ONGOING OPERATIONS

SPCSA schools coordinate emergency management with local authorities. Explain your process to
create and maintain the school’s Emergency Management Plan required by the State of Nevada.
Include the types of security personnel, technology, equipment, and policies that the school will
employ. Who will be primarily responsible for this plan? Does the school anticipate contracting
with the local school district for school police services? How will the school communicate with and
coordinate with lead law enforcement agencies and other public safety agencies?

We have an emergency management planning team that has been approved by the school board.
Each year this team updates the plan for each site and creates any new plans for added campuses.
We are in contact with Las Vegas Metro Police Department with any needs and/or concerns.
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Discuss the types of insurance coverage the school will secure as a result of the expanded scope of
operation and the attendant risks, including a description of the levels of coverage. Types of
insurance should include workers’ compensation, liability insurance for staff and students,
indemnity, directors and officers, automobile, and any others required by Nevada law or regulation.
As the minimum coverage required by Nevada law and regulation is intended as a baseline
requirement for schools which operate at a significantly smaller scale, schools requesting an
amendment are expected to research the levels of and types of insurance coverage typically
required of and obtained by multi-site charter school networks in other states, including but not
limited to Arizona, California, Colorado, the District of Columbia, Massachusetts, and New York, and
crosswalk those levels of coverage with those the school intends to obtain to ensure that the
governing body and network leadership is fully cognizant of the complexity of risk management in
a multi-site context.

The new campus will be added to our existing insurance coverage and policies we already have in
place for existing campuses of CASLV. This coverage includes: workers’ compensation, liability
insurance for staff and students, indemnity, directors and officers, automobile, and any others
required by Nevada law or regulation.
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FINANCIAL PLAN

ACCOUNTING ORGANIZATION

The accounting department is primarily responsible for Accounting and Finance including back office
duties.

Accounting Department Organization Chart

The organization’s organizational framework provides the foundation for coordinating and
administrating the accounting management system. A description of the roles and responsibilities
applicable to the accounting and operations staff is maintained by management.

Director of Finance Responsibilities: Overseeing the finance function, monitoring internal controls,
refinancing debt, raising capital, debt and or equity appropriations, cash management, fund
balances, and management activities. The Director of Finance is responsible to the Board of
Directors and Executive Director for all long-range financial matters for Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas to establish organization-wide financial and administrative objectives, policies,
programs, and practices, which insure the organization of a continuously sound financial structure.

The Director of Finance controls the flow of cash through the organization and maintains the integrity of
funds, assets and other valuable documents.

Major Duties and Responsibilities:

o Develops and implements accounting policies, coordinates systems and procedures, and prepares
operating data and special reports as required, including interim and year-end financial statements.
Maintains the organization’s system of accounts and keeps books and records on all organization
transactions and assets.

o Establishes, coordinates and administers, as an integral part of management, an adequate plan for the
control of operations including, revenue planning, programs for financing, fundraising forecasts,
expense budgets and cost standards, together with necessary controls and procedures to effectuate
the plan.

o In conjunction with the Executive Director and Director of Finance, coordinates, reviews, and
endorses budget proposals, discusses proposed changes and significant changes.

o Compares performance with operating plans and standards, and reports and interprets the results of
operations to all levels of management.

o Provides for the control and editing of all organization orders, to insure conformity to established
policies and procedures, and to facilitate data control and retrieval of records generated by these
orders.

o Establishes and administers non-profit tax policies and procedures.
o Supervises or coordinates the preparation of reports to Federal, State, and Local government agencies.
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o Provides Site Directors and their schools with information required by them to
carry out their assigned responsibilities.

o Assures protection for the assets of the business through internal control, internal auditing and
assuring proper insurance coverage.

o Provides advice on all matters to the Executive Director.

Accounting Staff Responsibilities

Accounting staff responsibilities are focused on accurately documenting the Organization’s operations,
collecting all money owed to the organization, and responsibly disbursing money owed to vendors.

The accounting staff consists of the following:

o Designated Accountants. Responsible for performing a variety of administrative, office and clerical
functions. Prepares accounting and financial reports and ensures accurate accounting systems and
record keeping. Reports directly to the Director of Finance. Assists in recording of Accounts
Payable, Accounts Receivable, Purchasing, Collections, and Coordinating activities with all schools.

o Purchasing/Payroll Manager. Responsible for Purchases and Payroll transmission to the payroll
processing company on a periodic base.

MANAGEMENT COMMITMENT

Senior Management at our organization shows its commitment to the accounting management system
through the development and implementation of this accounting manual.

MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING POLICY

Our organization has established an Accounting Manual that we feel is appropriate to our organization
and meets the practices set forth in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). This policy is
communicated throughout the organization. Department managers and supervisors are responsible
for ensuring all employees understand the policy. To ensure our policy remains appropriate, it is
reviewed at least annually at one of our Management Review meetings.

The Organization Accounting Policy:

It is the policy of our organization to design and produce financial statements in keeping with GAAP,
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements, Generally Accepted Governmental
Accounting Principles, (GAGAS) of Financial Accounting Concepts and comply with all statutory and
regulatory requirements. We accomplish this by adhering to our Accounting Management System
and use operational methods as documented in our Accounting Manual.

We strive to continually improve the effectiveness of our Accounting Management System by
monitoring our performance against our established objectives and through leadership that
promotes employee involvement. This concept represents our organization’s commitment to
quality accounting and the increasing need to better serve our students, stakeholders, and
employees.

Conflicts of Interest
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No employee, officer, or agent of CASLV shall participate in the selection, award, or administration of a
contract involving CASLYV if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a conflict
would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, or any member of her or his immediate family, his
or her partner, or a CASLV employee that employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated
herein, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected.

See the CASLV Accounting Manual (Appendix A) Procurement Policies and Procedures section of this
manual for further information regarding Conflicts of Interest and the penalties for violation. The
CASLV Human Resources Policies and Procedures should also be reviewed for violation of and
penalties associated with the CASLV Conflict of Interest policy.

ACCOUNTING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

OBJECTIVES

The Director of Finance maintains all documents that identify the sequence of accounting processes
and, in conjunction with the Accounting Department, defines the interactions of the processes
within the procedures defining these processes.

Processes for management activities, provision of resources, and measurement reporting are
included. Procedures shall include the methods needed to ensure that the accountability and
control of processes are effective. The Director of Finance will monitor, measure, and analyze
processes and implement any actions necessary to achieve intended results and continual
improvement of the processes. Any processes that are outsourced that may affect our
organization’s conformity to requirements shall be controlled. The Director of Finance is
responsible for defining the methods to control outsourced processes and procedures.

Internal Controls

Internal controls, procedures, and practices will be utilized to ensure that:

o Obligations and costs comply with applicable laws.

o All assets are safeguarded against waste, fraud, loss, unauthorized use, and misappropriation.

o Revenues and expenditures applicable to organization operations are recorded and accounted for
properly so that accounts and reliable financial and statistical reports may be prepared and
accountability of the assets may be maintained.

o Programs are efficiently and effectively carried out in accordance with applicable laws and
management policy.

Audit Findings

The Director of Finance will promptly evaluate findings and recommendations reported by auditors
and then determine proper actions in response to audit findings and recommendations (e.g.,
develop corrective actions). Audits can be but are not limited to the annual independent audit or
program/contract audits performed by Federal, State, and Local auditors. The Director of Finance
or designee should complete, within established time frames, all actions that correct or otherwise

resolve the matters brought to management's attention.
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TRANSACTIONS

All transactions recorded or posted into the Accounting Management System should be properly
authorized and accurately represent the activity being documented. Both the timing and amount of
the transaction should be in accordance with organization accounting policies defined in this
manual.

Authorization

Transactions and other significant events are to be authorized and executed only by persons acting
within the scope of their authority. It is the principal means of assuring that only valid transactions
and other events are entered into. Modification or adjustment to previously recorded transactions
requires authorization.

Timing

All transaction dates recorded in the organization accounting system should accurately reflect the
date the transaction occurred. Revenues should be recognized when earned and expenses when
incurred. Processing, cutoff and period-end closing schedules and procedures should be
documented. Cash sales should be recorded at the time of sale and deposited.

Amounts

Prior or related transactions should be checked for conformity with the transaction being recorded
(e.g., match invoice to purchase order). Amount of posted transactions should be checked against
source documents. Balances with third parties should be verified as appropriate (i.e. debtors,
creditors, or landlord deposits, etc.). Transactions should be recorded in conformity with
documented policies in Accounting manual (Appendix A)

Accuracy

Transactions should be recorded in the accounting system accurately. An approved set of general
ledger and subsidiary accounts are maintained for assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, budgetary
accounts, programs, departments, and other accounts.

All transactions should be supported by documentary evidence, which becomes part of the
accounting records. Error transactions should be reviewed, resolved, and cleared in a timely
fashion. Manually determined control totals should be reconciled with recorded results. The
Accounting Management System utilizes standard forms and provides control and accountability
over these forms. Supervisors should review posted accounting transactions with source
documents and processing documents.

GENERAL PURCHASING
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Policy: The investment in supplies and capital equipment will be facilitated through the Business
Office, maintained at the lowest effective level and supervised consistent with a common set of
procedures and controls as required by all regulatory and customer contract requirements.

Purpose: To outline the actions to be taken for 1) the procurement of supplies and capital
equipment, 2) the completion of related documents.

Scope: This procedure applies to the purchase of all supplies and capital equipment for all
departments within the Organization.

Responsibilities:

All personnel that require a product or service must complete a request in online purchasing
module specifying items for purchase and obtain required approvals. Director of Finance,
Purchasing/Payroll Manager, & Designated Accountant are responsible for using good purchasing
methods, optimizing price savings, quality or value of products, vendor working relationships,
placing orders with approved suppliers, negotiating pricing with suppliers, and forwarding all
paperwork to accounting for payment.

School Site Accountant is responsible for payment of invoices only after satisfactory completion or
delivery of goods or services has been made. The Campus Site Personnel and Other Designated
Individuals are responsible for receiving, inspecting materials, and forwarding all paperwork to the
Business Office.

Procedure:

1.0 ORDER DETERMINATION AND REQUISITION

1.1 Purchasing should obtain the optimal price for any purchases. All purchases above $5,000
require at least 3 quotes to be obtained. Quotes may be submitted by the requestor or the
Purchasing/Payroll Manager can obtain the 3 quotes. The quotes are entered into online
purchasing module along with evaluation and selection of the best option by the requestor. The
Director of Finance or his/her designee reviews the 3 quotes and forwards the recommendations to
the Executive Director for final review and decision.

1.2 For purchases of goods and supplies, a request in online purchasing module will be prepared by
the originating individual or department. The purchase request should be completed and approved
with the following items and any additional supporting documentation:

¢ Complete description with part or model numbers and link to website if available
» Engineering drawings and specifications
« Type, Class, Grade required
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¢ Quantity required

 Date required

* Requesting department and accounting code
¢ Recommended vendor or source if applicable

Other requirements
« Special shipping requirements
« Special inspection requirements upon receipt

For the following purchases, additional information is required:

¢ Textbooks - Full ISBN

« Airline tickets - passenger(s) legal name(s), date of birth, gender,departure/arrival airport codes
and exact dates

« Vehicle rentals - vehicle type, exact dates and exact pick up/drop off locations

1.3 If the requisition is for subcontracted services:

* A complete description of the service to be performed
* Engineering drawings and specifications if appropriate
* Requirements for qualification of personnel

e Other documents such as insurance forms, etc.

* Quality standards to be applied

1.4 The Purchasing/Payroll Manager will analyze terms, vendor, pricing, quantity breaks, etc., and
will order accordingly in the Organization's best interest. Purchasing/Payroll Manager will notify
the requester of any material variances prior to placement of the order.

1.5 Reimbursements for purchases made by staff will be processed upon proper authorization
through online purchasing module..

2.0 ORDER PLACEMENT

2.1 Requestor is responsible for completing a purchase order form for all orders. This can be
processed through online purchasing module. Purchase orders are exempted for items such as
salaries and related costs, utilities, and in state travel, or where a contract exists.

2.2 If there are any requirements for items to be inspected at the supplier’s or the Organization's
premises by the Organization or our customer, the arrangements and method of product release
shall be included in the purchasing information.

2.4 Buyers must review their purchase orders for accuracy. The buyer submits their authorization
through online purchasing module indicating the review was performed.
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2.5 Orders can be placed with the vendor either by telephone, fax, internet or mail. When placing
orders by telephone, the vendor contact and date of order should be noted and a confirming copy of
the order sent to the vendor. Pre-approval for any purchase is always required.

2.6 Purchasing/Payroll Manager is responsible for communicating with those receiving the
supplies, following-up on shipping, delivery, and expediting and partial shipments of ordered items.
Purchasing/Payroll Manager can either telephone vendors or use a PUR102 Ex1 PURCHASE ORDER
FOLLOW-UP form to verify, trace or expedite orders.

3.0 RECORDKEEPING AND MATCHING

3.1 When Purchase Orders are issued, the Business Office copies will be placed in an Open File until
the items are received. The Open File should be reviewed on a weekly basis to determine whether
any orders need follow up.

3.2 Items will be received in accordance with procedure PUR103 RECEIVING AND INSPECTION.
The completed vendor's packing list is kept at the site where the shipment was received.

3.4 For partial shipments, a note will be made in online purchasing module to identify the shipment
as partially received. The original Purchase Order will be kept in the open file until all items are
received.

See the CASLV Accounting Manual (Appendix A)

Referenced Procedures:

G&A101 Chart of Accounts

G&A104 Management Reports

G&A105 Period-End Review & Closing
G&A121 School Site Accounting

CSH101 Cash Boxes

CSH102 Cash Receipts And Deposits
REV102 Invoicing and Accounts Receivable
REV106 Gifts-In-Kind

REV107 Restricted Funds

CSH107 Bank Account Reconciliations
PUR106 Accounts Payable And Cash Disbursements

PURCHASING - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
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Proper vendor selection and utilization assist in controlling expenses. The following Purchasing
Procedures should be utilized to account for and control all purchases and acquisitions of the
organization.

Vendor Selection

The organization ensures purchased products and services conform to specified requirements. This
starts with selection of appropriate suppliers, contractors, and consultants that have the capability
and systems to supply products, materials and services to the organization’s specific requirements.
The organization should strive to validate the performance capabilities of all vendors and maintain
the internal controls of the purchasing functions. Suppliers, contractors, and consultants are
controlled to the extent necessary based on the effect of the purchased items on the quality of the
organization’s products and services. The organization should provide the methods for
determining, documenting and, when applicable, inspecting vendors for compliance with
organization policies and contract purchasing requirements. This applies to all vendors of products,
materials, and services that directly affect the quality of the organization’s products and services.

General Purchasing

The investment in supplies and capital equipment will be facilitated through the
Purchasing/Payroll Manager, maintained at the lowest effective level and supervised consistent
with a common set of procedures and controls as required by all regulatory and customer contract
requirements. To outline the actions to be taken for 1) the procurement of all supplies and capital
equipment, 2) the completion of related documents. This applies to the purchase of all inventory
items, supplies and capital equipment within the organization.

Receiving and Inspection

All parts, components, goods and materials should be received in an organized manner and
inspected for conformance prior to stocking or use in order to provide an initial quality control
inspection. Any items or shipments rejected will be properly quarantined from other inventory
items until disposition. The organization should outline the steps for receiving and inspection of
materials, components, or parts prior to use or the disposition of rejected items. This procedure
applies to the receipt of all purchases.

Accounts Payable and Cash Disbursements

Internal controls are required to ensure that only valid and authorized payables are recorded and
paid. Accounting procedures should be implemented to ensure the accuracy of amounts, coding of
general ledger accounts and appropriate timing of payments.

The organization should explain the practices for documenting, recording and issuing payments for
accounts payable transactions. This applies to all purchases including contractor, consultant,
merchandise and non-merchandise purchases.

89



Prepaid Expenses

It is the policy of CASLV to treat payments of expenses that have a time-sensitive future benefit as
prepaid expenses and to amortize these items over the corresponding time period. For purposes of
this policy, prepaid expenses are only accounted for at the end of the fiscal year and the amount
considered to be prepaid remains at the discretion of the Director of Finance.

Reimbursements

Internal controls are required to ensure that only valid and authorized reimbursements are
recorded and paid. Accounting procedures should be implemented to ensure the accuracy of
amounts, coding of General Ledger accounts and appropriate timing of payments.

Purchasing and Procurement Bidding Policy
Defines when purchases or procurement is necessary to be obtained through a competitive sealed
bidding.

See the CASLV Accounting Manual (Appendix A)

Referenced Procedures:

PUR101 Vendor Selection

PUR102 General Purchasing

PUR103 Receiving and Inspection

PUR104 Accounts Payable and Cash Disbursements
PUR105 Prepaid Expenses

PUR106 Reimbursements
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Accounting Pohicies, Procedures and Forms

7.0 REFERENCE TO UNIFORM SYSTEM OF FINANCIAL RECORDS FOR
NEVADA CHARTER SCHOOLS

Included n Referenced to
NV Dept. of Ed. Procedure Coral Policy in Coral Policy
VI-B: Accounting Records G&ALDL, G&ALLS, Maimn Manual X
VI-C: Cash CSHI107, CSH110, X
VI-D: Supplies Inventory INV101 X
VI-E: Capital Assets INV101, INV102, INV103 X
VI-F: Receipts CSH series X
VI-G: Disbursements PUR series PURI102
VI-H: Payroll GEAL22 X
VI-I: Travel G&EALDS X
VI-T: State and Federal REVI108 X

Financial Assistance

Nevada Department of Education procedures from “Suggested Model Financial Polices
for Nevada Charter Schools™, published November 2008,

4) Please see attachment 21
5) Please see attachment 22
6)Please see attachment 23
7)Please see attachment 24

8)Please see attachment 24

9) Please see attachment 24, historical financial statements donations and fundraising section.

10) Please see attachment Appendix A (Accounting Manual)

CASLYV financial and accounting responsibilities are described in Appendix A Accounting Manual.

Management responsibilities page 11-15



Internal Controls page 21
Budgeting page 37
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Using the table below, outline a detailed start-up plan as well specific organizational goals

Incubation Year Planning Table

for the planning year (SY 2016-2017) to ensure that the school is ready for a successful
launch in fall 2016. Feel free to add rows as needed.

2016-2017 Planning Year Milestones Activity Key Milestone
(SMART Goals) by Work Stream Personnel Date(s)
INSTRUCTION Align curriculum K-12 | Executive Ongoing
at all campuses Director, Continued
Professional Chief reflection and
Development and Academic evaluation at
training on Officer, least
curriculum Instructional | quarterly -
implementation Coaches, August,
Dean of November,
Academics, February,
Site Directors | May
TALENT Attend job fairs Executive Ongoing
Retain qualified staff | Director, HR | Continued
Continued Director, Site | reflection and
professional Directors, evaluation at
development for staff | Chief least
Academic quarterly -
Officer August,
November,
February,
May
OPERATIONS Ensure K-12 Executive Ongoing
alignment and Coral Director, Site | Continued
Model Directors, reflection and
Day to day facility Chief evaluation at
management Academic least
Officer, site quarterly -
facility August,
coordinator November,
February,
May
TECHNOLOGY Continued Executive Ongoing
professional Director, Site | Continued
development around | Directors, reflection and
technology Chief evaluation at
Continued technology | Academic least
advancements Officer, IT quarterly -
Manager August,
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Operational Execution

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas (CASLV) is a STEM-focused, college-prep public charter school
that gives students in grades K-12 an opportunity to achieve their full potentials. The mission of
CASLV is to provide a safe, rigorous college preparatory environment that promotes social
responsibility and a culturally diverse community dedicated to becoming lifelong learners bound
for success. CASLV currently serves over 1,500 students across the valley, with more than 4,000
students on its waitlist.

CASLV’s stellar reputation, which speaks for itself, has only grown in magnitude since its inception.
Having started off as a replication model of Coral Academy of Science - Reno (CAS), which is a
renowned school in Northern Nevada, CASLV has raised the bar even higher by adding more
components to its already rigorous education programs. CASLV is accredited by the leading
accreditation institution, AdvancED.

CASLV’s faculty and staff are dedicated to challenging all students academically, instilling college
awareness at all grade levels, and motivating them towards STEM careers by providing the necessary
tools to help develop 21st century and leadership skills.

CASLV’s new campus process guarantees the continuation of CASLV’s extraordinary success and
includes the following:

¢ Proven educational program: The same successful educational model with all aspects will
be implemented at the new location. Feedback from school administration, parents and
students and later from the school staff may cause other site-specific programs to develop.

e CASLV Central Office support and Supervision: CASLV central office will supervise every
step of the startup and program implementation at the new campus. CASLV has a proven
replication model at multiple locations in Nevada.

e Seed administrators and teachers to ensure successful replication: As previously done
at already replicated Coral Academy schools, some existing administrators and teachers at
current schools will be transferred to the newly opened site to implement the educational
program at the new Henderson campus. In order to facilitate a smooth transition and long-
term sustainability, the central office will transfer some of its core teaching faculty and
administration to the new campus. This strategy has been successful in effectively instituting
CASLV’s proven educational model.

e Proven human resources management: CASLV central office will handle teacher
recruitment for the new campus.

¢ Professional training: A thorough professional development program will be incorporated.

Weekly coordination meetings: School principals and central office staff will hold weekly
meetings to oversee the entire replication process.

Executive Director and Chief of Academics will make sure that new campus director and instructional
coaches are replicating the curriculum and the program of the current campuses. The school leader
and instructional coach will be responsible for carrying the current curriculum and programs to
recruited teachers and office staff and they will continue providing instructional guidance and
support year round. Formal and informal professional development for both returning and new staff
will be required and be focused on schools mission, vision, curriculums and developing programs.



This will be developed and organized by the Chief Academic Officer, Instructional Coaches, Site
Directors, and multi school collaboration to ensure student success and academic achievement.

As we continue to grow, our CASLV administrative team also grows. We are recruiting additional
members to our central office team with high education and experienced backgrounds. We are
training all team members first for school mission, vision, curriculum, programs and expectations.
Then team members continue to attend city, state and nation wide conferences and professional
development programs to keep up with the ongoing developments. The Executive Director and
Governing Board are also working on additional options of reimbursing the cost of admin team’s
professional development courses.



Red Hook

RIHIC

capital partners

February 24, 2016

Patrick Gavin

Executive Director

State Public School Charter Authority
1749 North Stewart Street, Suite 40
Carson City, NV 89706

Dear Mr. Gavin:

On behalf of the Red Hook Capital Partners, | am pleased to submit this letter of interest to develop an
educational facility for Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas (CASLV).

Red Hook Capital Partners (Red Hook) is a real estate investment and development firm focused on the
charter school sector. Red Hook works with high quality charter school operators to identify, acquire,
and developed permanent homes.

Our construction and development capabilities, coupled with a keen understanding of the charter school
operations and management, position us well to meet the needs of our charter school clients. Our
strong understanding of the real estate and construction markets position us well to serve high-
performing charter school operators across the country. We look forward to continuing our work with
CASLV and meeting its facility needs.

Red Hook proposes to acquire the real estate and work with CASLV to design, develop and construct a
new school campus located in Henderson. The school will provide educational services for grades 8-12
based on a STEM model, similar to those provided to students in comparable Nevada state public school
districts and consistent with local, state and federal laws and regulations.

Based on our review of CASLV’s credit, its historical charter school operations, prior charter school
development experience, recent financial performance and other factors, our preliminary analysis
indicates that CASLV has/will have sufficient financial resources to support a long-term lease and the
eventual purchase of a new campus located in Henderson for a total project cost of up to $10 million.

If you should have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me

Sincerely,

P 9 , t
Craig Underwood
Principal

(310) 721-7755



Central Office Windmill Campus

3039 W. Horizon Ridge Pkwy. Suite 120 2150 Windmill Pkwy.
Henderson, NV 89052 Henderson, NV 89052
702-776-6529 | 702-776-6569 (Fax) 702-485-3410| 702-722-2718 (Fax)
Tamarus Campus @ LW Sandy Ridge Campus
8185 Tamarus St. Soaning ts Sxcellence 1051 Sandy Ridge Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89183 Henderson, NV 89052
702-269-8512 | 702-269-3258 (Fax) 702-776-8800 [702-776-8803 (Fax)

CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS

March 1, 2016

Patrick J. Gavin

Director

Nevada State Public Charter School Authority
1749 N. Stewart Street, Suite 40

Carson City, NV 89706

Re:  Assurance that CASLV will provide a facility review for approval
Dear Mr. Gavin:

I assure that the school will submit a description of the process and resources that it will
use to identify a facility for review and approval prior to acquisition of any facility in compliance
with NAC 386.3265.

Sincerely,

v

Ercan Aydogdu
Executive Director
Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

www.coralacademy | info@coralacademylv.org



Central Office Windmill Campus

3039 W. Horizon Ridge Pkwy. Suite 120 2150 Windmill Pkwy.
Henderson, NV 89052 Henderson, NV 89052
702-776-6529 | 702-776-6569 (Fax) 702-485-3410 | 702-722-2718 (Fax)
Tamarus Campus @ ALW Sandy Ridge Campus
8185 Tamarus St. Soaning ts Exeellence 1051 Sandy Ridge Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89183 Henderson, NV 89052
702-269-8512 | 702-269-3258 (Fax) 702-776-8800 |702-776-8803 (Fax)

CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
March 1, 2016
Patrick J. Gavin
Director
Nevada State Public Charter School Authority
1749 N. Stewart Street, Suite 40
Carson City, NV 89706
Re:  Assurance that CASLYV is not contracting with an EMO or CMO

Dear Mr. Gavin:

[ assure that neither existing Coral Academy of Science of Las Vegas campuses nor
proposed Henderson High School Campus is/will not contract with an EMO or CMO.

Thank you for your time and attention.

Sincerely,

S

Ercan Aydogdu
Executive Director
Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

www.coralacademy | info@coralacademylv.org
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CouLsoN & AsSsSOCIATES, LTD.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLNTANTS & CONSLULTANTS

independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
which collectively comprise of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Coral Academy .
of Science Las Vegas's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Coral
Academy of Science Las Vegas as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial
position thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 25, 2012, on our consideration of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that reportisto
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
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considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas.
The accompanying schedule of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the Nevada Department of Education, and is not a required part of the financial
statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
This schedule has not been audited in accordance with requirements of the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Coulson & Hssociates, Ltd.

Reno, Nevada
October 25, 2012




CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

This section of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas annual financial report presents our discussion
and analysis of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s financial performance during the fiscal year
that ended June 30, 2012. Please read it in conjunction with Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s
financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas completed the year with net assets of $1,244,614, an
increase of $879,728 from prior year.

e Overall revenues were $7,837,511, an increase from prior year revenues of $6,206,748.
Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’s basic financial statements. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s basic financial statements
comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad over-view of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increase or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas
that are principally supported by the State of Nevada per pupil funding. The governmental activities
of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas include instruction, support services, operation and
maintenance of facilities. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8 and 9
of this report.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas uses only governmental funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as government activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmental-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’s near-term financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities. These reconciliations are on pages 11 and 13, respectively.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditure, and changes in fund balance for the
General and Special Grant Funds, both of which are considered to be major funds. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 and 12 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found starting on page 14 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also present certain required supplementary information concerning Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas’s budget process. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas adopts an annual budget
and a budgetary comparison in the supplementary information section of this report.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,244,614 as of June 30,
2012.

The following presents a summary of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s net assets for the
following fiscal years.

As of As of As of
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

Current Assets S 1,756,522  §S 886,243 S 328,005

Capital Assets 229,457 222,417 229,005

Total Assets 1,985,979 1,108,660 557,010

Current Liabilities 741,365 737,494 558,275

Long-Term Liabilities - 6,280 51,090

Total Liabilities 741,365 743,774 609,365
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,

net of related debt 226,771 222,417 229,005

Unrestricted 1,017,843 142,469 (281,360)

Total Net Assets S 1,244,614 S 364,886 S (52,355)

Increase in current assets can be attributed to the increase in the bank balance and the building
deposits paid related to the lease extensions/purchase option on the Sandy Ridge campus.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

Changes in Net Assets. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s total revenues for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 were 7,837,511. The total costs of all programs and services were $5,789,507.
The following is a summary of the changes for the following fiscal years.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
year ended year ended year ended
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Revenues:
Program Revenue
Charges for Service S 739,415 S 695,898 S 364,015
Government Grants 46,984 40,397 -
General Revenue
Donations 102,580 93,242 89,652
Other Income - - 59,350
State Funding 6,875,372 5,320,851 3,737,624
Uniform Income 73,160 56,360 -
Total Revenues 7,837,511 6,206,748 4,250,641
Expenses:
Instruction 4,019,959 3,470,980 2,549,137
Support Services 440,764 321,470 107,433
Administration 987,044 763,347 605,629
Facilities 1,433,128 1,160,521 858,624
Un-allocated Depreciation 76,888 73,189 67,608
Total Expenses 6,957,783 5,789,507 4,188,431
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets S 879,728 S 417,241 S 62,210

Revenue and expenses for the School increased due to increased enrollment. Prior year the school
opened two new campuses creating additional facilities costs.

Financial Analysis of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s Funds

As noted earlier, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
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The financial performance of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas as a whole is reflected in its
governmental funds. As Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas completed the year, its governmental
funds reported a General fund balance of $1,021,345, an increase of $848,770 from the prior year.
The Grant Fund balance was S0 due to spending all available grant monies.

Budgetary Highlights

There are a few variances from the budget to the actual results. Actual state funding exceeded the
budgeted amount and donations/fundraising proved successful to the School. In terms of
expenditures, instructional and facilities were less than budgeted.

A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas’'s actual financial activity is provided in this report as required supplementary
information.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2012, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas had total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) of $282,424 which included classroom equipment, computers, tenant
improvements, vehicles, and furniture. This amount represents an increase (net of related
depreciation) of $7,040. Total depreciation expense was $76,888. Additional information on capital
assets can be found in the notes to financial statements starting on page 18.

On the governmental financial statements capital assets are expensed in the period they are
purchased as they are not considered financial resources.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’'s major source of revenue is the per-pupil funding from the
State of Nevada. The School estimates enrollment based on applications received and a projected
late signup before the start of the school year. The amount of the per-pupil funding becomes fixed
as of the official count day in September.

For expenses Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas typically assumes an increase of 5% to 10% over
the prior year for non-contract items. The majority of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s
expenses are teacher salaries.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Inventory
Prepaid
Deposits
Employee Advances
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets
Computers/Technological Equip
Furniture & Fixtures
Tenant Improvements
Vehicles
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Deferred Income
Wages and Benefits Payable
Deposits
PERS Payable
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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S 1,150,736
56,546

28,373

520,549

318

1,756,522

196,995
174,128
137,757

3,000

(282,423)

229,457

S 1,985,979

S 17,087
133,548
472,339

51,985
60,218
6,188

741,365

S 741,365

S 226,771
1,017,843

S 1,244,614




CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Statement of Activites
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net Revenues (Expenses) and

Program Revenues Change in Net Assets
Charges Operating Government
Expenses For Service Grants Activities Total
Function/Program
Governmental Activities
Instruction
Regular S 3,972,975 S 739,415 S - S (3,233,560) S (3,233,560)
Special 46,984 - 46,984 - -
Total Instruction 4,019,959 739,415 46,984 (3,233,560) (3,233,560)
Support
Facilities 1,433,128 - - (1,433,128) (1,433,128)
General Administration 987,044 - - (987,044) (987,044)
Support Services 440,764 - - (440,764) (440,764)
Depreciation 76,888 - - (76,888) (76,888)
Total Support 2,937,824 - - (2,937,824) (2,937,824)
Total Governmental Activities 6,957,783 739,415 46,984 (6,171,384) (6,171,384)
Total S 6,957,783 S 739,415 S 46,984 (6,171,384) (6,171,384)
General Revenues:
State Funding 6,875,372 6,875,372
Donations/Fundraising 102,580 102,580
Other 73,160 73,160
Total General Revenues 7,051,112 7,051,112
Changes in Net Assets 879,728 879,728
Net Assets - Beginning 364,886 364,886
Net Assets - Ending S 1,244,614 S 1,244,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
9



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

General
ASSETS
Cash S 1,150,736
Inventory 56,546
Prepaid 28,373
Deposits 520,549
Employee Advances 318
Total Assets S 1,756,522
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts Payable S 17,087
Deferred Income 133,548
Payroll Liabilities 532,557
Deposits 51,985
Total Liabilities 735,177
FUND BALANCE
Unassigned 1,021,345
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 1,756,522

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
10



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Total Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds S 1,021,345

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in governmental
funds

Long Term Debt (6,188)
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported as assets in
governmental funds

Cost of Capital Assets 511,881
Accumulated Depreciation (282,424) 229,457
Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 1,244,614

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Memorandum
Grant Only
General Funds Total
REVENUES
State Sources S 6,875,372 S 46,984 S 6,922,356
Donations/Fundraising 102,580 - 102,580
Other 812,575 - 812,575
Total Revenues 7,790,527 46,984 7,837,511
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Regular Instruction 4,064,319 - 4,064,319
Special Instruction - 46,984 46,984
Total Instruction 4,064,319 46,984 4,111,303
Support Services
Administration 988,844 - 988,844
Facilities 1,447,830 - 1,447,830
Support Services 440,764 - 440,764
Total Support Service 2,877,438 - 2,877,438
Total Expenditures 6,941,757 46,984 6,988,741
Net Change in Fund Balance 848,770 - 848,770
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 172,575 - 172,575
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 1,021,345 S - S 1,021,345

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
12



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
to the Statement of Activities
June 30, 2012

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds S 848,770

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases are reported in the
governmental funds as expenditures but is reported as a reduction in
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Activities.

Repayment of debt 23,918

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,
those costs are allocated over their useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.

Capital Outlays 83,928
Depreciation Expense (76,888)
Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 879,728

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
13



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas (the “School”) have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

The Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas was organized to operate a public charter school in
Las Vegas, Nevada, under Nevada Revised Statutes 386.500 to 386.610. Currently, Coral
Academy of Science Las Vegas operates at grades K through 12 levels.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas receives funding from state, federal and local
government sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source
entities. However, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is not included in any other
governmental “reporting entity” as defined in GASB pronouncements, since its Board of
Directors has decision making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) present financial information about Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas as a whole. The reported information includes all the activities of Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the expenses are offset by
program revenues. Program revenues include grants, per pupil funding from the State of

Nevada, donations, and various fundraising activities.

Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resource
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are record when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flow.

14



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered available when they are collectible with in the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under the accrual accounting. However,
compensated absences are recorded only when the payment is due.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas maintains its accounts and prepares its financial
statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting as required by Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) 218.825. The budget of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is also
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The accounts of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas are organized and operated on
the basis of funds and account groups. A fund is anindependent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum
number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas has the following fund types:

Governmental funds are used to account for Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s
general activities. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.,
when it is “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Coral
Academy of Science Las Vegas considers all revenue available if it is collected within 60
days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized
when due, and certain claims and judgments which are recognized when the
obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources.

Interest is subject to accrual. Other receipts become measurable and available when

cashis received by Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas and are recognized as revenue
at that time.

15



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

The general fund is Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Grant funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for special purposes.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reported issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation
No.48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“FIN48”). FIN 48 (now referred to as FASB ASC 740-
10), requires entities to disclose in their financial statements the nature of any uncertainty
in their tax position. For tax-exempt entities, their tax-exempt status itself is deemed to be
an uncertainty, since events could potentially occur and jeopardize the tax-exempt status.

The school has not recognized any benefits from uncertain tax positions and believes it has
no uncertain tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of the
balance sheet date of June 30, 2012.

Cash

Cash includes demand deposits held at the bank.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds.”
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include land and improvements, buildings and improvements,
furniture, equipment are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if purchase or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated

useful lives:
Computer and Technological Equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and Equipment 7-10 years
Tenant Improvements 7-15 years
Vehicles 3-5 years

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets:

Net assets in the government-wide financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state
statute.

Fund Balance:
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance
can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent

because they are either (a) not in spendable form, such as inventory or prepaid items, or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

17
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Restricted Fund Balance —This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Committed Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific
purpose imposed by majority vote of School’s governing body (highest level of decision-
making authority). Any changes or removal of the specific purpose requires majority action
by the governing bodies that approved the original action.

Assigned fund balance — Portion of fund balance that the School intends to use for specific
purposes.

Unassigned fund balance — Portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another
fund or restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — Cash

At June 30, 2012, the school had one account held at one institution where it is insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Amounts exceeding the FDIC
limit are insured under the State Treasurer's Pooled Collateral Program. The program
established pursuant to NRS 356.350 requires each depository to maintain as collateral
acceptable securities having a fair market value that is at least 102 percent of the amount
of the uninsured balances of the public money held by the depository.

NOTE 3 — Accounts Receivable

At June 30, 2012 there weren’t any additional funds due from the State of Nevada.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 4 — Capital Assets

Capital asset balances and activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Balance
Governmental Activities
Computer Equipment S 158,131 S 38,865 S 196,996
Vehicles 3,000 - 3,000
Furniture & Fixture 143,767 30,361 174,128
Leasehold Improvements 123,055 14,702 137,757
Total at historical cost 427,953 83,928 511,881
Less Accumulated Deprecation 205,536 76,888 282,424
Governmental Activities -

Capital Assets, net S 222,417 S 7,040 $ 229,457

NOTE 5 — Inventory

At June 30, 2012 the schools inventory balance was $56,546, which consists of uniforms

available for sale to students.

NOTE 6 — Capital Leases

The School leases a copier that is classified as a capital lease. For financial reporting
purposes, minimum lease payments relating to the copier have been capitalized. The

monthly lease payments are $361 and the lease term expires March 2013.

The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year ended June 30 Principal

Interest

Total

2013 $ 2,686 S

3,249

NOTE 7 — Operating Leases

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas conducts its operations from three facilities which are
leased from different lessors with various terms and payments. The Tamarus campus lease
commenced September 2008 with a base rent of $21,630 and increasing yearly at a rate of

3% through June 2018.
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NOTE 7 — Operating Leases (Continued)

The Windmill and Sandy Ridge campus lease began September 2010 and expires May 2013
with monthly payments of $25,000 and $40,000, respectively. Rent expense for all three
locations for the year ending June 30, 2012 was $1,059,251.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments related to the campuses:

June 30 Amount
2013 $1,070,719
2014 299,440
2015 308,424
2016 317,676
2017and thereafter 327,207

$2,323,416

The School also has multiple copier leases which are not capitalized. Equipment rent
expense for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $24,704. The following is a schedule of
future minimum lease payments:

June 30 Amount
2013 S 24,836
2014 24,836
2015 16,084
2016 5,490

2017 and thereafter -

S 71,246

NOTE 8 — Public Employees Retirement System

Plan Description

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas contributes to the Public Employees Retirement
System of the State of Nevada (PERS), a cost sharing, multiple employers, defined benefit
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada. PERS
provides retirement benefits, disability benefits, and death benefits, including annual cost
of living adjustments, to plan members and their beneficiaries. Chapter 286 of the
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NOTE 8 — Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

Nevada Revised Statutes establishes the benefit provisions provided to the participants of
PERS. These benefit provisions may only be amended through legislation. The Public
Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for PERS.
That report may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System of the
State of Nevada, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, NV 89703-1599 or by calling (775)
687-4200.

Funding Policy

Plan members are funded under the following two methods: Under the employer pay
contribution plan, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is required to contribute all amounts
due under the plan. The second funding mechanism for providing benefits is the
employer/employee paid contribution plan. Under this method, employees are required to
contribute a percentage of their compensation to the plan, while Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas is required to match that contribution. The contribution requirements of plan
members and Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas are established by NRS 296. The funding
mechanism may only be amended through legislation. Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’s contribution rates and amount contributed for the year are as follows:

Contribution Rate

Employer Employee Total
Fiscal Year Funded Funded Contribution
2011-2012 23.75% 12.25% S 474,366

NOTE 9 — Contributions

Donated assets are reflected as contributions in the accompanying statements at their
estimated value at date of receipt. No amounts have been reflected in the statements for
donated services, since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services.
Nevertheless, a substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their
time to the organization.

NOTE 10 — Note Payable

The School has a loan with US Bank that matures August 2012 and has monthly payments of
$1,922 including 10.0% interest. The note is collateralized with furniture purchased with
the note funds.
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NOTE 10 — Note Payable (Continued)

Maturities of note payable are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2013 S 3,502

NOTE 11 — Revolving Line of Credit

The School maintains a $200,000 revolving line-of-credit with Wells Fargo Bank with an
interest rate at 5.25%. The balance as of June 30, 2012 was SO.

NOTE 12 — Budgetary Information

The School is required by the State of Nevada Department of Education to adopt a final
budget for the subsequent year by May 1 of each year but is not required to augment the
budget during the year. Further, no other provisions of the Nevada Revised Statues neither
require nor prohibit augmentation of the annual budget. The School did not augment its

budget. The original and final budget is presented in the supplementary information in the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

NOTE 13 — Compliance with Nevada Revised Statues and Nevada Administrative Code

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas conformed to all significant statutory constraints on
the financial administration during the fiscal year.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Schedule of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

CFDA
Contract/Grant Number Expenditures
Passed through Clark County School District
Special Education Plan B 84.027 S 41,984
Special Education DIG 84.027 5,000
Total S 46,984
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Budgetary Comparison for the General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive (Negative)
Budgeted Amounts Final to
Original Final Actual Actual
Revenues
State Sources S 6,805,943 S 6,805,943 $ 6,875,372 S 69,429
Donations/Fundraising 77,000.00 77,000.00 102,580 25,580
Other 836,476 836,476 812,575 (23,901)
Total Revenues 7,719,419.40 7,719,419.40 7,790,527 71,108
Expenditures
Instruction
Regular 4,440,670 4,440,670 4,064,319 (376,351)
Total Instruction 4,440,670 4,440,670 4,064,319 (376,351)
Support Services
Administration 960,881 960,881 988,844 27,963
Facilities 1,721,227 1,721,227 1,447,830 (273,397)
Support Services 409,522 409,522 440,764 31,242
Total Support Service 3,091,630 3,091,630 2,877,438 (214,192)
Total Expenditures 7,532,300 7,532,300 6,941,757 (590,543)
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenue over Expenditures 187,119 187,119 848,770 661,651
Net Change in Fund Balance 187,119 187,119 848,770 661,651
Fund Balance - Beginning 172,575 172,575 172,575 -
Fund Balance - Ending S 359,694 S 359,694 S 1,021,345 S 661,651

The accompanying are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CouLsoN & AssOCIATES, LTD.
CERTIFIED PuBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & DONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

We have audited the financial statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2012. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards. :

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas’s internal controls over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility thata
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

6170 RipGeEVIEW CT., STE. O, RENO, NV 89519 TeL (775) 825-4444 Fax (775) 996-4 100
WWW.COULSONCFA.COM
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors,

and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Coaloon & Hssociates, Lrd,

Reno, Nevada
October 25, 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013,
which collectively comprise of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Coral Academy
of Science Las Vegas’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Coral
Academy of Science Las Vegas as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial
position thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas.
The accompanying schedule of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the Nevada Department of Education, and is not a required part of the financial
statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. This schedule has not been audited in accordance with requirements of the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Cowloon & »ssociates, Ltd.

Reno, Nevada
October 18, 2013



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

This section of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ annual financial report presents our discussion
and analysis of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ financial performance during the fiscal year
that ended June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas completed the year with net assets of $1,253,003, an
increase of $130,037 from prior year.

e Overall revenues were $8,524,608, an increase from prior year revenues of $7,837,511.
Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’ basic financial statements. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ basic financial statements
comprise three components: 1) government—wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad over-view of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increase or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas that are principally supported by the State of Nevada per pupil funding. The governmental
activities of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas include instruction, support services, operation
and maintenance of facilities. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8
and 9 of this report.
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Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas uses only governmental funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as government activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’ near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmental-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’ near-term financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities. These reconciliations are on pages 11 and 13, respectively.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditure, and changes in fund balance for the
General and Special Grant Funds, both of which are considered to be major funds. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 and 12 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found starting on page 14 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also present certain required supplementary information concerning Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas’ budget process. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas adopts an annual budget
and a budgetary comparison in the supplementary information section of this report.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,253,003 as of June 30,
2013.

The following presents a summary of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’s net assets for the
following fiscal years.

As of As of As of
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011

Current Assets S 1,797,368 S 1,756,522 S 886,243

Capital Assets 252,483 229,457 222,417

Total Assets 2,049,851 1,985,979 1,108,660

Current Liabilities 796,848 863,013 737,494

Long-Term Liabilities - - 6,280

Total Liabilities 796,848 863,013 743,774
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,

net of related debt 252,483 226,771 222,417

Unrestricted 1,000,520 896,195 142,469

Total Net Assets S 1,253,003 S 1,122,966 S 364,886

Assets remained consistent compared to June 30, 2012. Cash increased by $514,507 while deposits
decreased by $442,495. The decrease was due to the expired lease/purchase option on the Sandy
Ridge campus.
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Changes in Net Assets. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ total revenues for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013 were 8,524,608. The total costs of all programs and services were $8,394,571.
The following is a summary of the changes for the following fiscal years.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
year ended year ended year ended
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011
Revenues:
Program Revenue
Charges for Service S 887,659 S 739,415 S 695,898
Government Grants 59,723 46,984 40,397
General Revenue
Donations 135,518 102,580 93,242
Other Income - - -
State Funding 7,366,790 6,875,372 5,320,851
Uniform Income 74,918 73,160 56,360
Total Revenues 8,524,608 7,837,511 6,206,748
Expenses:
Instruction 4,566,799 4,141,607 3,470,980
Support Services 414,077 440,764 321,470
Administration 1,137,219 987,044 763,347
Facilities 2,164,859 1,433,128 1,160,521
Un-allocated Depreciation 111,617 76,888 73,189
Total Expenses 8,394,571 7,079,431 5,789,507
Increase in Net Assets S 130,037 S 758,080 S 417,241

Revenue and expenses for the School increased due to increased enrollment. The two new
campuses create additional revenue and facilities costs. Facility cost increased due to the expired
lease/purchase option.

Financial Analysis of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ Funds

As noted earlier, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
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information is useful in assessing Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas’ net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas as a whole is reflected in its
governmental funds. As Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas completed the year, its governmental
funds reported a General fund balance of $1,000,520, an increase of $104,325 from the prior year.
The Grant Fund balance was SO due to spending all available grant monies.

Budgetary Highlights

There are a few variances from the budget to the actual results. Actual state funding exceeded the
budgeted amount and donations/fundraising proved successful to the School. In terms of
expenditures, instructional and facilities were less than budgeted.

A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas’ actual financial activity is provided in this report as required supplementary
information.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2013, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas had total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) of $252,483 which included classroom equipment, computers, tenant
improvements, vehicles, and furniture. This amount represents an increase (net of related
depreciation) of $23,026. Total depreciation expense was $111,617. Additional information on
capital assets can be found in the notes to financial statements starting on page 18.

On the governmental financial statements capital assets are expensed in the period they are
purchased as they are not considered financial resources.

Purchase of Sandy Ridge Campus

During the FYE 2013 the purchase of the Sandy Ridge Campus by Coral Education Corporation,
a nonprofit entity, was not completed. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas has prepaid rent in
anticipation of this purchase. The financial statements reflect the write-off of these deposits
since the transaction was not finalized. It is the understanding of the Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas that Coral Education Corporation will attempt to purchase the location again and the
prepaid rent will be honored in the future.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ major source of revenue is the per-pupil funding from the
State of Nevada. The School estimates enrollment based on applications received and a projected
late signup before the start of the school year. The amount of the per-pupil funding becomes fixed
as of the official count day in September.

For expenses Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas typically assumes an increase of 5% to 10% over
the prior year for non-contract items. The majority of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
expenses are teacher salaries.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2013

Assets
Current Assets
Cash S 1,595,319
Receivables 42,742
Inventory 52,885
Prepaid 32,213
Deposits 74,209

Total Current Assets 1,797,368

Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets

Computers/Technological Equip 291,416
Furniture & Fixtures 171,361
Tenant Improvements 166,164
Vehicles 3,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (379,458)
Total Capital Assets, Net 252,483
Total Assets S 2,049,851
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable S 45,310
Credit Cards Payable 9,039
Deferred Income 131,823
Wages and Benefits Payable 544,032
Book Deposits 66,644
Current Portion of Long Term Debt -
Total Current Liabilities 796,848
Total Liabilities S 796,848
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt S 252,483
Unrestricted 1,000,520
Total Net Assets S 1,253,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
9



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Statement of Activites
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Net Revenues (Expenses) and
Change in Net Assets

Charges Operating Government
Expenses For Service Grants Activities Total
Function/Program
Governmental Activities
Instruction
Regular S 4,484,226 S 887,659 S - S (3,596,567) S (3,596,567)
Special 82,573 - 59,723 (22,850) (22,850)
Total Instruction 4,566,799 887,659 59,723 (3,619,417) (3,619,417)
Support
Facilities 2,164,859 - - (2,164,859) (2,164,859)
General Administration 1,137,219 - - (1,137,219) (1,137,219)
Support Services 414,077 - - (414,077) (414,077)
Depreciation 111,617 - - (111,617) (111,617)
Total Support 3,827,772 - - (3,827,772) (3,827,772)
Total Governmental Activities 8,394,571 887,659 59,723 (7,447,189) (7,447,189)
Total S 8,394,571 S 887,659 S 59,723 (7,447,189) (7,447,189)
General Revenues:
State Funding 7,366,790 7,366,790
Donations/Fundraising 135,518 135,518
Other 74,918 74,918
Total General Revenues 7,577,226 7,577,226
Changes in Net Assets 130,037 130,037
Net Assets - Beginning 1,244,614 1,244,614
Prior Period Adjustment (121,648) (121,648)
Net Assets - Ending S 1,253,003 S 1,253,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
10




CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2013

Grant
General Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,595,319 S - $ 1,595,319
Receivables 42,742 - 42,742
Inventory 52,885 - 52,885
Prepaid 32,213 - 32,213
Deposits 74,209 - 74,209
Total Assets S 1,797,368 S - S 1,797,368
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts Payable S 45,310 S - S 45,310
Credit Cards Payable 9,039 - 9,039
Deferred Income 131,823 - 131,823
Wages and Benefits Payable 544,032 - 544,032
Book Deposits 66,644 - 66,644
Total Liabilities 796,848 - 796,848

FUND BALANCE
Unassigned 1,000,520

1,000,520

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 1,797,368 S S 1,797,368

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
11



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2013

Total Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds S 1,000,520

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in
governmental funds

Cost of Capital Assets 631,942
Accumulated Depreciation (379,459) 252,483
Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 1,253,003

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements
12



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Grant
General Funds Total
REVENUES
State Sources S 7,366,790 S 59,723 7,426,513
Donations/Fundraising 135,518 - 135,518
Other 962,577 - 962,577
Total Revenues 8,464,885 59,723 8,524,608
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Regular Instruction 4,596,650 - 4,596,650
Special Instruction 22,850 59,723 82,573
Total Instruction 4,619,500 59,723 4,679,223
Support Services
Administration 1,137,219 - 1,137,219
Facilities 2,193,266 - 2,193,266
Support Services 414,077 - 414,077
Total Support Service 3,744,562 - 3,744,562
Total Expenditures 8,364,062 59,723 8,423,785
Net Change in Fund Balance 100,823 - 100,823
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 1,021,345 1,021,345
Prior Period Adjustment (121,648) - (121,648)
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 1,000,520 S - 1,000,520

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
13



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
to the Statement of Activities
June 30, 2013

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of activities are different because:

Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases are reported in the
governmental funds as expenditures but is reported as a reduction in
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Activities.

Repayment of debt

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,
those costs are allocated over their useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense.
Capital Outlays

Disposal of Assets
Depreciation Expense

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

The Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas was organized to operate a public charter school
sponsored by the Clark County School District in Las Vegas, Nevada, under Nevada Revised
Statutes 386.500 to 386.610. Currently, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas operates at
grades K through 12 levels.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas receives funding from state, federal and local
government sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source
entities. However, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is not included in any other
governmental “reporting entity” as defined in GASB pronouncements, since its Board of
Directors has decision making authority, the power to designate management, the ability
to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) present financial information about Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas as a whole. The reported information includes all the activities of Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the expenses are offset by
program revenues. Program revenues include grants, per pupil funding from the State of

Nevada, donations, and various fundraising activities.

Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resource
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are record when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flow.

15
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered available when they are collectible with in the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under the accrual accounting. However,
compensated absences are recorded only when the payment is due.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas maintains its accounts and prepares its financial
statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting as required by Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) 218.825. The budget of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is also
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The accounts of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas are organized and operated on
the basis of funds and account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum
number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas has the following fund types:

Governmental funds are used to account for Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
general activities. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.,
when it is “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Coral
Academy of Science Las Vegas considers all revenue available if it is collected within 60
days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is
recognized when due, and certain claims and judgments which are recognized when
the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources.

Interest is subject to accrual. Other receipts become measurable and available when

cash is received by Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas and are recognized as revenue
at that time.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on how amounts can be spent. These include “non-
spendable” which are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventory or
prepaid items, “restricted” by conditions of law, regulation, grants or contracts with
external parties, “committed” which arise from majority votes of the School’s Board,
“assigned” which reflect an intent by the Principal or a person assigned by the Board, or
“unassigned” which is the residual amount.

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for expenditures, it
is the School’s policy to use restricted fund balances first, then unrestricted as needed.
Expenditures incurred in the unrestricted fund balances shall be reduced first from
committed fund balance, then from the assigned fund balance and lastly from the
unassigned fund balance.

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

The general fund is Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Grant funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for special purposes.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reported issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation
No.48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“FIN48”). FIN 48 (now referred to as FASB ASC 740-
10), requires entities to disclose in their financial statements the nature of any uncertainty
in their tax position. For tax-exempt entities, their tax-exempt status itself is deemed to be
an uncertainty, since events could potentially occur and jeopardize the tax-exempt status.

The school has not recognized any benefits from uncertain tax positions and believes it has
no uncertain tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of the
balance sheet date of June 30, 2013.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash

Cash includes demand deposits held at the bank.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds.”

Inventory

Inventory is carried at original purchase cost.

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include land and improvements, buildings and improvements,
furniture, equipment are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if purchase or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated

useful lives:
Computer and Technological Equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and Equipment 7-10 years
Tenant Improvements 7-15 years
Vehicles 3-5 years

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets:

Net assets in the government-wide financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments orimposed by law through state
statute.

Fund Balance:
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance
can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent

because they are either (a) not in spendable form, such as inventory or prepaid items, or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance —This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Committed Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific
purpose imposed by majority vote of School’s governing body (highest level of decision-
making authority). Any changes or removal of the specific purpose requires majority action
by the governing bodies that approved the original action.

Assigned fund balance — Portion of fund balance that the School intends to use for specific
purposes.

Unassigned fund balance — Portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another
fund or restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 2 — Cash

At June 30, 2013, the school had one account held at one institution where it is insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Amounts exceeding the FDIC
limit are insured under the State Treasurer's Pooled Collateral Program. The program
established pursuant to NRS 356.350 requires each depository to maintain as collateral
acceptable securities having a fair market value that is at least 102 percent of the amount
of the uninsured balances of the public money held by the depository.

NOTE 3 — Accounts Receivable

At June 30, 2013, $42,742 was additional funds due from the State of Nevada’s
Department of Education.

NOTE 4 — Inventory

At June 30, 2013, the schools inventory balance was $52,885, which consists of uniforms
available for sale to students.

NOTE 5 — Prepaid

At June 30, 2013, the prepaid balance was $32,213, which consists of $18,788 of
inventory purchased by not yet received by June 30, 2013 and health insurance of
$13,425 with is due the month in advance.

NOTE 6 — Deposits

At June 30, 2013, the deposit balance was $74,209, which consists of security deposits
in the amount of $47,236 for the Tamarus campus and $26,973 for the Windmill
campus. Amounts will be applied to the last month rent.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 7 — Capital Assets

Capital asset balances and activities for the year ended June 30, 2013 were as follows:

Governmental Activities
Computer Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture & Fixture
Leasehold Improvements

Total at historical cost

Less Accumulated Deprecation

Governmental Activities -
Capital Assets, net

NOTE 8 — Operating Leases

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
S 196,996 S 94,421 S - S 291,417

3,000 - - 3,000
174,128 23,952 26,720 171,360
137,757 28,407 - 166,164
511,881 146,780 26,720 631,941
282,424 111,617 14,583 379,458

S 229,457 S 35,163 S 12,137 S 252,483

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas conducts its operations from three facilities which are
leased from different lessors with various terms and payments. 1) The Tamarus campus
lease commenced September 2008 with a base rent of $21,630 and increasing yearly at a
rate of 3% through June 2018. For the year ending June 30, 2013 the rate was $24,345.
2) The Windmill campus lease commenced June 2013 with a base rent of $26,973 and
increasing yearly at rate of 2% through June 2020. 3) The Sandy Ridge campus lease was
extended June 2013 with monthly payments of $58,000 for the first year and $60,000 for
the second year. Rent expense for all three locations for the year ending June 30, 2013

was $1,264,217.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments related to the campuses:

June 30

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 and thereafter
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Amount

$1,283,656
1,359,130
654,993
671,268
1,452,360

$ 5,421,407



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

The School also has multiple copier leases which are not capitalized. Equipment rent
expense for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $24,836. The following is a schedule of
future minimum lease payments:

June 30 Amount
2014 S 24,836
2015 16,084
2016 5,490
2017 -

2018 and thereafter - -

S 46,410

NOTE 9 — Public Employees Retirement System

Plan Description

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas contributes to the Public Employees Retirement
System of the State of Nevada (PERS), a cost sharing, multiple employers, defined benefit
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada.
PERS provides retirement benefits, disability benefits, and death benefits, including annual
cost of living adjustments, to plan members and their beneficiaries. Chapter 286 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes establishes the benefit provisions provided to the participants of
PERS. These benefit provisions may only be amended through legislation. The Public
Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
PERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System
of the State of Nevada, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, NV 89703-1599 or by calling (775)
687-4200.

Funding Policy

Plan members are funded under the following two methods: Under the employer pay
contribution plan, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is required to contribute all
amounts due under the plan. The second funding mechanism for providing benefits is the
employer/employee paid contribution plan. Under this method, employees are required to
contribute a percentage of their compensation to the plan, while Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas is required to match that contribution. The contribution requirements of plan
members and Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas are established by NRS 296. The funding
mechanism may only be amended through legislation. Effective July 1, 2013 the funding
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rate will increase for both Employer Funded and Employee Funded contributions to 25.75%
and 13.25% respectively. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ contribution rates and
amount contributed for the year are as follows:

Contribution Rate

Employer Employee Total
Fiscal Year Funded Funded Contribution
2012-2013 23.75% 12.25% $ 607,928

NOTE 10 — Donated Assets and Services

Donated assets are reflected as contributions in the accompanying statements at their
estimated value at date of receipt. No amounts have been reflected in the statements for
donated services, since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such
services. Nevertheless, a substantial number of volunteers have donated significant
amounts of their time to the organization.

NOTE 11 — Revolving Line of Credit

The School maintains a $400,000 revolving line-of-credit with Wells Fargo Bank with an
interest rate at 3.5%. The balance as of June 30, 2013 was SO.

NOTE 12 — Budgetary Information

The School is required by the State of Nevada Department of Education to adopt a final
budget for the subsequent year by May 1 of each year but is not required to augment the
budget during the year. Further, no other provisions of the Nevada Revised Statues neither
require nor prohibit augmentation of the annual budget. The School did not augment its
budget. The original and final budget is presented in the supplementary information in the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

NOTE 13 — Prior Period Adjustment

The net assets of the governmental activities and fund balance of the general fund at
the beginning of the year has been adjusted reflect the proper employee benefits at
June 30, 2012. Had the expenses been accrued, the net assets and fund balance for the
previous year would have decreased by $121,648.
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NOTE 14 — Compliance with Nevada Revised Statues and Nevada Administrative Code

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas conformed to all significant statutory constraints on
the financial administration during the fiscal year.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Budgetary Comparison for the General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Positive (Negative)
Budgeted Amounts Final to
Original Final Actual Actual
Revenues
State Sources S 7,324,298 S 7,324,298 S 7,366,790 S 42,492
Donations/Fundraising 100,000 100,000 135,518 35,518
Other 856,477 856,477 962,577 106,100
Total Revenues 8,280,775 8,280,775 8,464,885 184,110
Expenditures
Instruction
Regular 4,686,862 4,686,862 4,596,650 90,212
Total Instruction 4,686,862 4,686,862 4,596,650 90,212
Support Services
Administration 1,212,305 1,212,305 1,137,219 75,086
Facilities 1,750,924 1,750,924 2,193,266 (442,342)
Support Services 554,900 554,900 414,077 140,823
Total Support Service 3,518,129 3,518,129 3,744,562 (226,433)
Total Expenditures 8,204,991 8,204,991 8,341,212 (136,221)
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenue over Expenditures 75,784 75,784 123,673 S 47,889

Net Change in Fund Balance 75,784 75,784 123,673
Fund Balance - Beginning 359,694 359,694 1,021,345
Prior Period Adjustment - - (121,648)
Fund Balance - Ending S 435,478 S 435,478 S 1,023,370

The accompanying are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Schedule of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

CFDA
Contract/Grant Number Expenditures
Passed through Clark County School District
Early Childhood Grant 84.027 S 1,923
Special Education Plan B 84.027 52,800
Special Education DIG 84.027 5,000

Total S 59,723
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

We have audited the financial statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2013. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas’s internal controls over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors,

and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Cowloson & ssociates, Ltd,

Reno, Nevada
October 18, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014,
which collectively comprise of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Coral Academy
of Science Las Vegas’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Coral Academy
of Science Las Vegas as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position thereof
for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas.
The accompanying schedule of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the Nevada Department of Education, and is not a required part of the financial
statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
This schedule has not been audited in accordance with requirements of the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Cowlson & Hssociates, Ltd.

Reno, Nevada
October 10, 2014



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

This section of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ financial performance during the
fiscal year that ended June 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction with Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas’ financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e Coral Academy of Science Las VVegas completed the year with a net position of $2,281,399,
an increase of $1,028,396 from prior year.

e Overall revenues were $10,162,719, an increase from prior year revenues of $1,638,111.
Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas’ basic financial statements. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ basic financial
statements comprise three components: 1) government—wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad over-view of
Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increase or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result
in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas that are principally supported by the State of Nevada per pupil funding. The governmental
activities of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas include instruction, support services, operation
and maintenance of facilities. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9
and 10 of this report.
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Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Coral
Academy of Science Las Vegas uses only governmental funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as government
activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmental-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas’ near-term financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
These reconciliations are on pages 12 and 14, respectively.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
fund statement of revenue, expenditure, and changes in fund balance for the General and Special
Grant Funds, both of which are considered to be major funds. The basic governmental fund financial
statements can be found on pages 11 and 13 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be
found starting on page 15 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also present certain
required supplementary information concerning Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ budget
process. Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas adopts an annual budget and a budgetary comparison
in the supplementary information section of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas, assets exceeded liabilities by $2,281,398 as of June
30, 2014.

The following presents a summary of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ net position for the
following fiscal years.

As of As of As of
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012

Current Assets $ 4042949  $ 1797368  $ 1,756,522

Capital Assets 8,393,118 252,483 229,457

Total Assets 12,436,067 2,049,851 1,985,979

Current Liabilities 950,053 796,848 863,013

Long-Term Liabilities 9,204,615 - -

Total Liabilities 10,154,668 796,848 863,013

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets and Related

Reserve Accounts, net of related debt 79,667 252,483 226,771

Unrestricted 2,201,732 1,000,520 896,195

Total Net Position $ 2,281,399 $ 1,253,003 $ 1,122,966

Assets increased compared to June 30, 2013. Cash increased by $2,092,496, Capital Assets
increased by $8,140,634, while long-term debt increased by $9,204,615. The increases were due to
the bond issuance and related purchase of the Sandy Ridge campus.
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Changes in Net Position

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 were
$10,162,719. The total costs of all programs and services were $9,134,323. The following is a
summary of the changes for the following fiscal years.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
year ended year ended year ended
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Revenues:
Program Revenue
Charges for Service $ 1,028,994 3 887,659 $ 739,415
Government Grants 73,232 59,723 46,984
General Revenue
Donations 118,597 135,518 102,580
Other Income - - -
State Funding 8,782,696 7,366,790 6,875,372
Uniform/Other Income 159,200 74,918 73,160
Total Revenues 10,162,719 8,524,608 7,837,511
Expenses:
Instruction 5,155,638 4,566,799 4,141,607
Support Services 480,889 414,077 440,764
Administration 1,272,271 1,137,219 987,044
Facilities 1,840,047 2,164,859 1,433,128
Un-allocated Depreciation 385,478 111,617 76,888
Total Expenses 9,134,323 8,394,571 7,079,431
Increase in Net Position $ 1,028,396 $ 130,037 $ 758,080

Revenue and expenses for the School increased due to increased enrollment and increased State
funding per student. Facility cost decreased due to the purchase of the Sandy Ridge Campus on
May 14, 2014 and the utilization of prepaid rent in the prior year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS’ FUNDS

As noted earlier, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
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Governmental Funds

The focus of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas as a whole is reflected in its
governmental funds. As Coral Academy of Science Las VVegas completed the year, its governmental
funds reported a General fund balance of $3,148,282, an increase of $2,147,762 from the prior year.
The Grant Fund balance was $0 due to spending all available grant monies.

Budgetary Highlights

There are a few variances from the budget to the actual results. Actual state funding exceeded the
budgeted amount and donations/fundraising proved successful to the School. In terms of
expenditures, instructional and facilities were less than budgeted.

A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas’ actual financial activity is provided in this report as required supplementary information.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2014, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas had total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) of $8,393,118 which included classroom equipment, computers, tenant
improvements, vehicles, furniture and buildings. This amount represents an increase (net of related
depreciation) of $8,140,635. Total depreciation expense was $385,478. Additional information on
capital assets can be found in the notes to financial statements starting on page 18.

On the governmental financial statements capital assets are expensed in the period they are
purchased as they are not considered financial resources.

Purchase of Sandy Ridge Campus

During the FYE 2014 the purchase of the Sandy Ridge Campus by Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas, a Nevada public charter school, was completed. The purchase was financed through
the issuance of $9,260,000 par amount bonds, less bond issuance costs of $212,840 of which
$7,982,500 was for the building and $1,064,660 allocated to required reserve accounts.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Management Discussion and Analysis

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ major source of revenue is the per-pupil funding from the
State of Nevada. The School estimates enrollment based on applications received and a projected
late signup before the start of the school year. The amount of the per-pupil funding becomes fixed as
of the official count day in September.

For expenses Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas typically assumes an increase of 5% to 10%
over the prior year for non-contract items. The majority of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
expenses are teacher salaries.



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

Governmental
Activities
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 2,796,651
Cash - Restricted 891,164
Receivables 166,278
Inventory 45,050
Prepaid 73,065
Deposits 70,741
Total Current Assets 4,042,949
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets
Building 7,982,500
Bond Issue Costs 469,380
Computers/Technological Equipment 334,435
Furniture & Fixtures 171,361
Tenant Improvements 192,097
Vehicles 3,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (759,655)
Total Capital Assets, Net 8,393,118
Total Assets $ 12,436,067
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 69,928
Credit Cards Payable 4,394
Deferred Income 187,537
Wages and Benefits Payable 550,215
Book Deposits 82,594
Current Portion of Long Term Debt 55,385
Total Current Liabilities 950,053
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Debt 9,204,615
Total Non-Current Liabilities 9,204,615
Total Liabilities $ 10,154,668
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets and Related Reserve Accounts,
net of related debt $ 79,667
Unrestricted 2,201,732
Total Net Position $ 2,281,399

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenues
and Change in Net Position

Charges Operating Government
Expenses For Service Grants Activities Total
Function/Program
Governmental Activities
Instruction
Regular $ 5064953 $ 1028994 % - $ (4,035,959) $ (4,035,959)
Special 90,685 - 73,232 (17,453) (17,453)
Total Instruction 5,155,638 1,028,994 73,232 (4,053,412) (4,053,412)
Support

Facilities 1,840,047 - - (1,840,047) (1,840,047)
General Administration 1,272,271 - - (1,272,271) (1,272,271)
Support Services 480,889 - - (480,889) (480,889)
Depreciation 385,478 - - (385,478) (385,478)
Total Support 3,978,685 - - (3,978,685) (3,978,685)
Total Governmental Activities 9,134,323 1,028,994 73,232 (8,032,097) (8,032,097)
Total $ 9134323 $ 1028994 $ 73,232 (8,032,097) (8,032,097)

General Revenues:
State Funding 8,782,696 8,782,696
Donations/Fundraising 118,597 118,597
Other 159,200 159,200
Total General Revenues 9,060,493 9,060,493
Changes in Net Position 1,028,396 1,028,396
Net Position - Beginning 1,253,003 1,253,003
Net Position - Ending $ 2,281,399 $ 2,281,399

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2014

Bond Building
General Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 2,796,651 $ 891,164 $ 3,687,815
Receivables 166,278 - 166,278
Inventory 45,050 - 45,050
Prepaid 73,065 - 73,065
Deposits 70,741 - 70,741
Total Assets $ 3,151,785 $ 891,164 $ 4,042,949
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 69,928 $ - $ 69,928
Credit Cards Payable 4,394 - 4,394
Deferred Income 187,537 - 187,537
Wages and Benefits Payable 550,214 - 550,214
Book Deposits 82,594 - 82,594
Total Liabilities 894,667 - 894,667
FUND BALANCE
Restricted - 891,164 891,164
Unassigned 2,257,118 - 2,257,118
Total Fund Balance 2,257,118 891,164 3,148,282

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,151,785 $ 891,164 $ 4,042,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

Total Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 3,148,282

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

All debt related to capital assets used in governmental activities
are not reported as liabilities in governmental funds

Debt Related to Capital Assets (9,260,000)
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported as assets in
governmental funds

Cost of Capital Assets 9,152,772
Accumulated Depreciation (759,655) 8,393,117
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 2,281,399

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Bond Building
General Fund Total
REVENUES
State Sources $ 8855928 % - $ 8,855,928
Donations/Fundraising 118,597 - 118,597
Other 1,188,194 - 1,188,194
Bond Issuance - 9,260,000 9,260,000
Total Revenues 10,162,719 9,260,000 19,422,719
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Regular Instruction 5,113,253 - 5,113,253
Special Instruction 90,685 - 90,685
Total Instruction 5,203,938 - 5,203,938
Support Services
Administration 1,272,271 - 1,272,271
Facilities 1,865,980 - 1,865,980
Support Services 480,889 - 480,889
Capital Outlay - 8,451,880 8,451,880
Total Support Service 3,619,140 8,451,880 12,071,020
Total Expenditures 8,823,078 8,451,880 17,274,958
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,339,641 808,120 2,147,761
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 1,000,520 - 1,000,520
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ 2,340,161 $ 808,120 $ 3,148,281

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2014

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 2,147,761

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases are reported in the
governmental funds as expenditures but is reported as a reduction in
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Activities.

Debt Related to Capital Assets (9,260,000)
Repayment of debt -

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,
those costs are allocated over their useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.

Capital Outlays 8,526,113

Disposal of Assets -

Depreciation Expense (385,478)
Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,028,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial statements of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

The Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas was organized to operate a public charter school
sponsored by the State Public Charter School Authority in Las Vegas, Nevada, under Nevada
Revised Statutes 386.500 to 386.610. Currently, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas
operates at grades K through 12 levels.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas receives funding from state, federal and local
government sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities.
However, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is not included in any other governmental
“reporting entity” as defined in GASB pronouncements, since its Board of Directors has
decision making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly
influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) present financial information about Coral Academy of Science Las
Vegas as a whole. The reported information includes all the activities of Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the expenses are offset by
program revenues. Program revenues include grants, per pupil funding from the State of
Nevada, donations, and various fundraising activities.

Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resource
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are record when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flow.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered available when they are collectible with in the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under the accrual accounting. However, compensated
absences are recorded only when the payment is due.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas maintains its accounts and prepares its financial
statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting as required by Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) 218.825. The budget of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is also
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The accounts of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas are organized and operated on
the basis of funds and account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum
number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas has the following fund types:

Governmental funds are used to account for Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
general activities. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.,
when it is “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Coral Academy
of Science Las Vegas considers all revenue available if it is collected within 60

days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized
when due, and certain claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations
are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Interest is subject to accrual. Other receipts become measurable and available when

cash is received by Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas and are recognized as revenue
at that time.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on how amounts can be spent. These include “non-spendable”
which are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventory or prepaid items,
“restricted” by conditions of law, regulation, grants or contracts with external parties,
“committed” which arise from majority votes of the School’s Board, “assigned” which
reflect an intent by the Principal or a person assigned by the Board, or “unassigned” which is
the residual amount.

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for expenditures, it is the
School’s policy to use restricted fund balances first, then unrestricted as needed.
Expenditures incurred in the unrestricted fund balances shall be reduced first from
committed fund balance, then from the assigned fund balance and lastly from the unassigned
fund balance.

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

The general fund is Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Grant funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for special purposes.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reported issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation
No0.48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“FIN48”"). FIN 48 (now referred to as FASB ASC
740-10), requires entities to disclose in their financial statements the nature of any
uncertainty in their tax position. For tax-exempt entities, their tax-exempt status itself is
deemed to be an uncertainty, since events could potentially occur and jeopardize the tax-
exempt status.

The school has not recognized any benefits from uncertain tax positions and believes it has
no uncertain tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of the
balance sheet date of June 30, 2014.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash
Cash includes demand deposits held at the bank.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds.”

Inventory

Inventory is carried at original purchase cost.

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include land and improvements, buildings and improvements, furniture,
equipment are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if purchase or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated

useful lives:
Technological Equipment 3-7 years
Furniture and Fixtures 7-10 years
Buildings and Leasehold Improvements 7-31 years
Vehicles 3-5 years

Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Position:

Net position in the government-wide financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state
statute.

Fund Balance:

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance
can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent

because they are either (a) not in spendable form, such as inventory or prepaid items, or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance —This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Committed Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific
purpose imposed by majority vote of School’s governing body (highest level of decision-
making authority). Any changes or removal of the specific purpose requires majority action
by the governing bodies that approved the original action.

Assigned fund balance — Portion of fund balance that the School intends to use for specific
purposes.

Unassigned fund balance — Portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another
fund or restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 2 — Cash

At June 30, 2014, the school had eight accounts held at two institutions where they are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Amounts exceeding
the FDIC limit are insured under the State Treasurer's Pooled Collateral Program. The
program established pursuant to NRS 356.350 requires each depository to maintain as
collateral acceptable securities having a fair market value that is at least 102 percent of the
amount of the uninsured balances of the public money held by the depository.

NOTE 3 — Accounts Receivable

At June 30, 2014, $166,278 was additional funds due from the State of Nevada’s Department
of Education.

NOTE 4 - Inventory

At June 30, 2014, the schools inventory balance was $45,050, which consists of uniforms
available for sale to students.

NOTE 5 — Prepaid

At June 30, 2014, the prepaid balance was $73,065, which consists of $27,090 of
inventory purchased but not yet received by June 30, 2014, rent for the Windmill campus
of $27,513 and health insurance of $16,162 which is due the month in advance.

NOTE 6 — Deposits

At June 30, 2014, the deposit balance was $70,741, which consists of security deposits in
the amount of $43,468 for the Tamarus campus and $26,973 for the Windmill campus.
Amounts will be applied to the last month rent.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 7 — Capital Assets

Capital asset balances and activities for the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Governmental Activities
Computer Equipment $ 291417 $ 48300 $§ 5281 $ 334436
Vehicles 3,000 - 3,000
Furniture & Fixture 171,360 - 171,360
Leasehold Improvements 166,164 25,933 192,097
Building - 7,982,500 7,982,500
Bond Issue Costs - 469,380 469,380
Total at historical cost 631,941 8,526,113 5,281 9,152,773
Less Accumulated Depreciation 379,458 385,478 5,281 759,655
Governmental Activities -

Capital Assets, net $ 252,483  $ 8140635 § - $ 8393118

NOTE 8 — Long-Term Obligations

On May 14, 2014, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas, through RBC Capital
Markets, LLC (the “Underwriter”), issued $8,945,000 in Public Finance Authority
Education Revenue Bonds Series 2014A and $315,000 Public Finance Authority
Education Revenue Bonds Series2014B (Taxable). The net proceeds of $9,047,160
were used to purchase the Sandy Ridge campus for $7,982,000 with related reserve

amounts of $1,064,660.

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30, 2014:

Date Date of Interest Amount Balance
Series Issued Maturity Rate (%) Issued June 30, 2014
2014A 5/14/2014 7/1/2044 5-5,625% $ 8945000 $ 8,945,000
2014B 5/14/2014 7/1/2018 5.5% 315,000 315,000
$ 9,260,000 $ 9,260,000
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of long-term debt service requirements to maturity:

Total
Year(s) Ending June 30, Principal Interest Requirements
2015 $ 5538 $ 526,917 $ 582,302
2016 130,000 503,119 633,119
2017 140,000 495,969 635,969
2018 145,000 488,669 633,669
2019 155,000 481,094 636,094
2020-2024 885,000 2,282,469 3,167,469
2025-2029 1,145,000 2,029,100 3,174,100
2030-2034 1,480,000 1,687,249 3,167,249
2035-2039 1,935,000 1,234,406 3,169,406
2040-2044 3,185,000 624,938 3,809,938
Total 9,255,385 * 10,353,930 $ 19,609,315
less current portion (55,385)
add amount held in restricted cash 4,615 45,617
Long term portion $ 9,204,615 $ 10,399,547

*Principal amounts shown exclude bond issue costs of $212,840, annual trustee fees of
$43,500 and S&P annual surveillance fees of $130,500.

Additional Covenants and Agreements

Days Cash on Hand Requirement:

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas has agreed to maintain 60 days cash on hand as of
June 30 in each fiscal year commencing on June 30, 2014, and annually thereafter so long as
any bonds are outstanding. As of June 30, 2014, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas had
133 days cash on hand using government-wide financial statements and 116 days cash on
hand using governmental fund financial statements.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas has agreed to budget for and maintain a debt service
coverage ratio for each fiscal year of not less than 1.10:1.00, commencing with the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2014, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas had a
debt service coverage ratio of 2.43:1.00 using government-wide financial statements and
2.30:1.00 using governmental fund financial statements.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 9 — Operating Leases

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas conducts its operations from three facilities which are
leased from different lessors with various terms and payments. 1) The Tamarus campus lease
commenced September 2008 with a base rent of $21,630 and increasing yearly at a rate of
3% through June 2018. For the year ending June 30, 2014, the rate was $25,075. 2) The
Windmill campus lease commenced June 2013 with a base rent of $26,973 and increasing
yearly at rate of 2% through June 2020. For the year ending June 30, 2014, the rate was
$27,513. 3) The Sandy Ridge campus lease was extended June 2013 with monthly payments
of $58,000 for the first year and $60,000 for the second year through May 2014 when the
Sandy Ridge campus was purchased. Rent expense for all three locations for the year ending
June 30, 2014 was $1,380,808.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments related to the campuses:

June 30 Amount
2015 $ 680,746
2016 696,609
2017 712,884
2018 770,900
2019 and thereafter 730,012

$3,591,151

The School also has multiple copier leases which are not capitalized. Equipment rent
expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $41,089. The following is a schedule of future
minimum lease payments:

June 30 Amount
2015 $ 74,244
2016 74,244
2017 74,244
2018 74,244
2019 and thereafter 53,170

$ 350,146

NOTE 10 — Public Employees Retirement System

Plan Description

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas contributes to the Public Employees Retirement
System of the State of Nevada (PERS), a cost sharing, multiple employers, defined benefit
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada. PERS
provides retirement benefits, disability benefits, and death benefits, including annual cost of
living adjustments, to plan members and their beneficiaries. Chapter 286 of the Nevada
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 10 — Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

Revised Statutes establishes the benefit provisions provided to the participants of PERS.
These benefit provisions may only be amended through legislation. The Public
Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for PERS.
That report may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System of the
State of Nevada, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, NV 89703-1599 or by calling (775)
687-4200.

Funding Policy

Plan members are funded under the following two methods: Under the employer pay
contribution plan, Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas is required to contribute all amounts
due under the plan. The second funding mechanism for providing benefits is the
employer/employee paid contribution plan. Under this method, employees are required to
contribute a percentage of their compensation to the plan, while Coral Academy of Science
Las Vegas is required to match that contribution. The contribution requirements of plan
members and Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas are established by NRS 296. The
funding mechanism may only be amended through legislation. Effective July 1, 2013 the
funding rate increased for both Employer Funded and Employee Funded contributions to
25.75% and 13.25% respectively. Coral Academy of Science Las VVegas’ contribution rates
and amount contributed for the year are as follows:

Contribution Rate

Employer Employee Total
Fiscal Year Funded Funded Contribution
2013-2014 25.75% 13.25 % $ 743,793

NOTE 11 — Donated Assets and Services

Donated assets are reflected as contributions in the accompanying statements at their
estimated value at date of receipt. No amounts have been reflected in the statements for
donated services, since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services.
Nevertheless, a substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their
time to the organization.

NOTE 12 — Revolving Line of Credit

The School maintains a $500,000 revolving line-of-credit with Wells Fargo Bank with an
interest rate at 3.25%. The balance as of June 30, 2014 was $0.

24



CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 13 — Budgetary Information

The School is required by the State of Nevada Department of Education to adopt a final
budget for the subsequent year by May 1 of each year but is not required to augment the
budget during the year. Further, no other provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes neither
require nor prohibit augmentation of the annual budget. The School did not augment its
budget. The original and final budget is presented in the supplementary information in the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

NOTE 14 — Compliance with Nevada Revised Statues and Nevada Administrative Code

Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas conformed to all significant statutory constraints on
the financial administration during the fiscal year.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON FOR THE GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Positive (Negative)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Revenues
State Sources $ 8,688,017 $ 8688017 $ 8855928 $ 167,911
Donations/Fundraising 90,000 90,000 118,597 28,597
Other 943,360 943,360 1,188,194 244,834
Total Revenues 9,721,377 9,721,377 10,162,719 441,342
Expenditures
Instruction
Regular 5,250,892 5,250,892 5,113,253 137,639
Special 62,441 62,441 90,685 (28,244)
Total Instruction 5,313,333 5,313,333 5,203,938 109,395
Support Services
Administration 1,414,089 1,414,089 1,272,271 141,818
Facilities 2,049,825 2,049,825 1,865,980 183,845
Support Services 615,206 615,206 480,889 134,317
Total Support Service 4,079,120 4,079,120 3,619,140 459,980
Total Expenditures 9,392,453 9,392,453 8,823,078 569,375
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenue over Expenditures 328,924 328,924 1,339,641 $ 1,010,717
Net Change in Fund Balance 328,924 328,924 1,339,641
Fund Balance - Beginning 435,478 435,478 1,000,520
Fund Balance - Ending $ 764,402 $ 764402 $ 2,340,161

The accompanying are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA
Contract/Grant Number Expenditures
Passed through Nevada Department of Education
Special Education Plan B 84.027 $ 73,232
Total $ 73232
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

We have audited the financial statements of Coral Academy of Science Las VVegas, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10, 2014. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas’ internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Coral Academy of
Science Las Vegas’s internal controls over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors, and

others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Cowlson & ssociates, Ltd.

Reno, Nevada
October 10, 2014
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Organizational Chart of CASLV with additional Nellis AFB, Centennial Hills and New Henderson Campus
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Number of Applications for Henderson Campuses for 2016-2017 School Year (As of February 28, 2016)
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Central Office Windmill Campus

3039 W. Horizon Ridge Pkwy. Suite 120 2150 Windmill Pkwy.
Henderson, NV 89052 Henderson, NV 89052
702-776-6529 | 702-776-6569 (Fax) 702-485-3410 | 702-722-2718 (Fax)
Tamarus Campus @ SLW Sandy Ridge Campus
8185 Tamarus St. Soaning ts Exeellexce 1051 Sandy Ridge Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89183 Henderson, NV 89052
702-269-8512 | 702-269-3258 (Fax) 702-776-8800 |702-776-8803 (Fax)

CORAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LAS VEGAS
March 1, 2016
BY EMAIL (pgavin@spcsa.nv.gov) AND FAX (775-687-9113)

Patrick J. Gavin

Director

Nevada State Public Charter School Authority
1749 N. Stewart Street, Suite 40

Carson City, NV 89706

Re:  Proposed Amendment to the Charter of
Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

Dear Mr. Gavin:
The Governing Board of Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas (“Coral Academy”™) is

writing to request the approval of the State Public Charter School Authority (the “Authority”) to
an amendment to Coral Academy’s Charter.

The proposed amendment will add one more Henderson, NV site to our existing campuses.
Detailed documentation is attached. Pursuant to NRS 386.527(10), and under Section 12.7.1 of
the Charter School Contract between Coral Academy and the Authority, the school is seeking the
approval of the school’s sponsor, meaning the Authority. Coral Academy’s Governing Board
approved this amendment at a public meeting on February 26, 2015, under a properly-noticed
agenda item.

Please consider this amendment and let me know whether the Authority will also approve
it. If you have any questions or comments, please contact me or the school’s Executive Director,
Mr. Ercan Aydogdu.

Thank you for your time and attention.
Sincerely,

Hasan Deniz, Ph.D.

President of the Governing Board
Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas

www.coralacademy | info@coralacademylv.org
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1.0 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Accounting manual is to document the principles and policies
governing our organization’s accounting practices.

The principles and policies provide:
o A foundation for a system of internal controls
0 Guidance in current financial activities
o Criteria for decisions on appropriate accounting treatment.
o]

Accounting officers with direction and guidance in connection with those
accounting transactions, procedures, and reports that should be uniform
throughout the Organization.

When consistently applied throughout the organization, these principles and
policies assure that the various financial statements issued by the organization
accurately reflect the results of the organization’s operations.

Internal controls provide a system of checks and balances intended to identify
irregularities, prevent waste, fraud and abuse from occurring, and assist in
resolving discrepancies that are accidentally introduced in the operations of the
business.

All additional departmental or functional policies and procedures written should
conform to and parallel the policies in this manual. All changes to policies and

procedures are required to be reviewed to ensure that there are no conflicts with
the policies stated in this Accounting Manual.

CASLYV Staff Bound by these Policies and Procedures

All Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas staff (“CASLV”), (also referred to throughout
this manual as the, “Organization”) staff members are bound by the policies herein and
any deviation from established policy is prohibited. Violation of these policies and
procedures is subject to disciplinary action as established and approved by the Board of
Directors. The CASLV Human Resources Policies and Procedures shall take precedence
over any conflict existing between this manual and the personnel policies.

Official Approval of Accounting Manual

The contents of this manual were approved as official policy of CASLV by the CASLV
Board of Directors. All revisions/amendments are approved by the CASLV Board of
Directors and the date of the Board’s approval is listed on the cover page of this manual
and entitled “Revisions/Amendments”. However, exhibits to this manual may be revised
without Board approval as they are identified as “technical changes”; i.e., chart of
account additions or deletions, revisions to internal office procedures, etc.
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2.0

2.1

SCOPE

The Accounting Manual is an official directive of the Executive Director. It is
published and maintained by the Director of Finance as part of the general
responsibility for organization accounting policy assigned to the office of the
Director of Finance.

RESPONSIBILITY

The policies stated in this manual apply to all operations and activities at our
organization. It is the responsibility of all department managers to help
implement and maintain the procedures required by this manual and to ensure all
processes conform to these requirements.

It is the responsibility of all employees to follow procedures that implement these
policies and to help strive for continuous improvement in all activities and
processes of our organization.

The goal is to make the Manual as clear and useful as possible. All users are
encouraged to contact the Organization’s Director of Finance with any
suggestions for revising or improving the Manual.
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

3.0

3.11

3.1.2

The accounting department is headed by the Director of Finance (DF).
ACCOUNTING ORGANIZATION

The accounting department is organized into two main responsibilities:
Accounting and Finance.

Accounting Department Organization Chart

The organization’s organizational framework provides the foundation for
coordinating and administrating the accounting management system. A
description of the roles and responsibilities applicable to the accounting and
operations staff are maintained by management.

Director of Finance Responsibilities

Director of Finance responsibilities are focused on overseeing the Finance
function, monitoring internal controls, refinancing debt, raising capital, debt and
or equity appropriations, cash management, Treasury investments, fund balances,
and management activities.

The Director of Finance is responsible to the Executive Director for all long-range
financial matters for both Coral Academy of Science Las Vegas and its Charter
Schools and to establish organization-wide financial and administrative
objectives, policies, programs, and practices, which insure the organization of a
continuously sound financial structure.

The Director of Finance controls the flow of cash through the organization and
maintains the integrity of funds, assets and other valuable documents.

Major Duties and Responsibilities:

o0 Develops and implements accounting policies, coordinates systems and
procedures, and prepares operating data and special reports as required,
including interim and year-end financial statements. Maintains the
organization’s system of accounts and keeps books and records on all
organization transactions and assets.

o Establishes, coordinates and administers, as an integral part of management,
an adequate plan for the control of operations including, revenue planning,
programs for financing, fundraising forecasts, expense budgets and cost
standards, together with necessary controls and procedures to effectuate the
plan.

o In conjunction with the Executive Director and Director of Finance,
coordinates, reviews, and endorses budget proposals, discusses proposed
changes and significant changes.

o Compares performance with operating plans and standards, and reports and
interprets the results of operations to all levels of management.
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3.13

3.2

3.3

o0 Provides for the control and editing of all organization orders, to insure
conformity to established policies and procedures, and to facilitate data
control and retrieval of records generated by these orders.

o0 Establishes and administers non-profit tax policies and procedures.

O Supervises or coordinates the preparation of reports to Federal, State, and
Local government agencies.

o0 Provides Site Directors and their schools with information required by them to
carry out their assigned responsibilities.

0 Assures protection for the assets of the business through internal control,
internal auditing and assuring proper insurance coverage.

o Provides advice on all matters to the Director of Finance and the Executive
Director.

Accounting Staff Responsibilities

Accounting staff responsibilities are focused on accurately documenting the
Organization’s operations, collecting all money owed to the organization, and
responsibly disbursing money owed to vendors.

The accounting staff consists of the following:

o Designated Accountants. Responsible for performing a variety of
administrative, office and clerical functions. Prepares accounting and
financial reports and ensures accurate accounting systems and record keeping.
Reports directly to the Director of Finance. Assists in recording of Accounts
Payable, Accounts Receivable, Purchasing, Collections, and Coordinating
activities with all schools.

o0 Purchasing/Payroll Manager. The Purchase/Payroll Manager is responsible
for Purchases and Payroll transmission to the payroll processing company.

MANAGEMENT COMMITMENT

Senior Management at our organization shows its commitment to the accounting
management system through the development and implementation of this
accounting manual.

MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING POLICY

Our organization has established an Accounting Manual that we feel is
appropriate to our organization and meets the practices set forth in GAAP. This
policy is communicated throughout the organization. Department managers and
supervisors are responsible for ensuring all employees understand the policy. To
ensure our policy remains appropriate, it is reviewed at least annually at one of
our Management Review meetings.

The Organization Accounting Policy:

% It is the policy of our organization to design and produce financial statements
in keeping with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements, Generally Accepted
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3.4
34.1

3.4.2

3.5
3.5.1

Governmental Accounting Principles, (GAGAS) of Financial Accounting
Concepts and comply with all statutory and regulatory requirements. We
accomplish this by adhering to our Accounting Management System and use
operational methods as documented in our Accounting Manual.

% We strive to continually improve the effectiveness of our Accounting
Management System by monitoring our performance against our established
objectives and through leadership that promotes employee involvement. This
concept represents our organization’s commitment to quality accounting and
the increasing need to better serve our students, stakeholders, and employees.

PLANNING
Accounting Objectives

Our organization shall establish objectives as considered necessary. These
objectives shall be measurable and consistent with the Accounting Policy, and
reviewed at least at Management Review meetings.

Accounting System Planning

As part of annual strategic planning meetings, our organization establishes
strategic objectives and goals for revenue and expenses. These objectives are
supported by specific measures that track performance against those objectives
using the budgeting process.

As situations arise that demand changes to the accounting management system,
either to meet objectives or because of changing business conditions, all changes
will be reviewed by the management team to ensure the integrity of the
accounting system is maintained.

RESPONSIBILITY, AUTHORITY, AND COMMUNICATION
Responsibility and Authority

Responsibilities and authorities at our organization are defined in each Job
Description.
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3.5.2

3.5.3

354

3.6
3.6.1

3.6.2

Management Representative

The Executive Director has appointed the Director of Finance as the Management
Representative with the responsibility and authority to:

a) Ensure that processes needed for the Accounting Management System are
established, implemented and maintained.

b) Report to top management on the performance of the Accounting
Management System and any need for improvement.

c) Ensure the promotion of awareness of accounting requirements throughout the
organization.

d) Serve as the liaison with external parties on matters relating to the Accounting
Management System.

Internal communication

In line with our organization’s policy of leadership through employee
involvement, our organization’s personnel policies have established open
communication throughout the organization.

The effectiveness of our Accounting Management System is evident through
Internal Audit results, Management Reports, and the departmental performance
measures. Other than confidential information, organization and departmental
performance measures are posted on bulletin boards throughout our organization.
Internal Audit results are shared at departmental meetings as appropriate.

Referenced Procedures:
G&A104 Management Reports
MANAGEMENT REPORTING
General

The Executive Director and management team shall review the organization’s
Accounting Management System as considered necessary to ensure its continuing
suitability, adequacy and effectiveness. This review shall include assessing
opportunities for improvement and the need for changes to the Accounting
Management System, including the accounting policy and objectives.

The Director of Finance is responsible for maintaining records from management
reviews.

Review Input

The Director of Finance and department managers provide the following
information for Management Review meetings:

a) Results of audits
b) Employee feedback
c) Process performance
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3.6.3

3.6.4

3.7

d) Follow-up actions from previous management reviews

e) Changes that could affect the Accounting Management System
f) Recommendations for improvement

Review Output

Records shall include the output from the management review and shall include
any decisions and actions related to:

a) Improvement of the effectiveness of the Accounting Management System and
its processes

b) Improvement of processes related to accounting requirements
c) Resource needs

Referenced Procedures:

G&A104 Management Reports

BUSINESS CONDUCT

Unethical business conduct, actions or even the appearance of unethical behavior
is unacceptable under any conditions. The reputation of the organization depends
on each employee applying common sense in situations where specific rules of
conduct are insufficient to provide clear direction. A strong sense of personal
ethics, which should extend beyond compliance with applicable laws, is necessary
to guide the behavior of all employees.

All employees should comply with the ethical standards of the organization as set
forth in this manual. If a situation feels awkward, then the employees should ask
themselves:

o Ismy action legal and ethical?

0 Does my action comply with corporate policy?

o0 Is my action appropriate in the situation?

0 Would my action be an embarrassment to the organization, if known?
o0 Does my action agree with my personal ethics or behavior?

An employee should be able to answer “yes” to all of these questions before
taking action or compromising themselves in the situation.

All Managers are responsible for the ethical business conduct and behavior of
their employees. Managers should consider the appropriate courses of action in
terms of both ethical and economic factors. Each decision should be based on the
guidelines provided in this Accounting Manual as well as their own personal
beliefs of what’s right and wrong.
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A. Conflicts of Interest

No employee, officer, or agent of CASLV shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract involving CASLYV if a real or apparent conflict of
interest would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when the employee,
officer, or agent, or any member of her or his immediate family, his or her
partner, or a CASLV employee that employs or is about to employ any of the
parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected.

See the CASLV Procurement Policies and Procedures section of this manual for
further information regarding Conflicts of Interest and the penalties for violation.
The CASLV Human Resources Policies and Procedures should also be reviewed
for violation of and penalties associated with the CASLV Conflict of Interest

policy.

B. Compliance With Laws, Regulations and CASLV Policies

CASLYV does not tolerate the willful violation or circumvention of any Federal,
state, local, or foreign law by an employee during the course of that person's
employment; nor does CASLYV tolerate the disregard or circumvention of CASLV
policy or engagement in unscrupulous dealings. Employees should not attempt to
accomplish by indirect means, through agents or intermediaries, that which is
directly forbidden.

Implementation of the provisions of this policy is one of the standards by which
the performance of all levels of employees will be measured.

C. Disciplinary Action

Failure to comply with the standards contained in this policy will result in
disciplinary action that may include termination, referral for criminal prosecution,
and reimbursement to CASLV or to the government, for any loss or damage
resulting from the violation. As with all matters involving disciplinary action,
principles of fairness will apply. Any employee charged with a violation of this
policy will be afforded an opportunity to explain her/his actions before
disciplinary action is taken.

Disciplinary action will be taken:

1. Against any employee who authorizes or participates directly in actions
that are a violation of this policy.

2. Against any employee who has deliberately failed to report a violation or
deliberately withheld relevant and material information concerning a
violation of this policy.
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3.8

3. Against any Director, Manager or supervisor who attempts to retaliate,
directly or indirectly, or encourages others to do so, against any employee
who reports a violation of this policy.

FRAUD AND SUSPECTED MISCONDUCT POLICY

A. Scope

This policy applies to any fraud or suspected fraud involving employees, officers
or directors, or parents as well as vendors, consultants, contractors, funding
sources and/or any other parties with a business relationship with CASLV. Any
investigative activity required will be conducted without regard to the suspected
wrongdoer’s length of service, position/title, or relationship with CASLV.

B. Policy

Management is responsible for the detection and prevention of fraud,
misappropriations, and other irregularities. Fraud is defined as the intentional,
false representation or concealment of a material fact for the purpose of inducing
another to act upon it to his or her injury. Each member of the management team
will be familiar with the types of improprieties that might occur within his or her
area of responsibility, and be alert for any indication of irregularity.

Any fraud that is detected or suspected must be reported immediately to the
immediate supervisor, the Executive Director or alternatively, to the Chair of the
CASLYV Finance and Audit Committee, who coordinates all investigations.

C. Actions Constituting Fraud

The terms fraud, defalcation, misappropriation, and other fiscal irregularities refer
to, but are not limited to:

1. Any dishonest or fraudulent act

2. Forgery or alteration of any document or account belonging to CASLV

3. Forgery or alteration of a check, bank draft, or any other financial
document

4. Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies, equipment, or other assets
of CASLV

5. Impropriety in the handling or reporting of money or financial transactions

S

Disclosing confidential and proprietary information to outside parties
7. Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors,
vendors, or persons providing goods or services to CASLV. Exception:
gifts less than a nominal $10.00 in value.
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8. Destruction, removal or inappropriate use of records, furniture, fixtures,
and equipment
9. Any similar or related irregularity

D. Other Irregularities

Irregularities concerning an employee’s moral, ethical, or behavioral
conduct should be resolved by the departmental management and the
Human Resources Department.

E. Investigation Responsibilities

The Finance and Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for the
investigation of all suspected fraudulent acts as defined in the policy. The
Finance and Audit Committee may utilize whatever internal and/or
external resources it considers necessary in conducting an investigation. If
an investigation substantiates that fraudulent activities have occurred, the
Finance and Audit Committee will issue reports to appropriate designated
personnel and, if appropriate, to the CASLV Board of Directors and/or the
Executive Committee.

Decisions to prosecute or refer the examination results to the appropriate
law enforcement and/or regulatory agencies for independent investigation
will be made in conjunction with legal counsel and senior management, as
will final dispositions of the case.

If suspected fraud or other wrongdoing involves programs funded in
whole or in part with federal funds, additional responsibilities, such as
special reporting and disclosure to the school district or other awarding
agency, may apply to CASLV. It is the policy of CASLV to fully comply
with all additional reporting, disclosure and other requirements pertaining
to suspected acts of fraud as described in award documents and contracts.

F. Confidentiality

The Finance and Audit Committee, the Executive Director and the
Director of Finance, treat all information received confidentially. Any
employee who suspects dishonest or fraudulent activity will notify their
immediate supervisor, Executive Director, or the Chairperson of the
Finance and Audit Committee immediately, and should not attempt to
personally conduct investigations or interviews/interrogations related to
any suspected fraudulent act. See “Reporting Procedures” below.

Investigation results will not be disclosed or discussed with anyone other
than those who have a legitimate need to know. This is important in order
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to avoid damaging the reputations of persons suspected but subsequently
found innocent of wrongful conduct and to protect CASLYV from potential
civil liability.

G. Authority for Investigation of Suspected Fraud

Members of the CASLV Finance and Audit Committee will have:

1. Free and unrestricted access to all CASLV records and premises, whether
owned or rented; and

2. The authority to examine, copy, and/or remove all or any portion of the
contents of files, desks, cabinets, and other storage facilities on the
premises without prior knowledge or consent of any individual who may
use or have custody or any such items or facilities when it is within the
scope of their investigations.

H. Reporting Procedures

Great care must be taken in the investigation of suspected improprieties or
irregularities so as to avoid mistaken accusations or alerting suspected individuals
that an investigation is under way.

An employee who discovers or suspects fraudulent activity will contact the
immediate supervisor, unless the complaint is about the immediate supervisor in
which case the employee would contact the Executive Director. The employee or
other complainant may remain anonymous. All inquiries concerning the activity
under investigation from the suspected individual(s), his or her attorney or
representative(s), or any other inquirer should be directed to the Finance and
Audit Committee or legal counsel. No information concerning the status of an
investigation will be given out. The proper response to any inquiry is “I am not at
liberty to discuss this matter.” Under no circumstances should any reference be

made to “the allegation”, “the crime”, “the fraud”, “the forgery”, “the
misappropriation”, or any other specific reference.

The reporting individual should be informed of the following:

1. Do not contact the suspected individual in an effort to determine facts or
demand restitution.

2. Do not discuss the case, facts, suspicions, or allegations with anyone
unless specifically asked to do so by the CASLV legal counsel or the
Finance and Audit Committee.
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4.0
4.1

4.2

421

4.2.2

4.2.3

ACCOUNTING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

OBJECTIVES

Through this manual and associated procedures and documents, our organization
has established, documented, and implemented an Accounting Management
System. The system is designed to result in improving the effectiveness of our
accounting operations and in our ability to satisfy auditor requirements.

REQUIREMENTS

Maintenance of the Accounting Management System is the responsibility of the
Director of Finance in conjunction with the Accounting Department.

Overview

The Director of Finance maintains all documents that identify the sequence of
accounting processes and, in conjunction with the Accounting Department, and
defines the interactions of the processes within the procedures defining these
processes.

Processes for management activities, provision of resources, and measurement
reporting are included. Procedures shall include the methods needed to ensure
that the accountability and control of processes are effective.

The Director of Finance will monitor, measure, and analyze processes and
implement any actions necessary to achieve intended results and continual
improvement of the processes.

Any processes that are outsourced that may affect our organization’s conformity
to requirements shall be controlled. The Director of Finance is responsible for
defining the methods to control outsourced processes and procedures.

Internal Controls
Internal controls, procedures, and practices will be utilized to ensure that:
o0 Obligations and costs comply with applicable laws.

o All assets are safeguarded against waste, fraud, loss, unauthorized use, and
misappropriation.

0 Revenues and expenditures applicable to organization operations are recorded
and accounted for properly so that accounts and reliable financial and
statistical reports may be prepared and accountability of the assets may be
maintained.

o Programs are efficiently and effectively carried out in accordance with
applicable laws and management policy.

Audit Findings

The Director of Finance will promptly evaluate findings and recommendations
reported by auditors and then determine proper actions in response to audit
findings and recommendations (e.g., develop corrective actions). Audits can be
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4.3

43.1

43.2

4.3.3

434

but are not limited to the annual independent audit or program/contract audits
performed by Federal, State, and Local auditors. The Director of Finance or
designee should complete, within established time frames, all actions that correct
or otherwise resolve the matters brought to management's attention.

TRANSACTIONS

All transactions recorded or posted into the Accounting Management System
should be properly authorized and accurately represent the activity being
documented. Both the timing and amount of the transaction should be in
accordance with organization accounting policies defined in this manual.

Authorization

Transactions and other significant events are to be authorized and executed only
by persons acting within the scope of their authority. It is the principal means of
assuring that only valid transactions and other events are entered into.
Modification or adjustment to previously recorded transactions requires
authorization.

Timing

All transaction dates recorded in the organization accounting system should
accurately reflect the date the transaction occurred. Revenues should be
recognized when earned and expenses when incurred. Processing, cutoff and

period-end closing schedules and procedures should be documented. Cash sales
should be recorded at the time of sale and deposited.

Amounts

Prior or related transactions should be checked for conformity with the transaction
being recorded (e.g., match invoice to purchase order). Amount of posted
transactions should be checked against source documents. Balances with third
parties should be verified as appropriate (i.e. debtors, creditors, or landlord
deposits, etc.). Transactions should be recorded in conformity with documented
policies in this manual.

Accuracy

Transactions should be recorded in the accounting system accurately. An
approved set of general ledger and subsidiary accounts are maintained for assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses, budgetary accounts, programs, departments, and
other accounts.

All transactions should be supported by documentary evidence, which becomes
part of the accounting records. Error transactions should be reviewed, resolved,
and cleared in a timely fashion. Manually determined control totals should be
reconciled with recorded results.

The Accounting Management System utilizes standard forms and provides control
and accountability over these forms. Supervisors should review posted
accounting transactions with source documents and processing documents.
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435

4.4

44.1

4.4.2

Referenced Procedures:

G&A101 Chart of Accounts

G&A104 Management Reports

G&A105 Period-End Review & Closing
G&A121 School Site Accounting

CSH101 Cash Boxes

CSH102 Cash Receipts And Deposits
REV102 Invoicing and Accounts Receivable
REV106 Gifts-In-Kind

REV107 Restricted Funds

CSH107 Bank Account Reconciliations
PUR106 Accounts Payable And Cash Disbursements
PUR107 Meals, Refreshments, and Gifts

DOCUMENTATION

This Accounting Manual and the associated procedures are intended to satisfy the
documentation requirements for an Accounting Management System. The
Director of Finance is responsible for identifying any additional documents
needed to ensure the effective planning, operation and control of processes.

Procedures may vary in detail based on the size of the department or organization
involved and the type of activity performed. Procedure developers shall consider
this as well as the complexity of the processes and interactions, and the
competence of the personnel involved.

Documents may be any medium including: software programs, electronic text
files, or hardcopy documents for example.

Accounting Manual

This Accounting Manual provides the top-level organizational document for the
Accounting Management System. The Accounting Manual defines the scope,
policies and processes of our organization’s Accounting Management system as
well as Management’s responsibility for the system.

Control of Documents

All Documents required by the Accounting Management System shall be
controlled. The Document Control Procedure defines the controls needed to:

a) Approve documents for adequacy prior to issue.
b) Review and update as necessary and re-approve documents.

c) Ensure that changes and the current revision status of documents are
identified.

d) Ensure that relevant versions of applicable documents are available at points
of use.

e) Ensure that documents remain legible and readily identifiable.
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444

4.4.5

4.5

451

45.2

f) Ensure that documents of external origin are identified and their distribution
controlled.

g) Prevent the unintended use of obsolete documents, and apply suitable
identification to them if they are retained for any purpose.

Control of Records

Procedures define appropriate records to be maintained for the effective operation
of the Accounting Management System, including evidence of conformity to
requirements. Records shall remain legible, readily identifiable and retrievable.
The Files and Records Management Procedure defines the controls needed for the
identification, storage, protection, retrieval, retention time and disposition of
records.

Accounting Transactions

All transactions and other significant events should be clearly documented,
properly classified and readily available for examination.

This standard applies to:

0 The entire process or life cycle of a transaction or event and includes the
initiation and authorization

0 All aspects of the transaction while in process
o lts final classification in summary records.
Referenced Procedures:

G&A102 Files and Records Management
G&A110 Document Control

SECURITY

Access to resources and records should be limited to authorized personnel only.
Accountability for the custody and use of resources should be assigned and
maintained as well. Periodic comparisons should be made of the resources with
the recorded accountability to determine whether the two agree. The frequency of
the comparison shall be a function of the vulnerability of the asset. Restrictions of
access to resources shall also depend upon the vulnerability of the resource as
well as the perceived risk of loss, both of which shall be periodically assessed.

Physical Security

Physical security measures should be adopted to protect the assets and employees
of the Organization from abuse, fraud, theft, or damage. Security procedures for
the protection of assets and employees are addressed within the organization’s
Security Manual.

Disaster Security

Disaster security measures should be adopted to enable the organization to
continue the operations of the Accounting Management System with limited
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454

4.6

4.6.1

interruption. Disaster procedures for operations recovery are addressed within the
organization’s Disaster Manual.

Information Security

Information security measures should be adopted to protect the organization’s
information assets from unauthorized access, abuse, tampering, theft, or use.

Electronic Accounting Information Backup (See Section 5.1.13)

Electronic Accounting Information Backup means measures should be adopted
that ensures that all electronic accounting data is properly backed up to secondary
sources such as off-site web based services and/or other media to protect the
organization’s information in the event of any form of loss.

PROGRAM/GRANT ACCOUNTING

Program/Grant Accounting based on costs is the financial measure of resources
consumed or acquired in accomplishing the specified purpose of the Federal,
State, or Local program, grant, or contract, such as carrying out a project,
contract, or program regardless of when the resources were ordered, received, or
paid for. Program cost can be defined in a variety of ways depending on the
objectives or information desired.

Program/Grant accounting is defined as a technique or method for determining
and accounting for the cost or expenditures of a program. This cost is determined
by direct measurement, specific assignment, or systematic and rational allocation.
Central to program accounting is the process for tracing various input costs to the
services of the organization.

This section presents cost classifications based on such characteristics as time
incurred, reaction to changes in activity levels, program compliance requirements,
and influence on decision making.

Program Costing Purposes

The Designated Accountant should accumulate, distribute, monitor, and evaluate
cost information during each accounting period, when appropriate. Management
will use cost information for purposes such as:

0 Making decisions and planning future operations with the knowledge of
the costs of contracts, programs, and other activities

0 Assisting in establishing standards of performance based at least partially
on past cost history

Determining the efficient and effective distribution and use of resources

Supporting performance evaluation based on actual costs versus budgeted
costs

0 Recovering program costs for products and services provided to
governmental and contract entities

0 Preparing reimbursable work and cooperative agreements
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0 Supporting budget formulation through responses to requests for
information

0 Reviews to evaluate the cost/benefit of program cost information for
specific programs are based on consistent criteria

0 Only the highest level of aggregated information required for management
decisions

The Designated Accountant is responsible for ensuring that any cost information
maintained to meet agency service requirements is minimized and that recovery
of the cost to provide information to agencies is maximized.

Program Cost - Time Incurred

Program Costs may be measured in relationship to the time the cost is incurred.
In many cases, the measurement time for cost is specified in authorizing
documents or contracts for a program. In other cases, the Designated Accountant
is responsible for determining which cost will be used for specific purposes, and
for assuring that similar activities are treated consistently within the organization.

The three most common measurements are historical costs, current actual costs,
and budgeted costs.

o Historical Cost is the cash equivalent price of goods and services at the
date of acquisition. This cost does not change over time. Program
purchases and some overhead cost allocations are based on the historical
costs of running a program based on the organizations experience with the
program.

o Current Actual Cost (also referred to as reimbursement cost) is the current
value of an asset. Many of the organizations Federal, State, and Local
contracts and programs are based on reimbursing the organization for the
actual costs incurred in operating the program. This method is the primary
measurement for Federal, State, and Local programs and contracts.

0 Budgeted Cost (also referred to as standard cost) is the cost that should be
incurred to produce a product or provide a programs service based on past
experience producing or providing like-items. Thus, comparison of actual
costs with the predetermined benchmark alerts program managers to those
areas in which the actual costs appear excessive.

4.6.3 Program Cost - Influence on Decision Making

The Director of Finance and the Designated Accountant are responsible for
working together and classifying costs as either direct or indirect and ensuring
that costs are consistently classified as either direct or indirect in similar
situations. The Designated Accountant is responsible for ensuring that all
program costs are in accordance with the program grant or contract guidelines.

Direct costs are all costs that can be specifically or readily identified with
producing a specific product or providing a specific service. Direct costs include
direct labor, equipment purchased for use on a program, and other direct costs.
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Direct labor is the portion of base wages and salaries, which can be identified
with and charged to a particular activity or program. This includes:

0 Fringe Benefits are those allowances and services provided to employees
as compensation in addition to wages and salaries, including retirement,
health insurance, and life insurance. Fringe benefits are allocated as a rate
applied to direct labor costs. The Purchasing/Payroll Manager are
responsible for determining the fringe rate based on all labor and fringe
costs, regardless of where an employee works. A single fringe rate must be
applied to all employees in all programs, unless the Purchasing/Payroll
Manager has developed separate cost pools that reflect a significantly
different fringe cost among groups of employees. The grant or contract
should be checked for any specific Direct or Indirect allocation rates pre-
defined by the contract.

o Overtime and Premium Pay are charged in the same manner as the regular
wage portion of an employee's earnings for hours identified with a specific
activity.

o0 Other Personnel Costs are charged in the same manner as the related base
labor charge, e.g., allowances for offsite pay, location allowances,
hardship pay, hazardous duty pay, and uniform allowances.

Equipment used in an activity for which costs are accumulated can be charged in
either of two manners: a) charging for the full acquisition cost, or b) recovery of a
portion of depreciation. The Director of Finance and/or Designated Accountant is
responsible for determining whether equipment can be charged in full to a project,
and if not, for determining the rate and basis for charging equipment usage to
projects. The Director of Finance and/or Designated Accountant should confirm
in the grant or contract language for any specific requirements pre-defined by the
contract.

Other direct cost items that are incurred or consumed exclusively for the
completion of a specific activity include the following examples:

o0 Miscellaneous supplies and materials
o0 Equipment rentals
o Travel
o]

Purchased services (i.e., printing, payroll services, and photographic
reproduction)

o Contractual services

Indirect costs are those costs, which cannot be specifically identified with
producing a specific product, or providing a specific service but which can be
shown to bear some relationship to, result from, or be in support of, the product or
service.

Indirect costs must be accumulated in indirect cost pools. The Director of
Finance is responsible for clearly defining identifiable cost pools. Indirect cost or
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4.7

overhead rates are typically defined in Federal, State, and Local grants and
contracts and should be applied according to the terms of the contract. Indirect
costs may include the following examples, if the item is not directly attributable to
a specific activity:
O Space rental
Utilities, including telephone expenses
Postage
Unemployment compensation benefit costs
Data processing, management, and control
Equipment rentals
Miscellaneous supplies and materials
Equipment costs (excluding those recovered as a direct costs)

Training, employee development, and personnel transfers, including costs
of travel and time in-transit

Budget development and program planning
0 Research and development activities

0 Administrative support such as procurement, contracting, office services,
property management, payroll, voucher processing, personnel services,
records management, and document control

0 Reports, including report preparation and distribution
o Safety management, including inspection and training
o EEO and other affirmative action programs

O O O OO 0o o o

@]

The indirect cost pool will generally include costs that benefit both cost
recoverable and non-cost recoverable work. Although indirect costs are not
required to be allocated to non-cost recoverable work, an allocation basis must be
used that would, if applied to all projects or activities, fairly distribute the cost
pool over the benefited activities. Cost recovery projects must not be unduly
burdened with indirect costs.

The Director of Finance is responsible for developing and documenting the
allocation method, using a generally acceptable and consistently applied overhead
rate based on direct costs, identifiable cost pools, and the cost elements that are
charges to those pools.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

There are two fundamental methodologies of accounting, each with assumptions,
constraints and theories, which guide all financial recording, reporting, and
measurement activities: Cash and Accrual.

o Cash basis accounting records financial events only when cash actually
changes hands in an arms-length transaction.
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o0 Accrual basis accounting records revenues when earned and expenses the
costs associated with the revenue earned when incurred.

The organization requires the use of the accrual basis of accounting for financial
transactions.

Page 29 of 60



Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

[This page intentionally left blank]

Page 30 of 60



Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

5.0

PROCESSES AND CONTROLS

The organization has planned and developed the processes needed to properly
document, track and control transactions for revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities,
and equities. The results of this planning are the processes and procedures
defined in our Accounting Management System documentation.

These processes and procedures include the accounting objectives and
requirements for our organization, the required verification, validation, and
inspection activities specific to our organization and the criteria for order
acceptance verification. The records needed to provide evidence that these
processes meet Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP) are defined in
the procedures.

Consideration is given for the need to establish processes, documents, and obtain
resources specific to new orders as they are developed or during contract or order
review.
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5.1 GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

The General and Administrative procedures encompass a wide range of
miscellaneous activities from defining the chart of accounts, maintaining files and
records, to Period-End Review & Closing, Taxes & Insurance, and producing
Management Reports. The following General and Administrative Procedures
should be utilized to control the organization’s miscellaneous accounting
activities.
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5.11

5.12

513

5.1.4

5.15

Chart of Accounts

To facilitate the record keeping process for accounting, all ledger accounts should
be assigned a descriptive account title and account number, also known as a Chart
of Accounts. The Chart of Accounts provides the organization or method for
assignment and maintenance of the organization’s ledger accounts, in order to
produce meaningful financial data for the organization.

Files and Records Management

The organization will retain records in an orderly fashion for time periods that
comply with legal and governmental requirements and as needed for general
business requirements. To accomplish this policy, the organization should outline
the methods for filing, retaining and disposing of all business documentation
generated by the organization. However, this does not necessarily cover internal
or certain day-to-day business correspondence.

Travel and Entertainment

The organization should provide guidelines for travel and entertainment expenses,
account for all advances promptly and accurately and to communicate the
procedures for reimbursement. This applies to all departments and individuals
who travel or entertain for the organization.

The organization recognizes that employees who travel far from home to
represent the organization’s business interests must forego their living
accommodations and may forfeit personal time. Accordingly, the organization
will make efforts to provide comfortable and secure accommodations for lodging,
meals and travel for employees. However, these items are not intended to be
perquisites and the organization reserves the right to deny reimbursement of
expenses that are considered lavish or extravagant.

All reservations required for business travel and entertainment should be made
such that the expense is not lavish and pre-approval should obtained when
necessary prior to engaging in travel. Expenses are to be within established
organization guidelines and will be reimbursed with proper documentation.
Employees are expected to spend the organization’s money as carefully and
judiciously as they would their own.

Management Reports

The organization should provide the format and content requirements for
preparation of the Financial Reports. The Designated Accountants will prepare
summary reports of vital operating statistics for the organization, including
revenues, current debt, operating cash, accounts receivable, budgets, and
projected cash flows. These reports are to be prepared in brevity and are to
supplement detailed monthly and quarterly financial reports and are to be used for
timely "hands-on" management.

Period-End Review & Closing

An orderly, timely and comprehensive review of all general ledger accounts
should be performed or directed by the Director of Finance to ensure an accurate
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5.16

5.1.7

5.18

5.19

representation of the organization’s financial statements. These practices are
aimed at proving that the financial accounts are accurate, and if not, are properly
adjusted to make them accurate, prior to closing.

The organization should provide a general overview of the process to be
completed for reviewing the accounting records at year-end or any particular
month-end prior to closing. These practices apply to all accounts. Typically, all
financial accounts are reviewed and then closed out as of the organization’s year-
end. The organizations fiscal year end is June 30™.

Controlling Legal Costs

All individuals with the responsibility for contracting legal services and/or
approving agreements, contracts, grants, or any other legally associated
transactions should employ various methods to manage and, whenever possible,
minimize legal expenses.

Taxes, Insurance and Retirement

To ensure compliance with all Federal, state, local, and other regulatory taxation
requirements, the organization should outline the general areas of taxation to be
used as a checklist or guide in complying with tax requirements related to each
specific location and organizational structure. This statement applies to all the
business activities of the organization. The organization is a Not-For-Profit
organization; however, there may be from time to time revenue earned that is
taxable as if the organization where a For-Profit entity and those profits would be
considered Unrelated Business Income and subject to tax.

Property Tax Assessments

All property tax assessments will be reviewed for accuracy and proper assessed
valuations to ensure minimum property tax costs to the organization. The
organization should outline the areas for review in assessments and methods for
appealing overstated assessments. This statement applies to the property tax
assessments for all sites owned by the organization. A Non-Profit property tax
exemption is the preferred method to minimize property taxes.

Confidential Information Release

The release of financial, statistical or other information that may be of a
confidential nature to the organization should be controlled. Individual requests
should be referred to the Director of Finance, or appropriate manager for
disposition.

The organization should provide a means for the control of information to banks,
media, credit bureaus, or other agencies and organizations. All requests by an
outsider to an employee regarding financial, donations, revenue, customers,
personnel, vendors, or other organization information is considered confidential
information. If in doubt, verify with the Director of Finance.
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5.1.10

5.1.11

5.1.12

5.1.13

5.1.14

5.1.15

5.1.16

Document Control

All documents used to provide work direction or set policy should be reviewed,
approved, distributed and controlled by the office of the Director of Finance. The
organization should define the methods and responsibilities for controlling
documents used to provide work direction or set policy, and to define methods for
document revision, approval, and distribution. This applies to all documents
required by the Accounting Management System. Documents of internal or
external origin are included.

Fax and E-mail Signatures Accepted

The organization elects to accept E-mail and Facsimile Signatures as authentic
signatures as long as the signature is in “blue” ink.

Maintenance Requests

The organization should define the methods and procedure for submitting
maintenance requests. All individuals with the responsibility for submitting
maintenance requests should evaluate the maintenance issue and carefully
describe the services needed in order to minimize expenses.

Electronic Backup of Accounting Information

Electronic Accounting Information Backup means measures should be adopted
that ensures that all electronic accounting data is properly backed up to secondary
sources such as off-site web based services and/or other media to protect the
organization’s information in the event of any form of electronic data loss.

Political Intervention

Consistent with its tax-exempt status under the Internal Revenue Code, it is the
policy of CASLYV that the organization shall not incur any expenditure for
political intervention. Political intervention does not include lobbying activities,
defined as the direct or indirect support or opposition for legislation, which is not
prohibited under the Internal Revenue Code.

The purpose of this policy is to provide a clear explanation of what non-profit
organization may and may not be involved in with regards to politics.

Accrued Liabilities

The organization will establish a list of commonly incurred expenses that may
require accrual at the end of the fiscal year accounting period.

The purpose of this policy is to properly recognize and accrue liabilities.

Notes Payable

It is the policy of CASLV to maintain a schedule of all notes payable, mortgage
obligations, lines of credit, and other financing arrangements. This schedule shall
be based on the underlying loan documents.
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5.1.17

5.1.18

5.1.19

5.1.20

5.1.21

The purpose of this policy is to properly track and recognize all notes
payable and other similar obligations.

Financial and Tax Reporting

The organization will prepare annual and monthly financial statements as
management considers necessary and prepare non-profit tax information and tax
information returns within six months of the fiscal year close.

The purpose is to control and prepare consistent and accurate financial statements
and tax returns that are relied upon by both internal and external parties.

Budgeting

The organization shall prepare an annual budget on the accrual basis of
accounting and the budget shall be adopted by the Board of Directors. The
budget may be revised as needed. It is the policy of the organization to adopt a
final annual operating budget at least 30 days before the beginning of CASLV’s
fiscal year.

A budget is a management commitment of a plan for present and future CASLV
activities that will ensure survival. It provides an opportunity to examine the
composition and viability of CASLV’s programs and activities simultaneously in
light of all available resources

Insurance

It is the policy of the organization to have an active risk management program
that includes a comprehensive insurance package and to maintain adequate

insurance against general liability, as well as coverage for buildings, contents,
computers, fine arts, equipment, vehicles, machinery and other items of value.

To have a comprehensive insurance package and to maintain adequate insurance
against general liability, as well as coverage for buildings, contents, computers,
fine arts, equipment, vehicles, machinery and other items of value.

Supplies

The organization shall maintain safeguards over supplies to prevent theft,
overstocking, under stocking, spoilage, and obsolescence.

Campus, Fundraising, and Student Activity School Site Accounting

The purpose of this policy is to clearly define relationships between each campus
and with the business office in regards to financial accounting.
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5.1.22

5.1.23

5.1.24

Fraud Reporting & Whistleblower

The organization shall maintain a policy regarding procedures to follow for
individuals who wish to report concerns of fraud or abuse.

Professional Development

Professional development and continuous learning are necessary to maintain the
quality of the Organization’s staff and their ability to contribute effectively to the
mission and goals of the Organization.

Referenced Procedures:

G&A101 Chart of Accounts

G&A102 Files and Records Management
G&A103 Travel and Entertainment

G&A104 Management Reports

G&A105 Period-End Review & Closing
G&A106 Controlling Legal Costs

G&A107 Taxes, Insurance and Retirement
G&A108 Property Tax Assessments

G&A109 Confidential Information Release
G&A110 Document Control

G&A111 Fax and E-mail Signatures Accepted
G&A112 Maintenance Requests

G&A113 Electronic Backup of Accounting Data
G&A114 Political Intervention

G&A115 Accrued Liabilities

G&A116 Notes Payable

G&A117 Financial and Tax Reporting
G&A118 Budgeting

G&A119 Insurance

G&A120 Supplies

G&A121 Campus, Fundraising, and Student Activity School Site Accounting
G&A122 Fraud Reporting & Whistleblower
G&A123 Professional Development

Page 38 of 60



Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

5.2 CASH

Adequate control over all cash receipts and disbursement are a vital element of
the organization’s internal accounting controls. The following Cash Procedures
should be utilized to control the flow of cash through the organization.
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521

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.24

5.25

5.2.6

Cash Boxes

Proper internal control should be maintained over funds received by cashiers
using cash boxes such as at fundraising events at all times. The organization
should identify the practices for cash box control, including cash receipts, credit
cards, special tender items, cash payouts and reconciliation with deposits.

Cash Receipts and Deposits

The organization should establish the methods to be followed for receiving,
applying and depositing cash receipts. This applies to all cash receipts received
by the organization. Accurate internal control of cash receipts and deposits
should be maintained at all times. For example, Cash deposits should be made on
the same day as receipt.

Problem Checks

The organization should describe how problem checks should be handled before
depositing, in order to save time in returning and following-up on unsigned
checks, or those returned by the bank. This applies to all checks received by the
organization.

Wire Transfers

The organization should provide additional payment options to customers and
vendors in order to make funds immediately available to the receiving party.
Wire transfers should be treated with special care and accuracy to prevent loss to
the organization or the customer.

The organization should explain the steps necessary to ensure proper procedures
are followed when processing wire transfer requests. This applies to customers

who are sending or receiving wire transfers and the financial institutions, which

process these requests.

Check Signing Authority

The organization should outline "dollar limits", the check signing authority
process, and limit the number of employees authorized to sign checks, while
ensuring that there should be no fewer than three individuals at all times.

While a hired accountant, office manager, or accounting clerk may be responsible
for entering bills, paying bills, and printing out checks, all printed checks and
related documentation should be presented to a second individual for signing. No
one person or employee (other than perhaps the owner) should be allowed to enter
invoices, select invoices for payment, then print and sign checks. At a minimum,
this process requires at least two individuals to ensure the integrity of the
accounting system remains intact. This applies to all regular bank checking
accounts of the organization.

Check Matters

The organization should describe the process for completing a check request form
to ensure the efficient processing and record keeping of all manual check
requests.
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5.2.7

5.2.8

5.29

5.2.10

5.2.11

5.2.12

5.2.13

5.2.14

Bank Account Re-conciliations

The organization should outline the practices for preparation of a monthly bank
reconciliation and ensure the accuracy of the organization’s bank account records
by proving the monthly balance shown in the bank’s Account Register. This
applies to all bank accounts maintained by the organization.

Inter-Account Bank Transfers

The organization should describe instances where bank transfers are needed and
authorizations required.

Journal Entries and Reclassification Entries

To ensure the accuracy of the Organization’s books and records by proving
documentation of journal entries and reclassification entries. All journal entries
shall be authorized in writing by the Director of Finance initialing or signing the
entries.

Petty Cash Purchases

Purchases of an emergency nature costing $50 or less shall be allowed with the
use of the Petty Cash Fund which shall be maintained in the school site in the
custody of the Site Manager or designee. The item or items to be purchased shall
be verified as not available in the organization’s stock of supplies prior to the
disbursement of cash.

Credit Cards and Debit Cards

It is the policy of the organization to provide credit and debit cards to authorized
members of the organization staff in the performance of their duties and
responsibilities. The use of credit and debit cards is the same as handling cash;
every precaution must be taken to account for all funds, whether Federal, State or
otherwise, and the most efficient and effective purchasing procedures as well as
internal controls will be implemented to safeguard these organizations funds.

Intercompany Receivables and Payables (Due To/Due From)

The organization distributes money to and from the schools, and this policy
documents the procedures and reconciliation of amounts to ensure that year-end
intercompany balances are accurate.

Financial Reserves

The organization should maintain a certain amount of financial reserves in order
to protect itself from unforeseen revenue shortfalls or unexpected expenditures.

Referenced Procedures:

CSH101 Cash Boxes

CSH102 Cash Receipts and Deposits
CSH103 Problem Checks

CSH104 Wire Transfers

CSH105 Check Signing Authority
CSH106 Check Matters
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CSH107 Bank Account Reconciliations

CSH108 Inter-Account Bank Transfers

CSH109 Journal Entries and Reclassification Entries

CSH110 Petty Cash Purchases

CSH111 Credit Cards and Debit Cards

CSH112 Intercompany Receivables and Payables (Due To/Due From)
CSH113 Financial Reserves
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5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

FIXED ASSETS

Accurate reporting, classification and valuation of fixed assets are critical
elements of internal controls because of the general high dollar value of the
capitalized assets. The following Asset Procedures should be utilized to account
for and control all of the organization’s various assets.

Fixed Asset Control and Leases

Proper control procedures will be followed for all capital asset acquisitions,
transfers and dispositions in order to provide internal control of capital equipment
and to assist in reporting. The organization should outline the procedures for
acquiring, disposing and maintaining control of capital assets. This applies to all
capital equipment with a value of $5,000 or more and with a useful life greater
than one year.

Fixed Asset Capitalization & Depreciation

Asset acquisitions with a useful life expectancy of greater than one year and with
a minimum threshold amount as specified by the Director of Finance should be
capitalized by the organization and depreciated.

The organization should delineate the capitalization and depreciation methods for
various asset groups. This applies to all acquisitions of capital assets for the
organization.

Referenced Procedures:

INV101 Fixed Asset Control and Leases
INV102 Fixed Asset Capitalization & Depreciation
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5.4 REVENUE

The proper identification and acceptance of all revenues are an important element
of controls for the statement of revenues and expenses and represents the primary
source of operational cash flow. The following Revenue Procedures should be
utilized to account for and recognize all revenues of the organization.
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5.4.1 Sales Receipt Processing

To ensure the most accurate process for billing for services, i.e. Parenting Fees,
sales receipts will be properly evaluated and approved prior to entry into the
accounting system.

The organization should outline the activities and responsibilities involved in
processing sales receipts.

5.4.2 Invoicing and Accounts Receivable

The Business Office is responsible for the timely preparation and distribution of
invoices to optimize cash flow and customer payments. The Business Office
should also maintain accurate records over Accounts Receivable and abide by
proper internal controls.

The organization should explain the methods for the preparation of invoices and
accounts receivable records processing. This applies to all product sales and
services provided by the organization.

5.4.3 Progress Billing — Grant/Contracts

Progress billings will be made to clients on a timely basis throughout the life of
the project. Projects are typically considered Federal, State, and Local Grant
contracts. These billings will be accurate and easily understood by both parties
involved.

The purpose for creating progress billings is to obtain payment for the portion of
labor and materials, i.e. “reimbursed costs” used up to a certain point in time and
before the project is fully completed. This improves the cash flow typical of
long-term projects or assignments. This procedure applies to all Federal, State,
and Local Grants and Contracts, Service agreements or Projects provided by the
organization.

5.4.4 Account Collections

All open accounts receivable with late or delinquent payment activity will be
handled in a timely and effective manner to ensure maximum collections and an
optimum accounts receivable turnover ratio.

The organization should provide the actions and methods for processing late or
delinquent payments.

5.4.5 Revenue Recognition — Grants and Contributions

The organization receives revenue from several types of transactions. It is the
policy of the organization to separate and recognize revenue from grants and
contributions separately in the financial statements of the organization and to
comply with all current Federal and Nevada rules regarding solicitation and
collection of charitable contributions.
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5.4.6

5.4.7

5.4.8

Gifts-In-Kind

This policy dictates valuation of non-monetary gifts and handled properly within
IRS guidelines.

Restricted Funds

The organization receives funds that are to be used for a specific purpose, such as
certain government programs, certain recipients, or for fundraising drives.
Restricted funds need to be properly segregated in the accounting system as to
ensure its use is within the donor/grantee’s wishes.

Referenced Procedures:

REV101 Sales Receipt Processing

REV102 Invoicing and Accounts Receivable

REV103 Progress Billing-Grant/Contract Revenue
REV104 Account Collections

REV105 Revenue Recognition — Grants and Contributions
REV106 Gifts-In-Kind

REV107 Restricted Funds

Page 47 of 60



Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

[This page intentionally left blank]

Page 48 of 60



Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

5.5 PURCHASING — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Proper vendor selection and utilization assist in controlling expenses. The
following Purchasing Procedures should be utilized to account for and control all
purchases and acquisitions of the organization.
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5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

5.5.4

Vendor Selection

The organization ensures purchased products and services conform to specified
requirements. This starts with selection of appropriate suppliers, contractors, and
consultants that have the capability and systems to supply products, materials and
services to the organization’s specified requirements.

The organization should strive to validate the performance capabilities of all
vendors and maintain the internal controls of the purchasing functions. Suppliers,
contractors, and consultants are controlled to the extent necessary based on the
effect of the purchased items on the quality of the organization’s products and
services.

The organization should provide the methods for determining, documenting and,
when applicable, inspecting vendors for compliance with organization policies
and contract purchasing requirements. This applies to all vendors of products,
materials, and services that directly affect the quality of the organization’s
products and services.

General Purchasing

The investment in supplies and capital equipment will be facilitated through the
Purchasing/Payroll Manager, maintained at the lowest effective level and
supervised consistent with a common set of procedures and controls as required
by all regulatory and customer contract requirements.

To outline the actions to be taken for 1) the procurement of all supplies and
capital equipment, 2) the completion of related documents.

This applies to the purchase of all inventory items, supplies and capital equipment
within the organization.

Receiving and Inspection

All parts, components, goods and materials should be received in an organized
manner and inspected for conformance prior to stocking or use in order to provide
an initial quality control inspection. Any items or shipments rejected will be
properly quarantined from other inventory items until disposition.

The organization should outline the steps for the receiving and inspection of
materials, components, or parts prior to use or the disposition of rejected items.

This procedure applies to the receipt of all purchases.
Accounts Payable and Cash Disbursements

Internal controls are required to ensure that only valid and authorized payables are
recorded and paid. Accounting procedures should be implemented to ensure the
accuracy of amounts, coding of general ledger accounts and appropriate timing of
payments.

The organization should explain the practices for documenting, recording and
issuing payments for accounts payable transactions. This applies to all purchases
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5.5.5

5.5.6

9.5.7

5.5.8

5.5.9

including, contractor, consultant, and merchandise and non-merchandise
purchases.

Prepaid Expenses

It is the policy of CASLYV to treat payments of expenses that have a time-sensitive
future benefit as prepaid expenses and to amortize these items over the
corresponding time period. For purposes of this policy, prepaids are only
accounted for at the end of the fiscal year and the amount that is considered to be
prepaid remains at the discretion of the Director of Finance.

Reimbursements

Internal controls are required to ensure that only valid and authorized
reimbursements are recorded and paid. Accounting procedures should be
implemented to ensure the accuracy of amounts, coding of General Ledger
accounts and appropriate timing of payments.

Meals, Refreshments, and Gifts

CASLYV recognizes there may be occasions when it is appropriate to expend
charter school funds in the course of conducting charter school business to
provide meals or refreshments (bakery goods, snacks, fruit, punch, coffee, tea,
soft drinks, etc.). The purchase of gifts may also be approved, in certain
situations. Such occasions may include, but are not limited to, various charter
school and building level meetings, gatherings to celebrate charter school
successes or recognize individual achievements, contributions or outstanding
service to the charter school and other charter school and school-sponsored
activities. Such expenditures may be made with prior Board of Directors approval
only, subject to the provisions of Nevada administrative regulations.

Employee Relocation Expenses

To provide guidance regarding the required authorizations for processing
reimbursable relocation expenses and general information regarding taxability and
limits to reimbursement.

Purchasing and Procurement Bidding Policy

To define when purchases or procurement is necessary to be obtained through a
competitive sealed bidding process and what items will not be publicly bid.

5.5.10 Referenced Procedures:

PUR101 Vendor Selection

PUR102 General Purchasing

PUR103 Receiving and Inspection

PUR104 Accounts Payable and Cash Disbursements
PUR105 Prepaid Expenses

PUR106 Reimbursements

PUR107 Meals, Refreshments, and Gifts

PUR108 Employee Relocation Expenses
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6.0
6.1

6.2
6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
PROVISION OF RESOURCES

During planning and budgeting processes, and as needed throughout the year, the
Executive Director and his designee determine and ensure that the appropriate
resources are available to implement and maintain the Accounting Management
System and continually improve its effectiveness.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Accounting Staff

Designated Accountants and employees are to have personal and professional
integrity and are to maintain a level of competence that allows them to
accomplish their assigned duties, as well as understand the importance of
developing and implementing good internal controls.

This requires Designated Accountants to maintain and demonstrate at all times:
o0 Personal and professional integrity
o0 A level of skill necessary to help ensure effective performance

0 An understanding of internal controls sufficient to effectively discharge
their responsibilities

Competence, Awareness, and Training

Accounting personnel shall be competent based on appropriate education,
training, skills and experience. The minimum competencies required for each
position at our organization are defined in each position's Job Description.

Where otherwise qualified personnel require additional training or other action to
meet the minimum competency requirements, these needs are identified. The
department provides task-specific training. General training or education is
provided or coordinated by Human Resources. The department should evaluate
the effectiveness of training or other actions taken as appropriate.

Executive officers are responsible for ensuring their employees are aware of the
relevance and importance of their activities and how they contribute to the
achievement of the accounting objectives.

Separation and Supervision of Duties

Key duties and responsibilities should be separated among individuals. Duties
and responsibilities shall be assigned systematically to a number of individuals to
ensure that effective checks and balances exist. Key duties include authorizing,
approving, and recording transactions; issuing and receiving assets; making
payments; and reviewing or auditing transactions.

Qualified and continuous supervision is to be provided to ensure that internal
control objectives are achieved. This standard requires supervisors to
continuously review and approve the assigned work of their staffs as well as
provide the necessary guidance and training to ensure that errors, waste, and
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6.3

6.4

wrongful acts are minimized and that specific management directives are
followed.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Our organization provides the infrastructure necessary to achieve conformity to
accounting standards and requirements. During the annual budgeting and
strategic planning processes, buildings, workspace, and associated utilities are
evaluated and provided. When new personnel are added, Human Resources
coordinates activities to ensure appropriate process equipment including hardware
and software, if required, and supporting services such as telephones etc., are
available based on information provided on the Personnel Requisition.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The Director of Finance determines and manages the work environment to ensure
our organization provides a safe and desirable place to work. They ensure the
environment is appropriate for achieving conformity to product requirements.

Accounting Manual - Revision History

Revision | Date Description of changes Requested By

0

May 13, | Initial Release
2013
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7.0 REFERENCE TO UNIFORM SYSTEM OF FINANCIAL RECORDS FOR

NEVADA CHARTER SCHOOLS

Included in Referenced to
NV Dept. of Ed. Procedure Coral Policy in Coral Policy
VI-B: Accounting Records G&A101, G&A118, Main Manual X
VI-C: Cash CSH107, CSH110, X
VI-D: Supplies Inventory INV101 X
VI-E: Capital Assets INV101, INV102, INV103 X
VI-F: Receipts CSH series X
VI-G: Disbursements PUR series PUR102
VI-H: Payroll G&A122 X
VI-1: Travel G&A103 X
VI-J: State and Federal REV108 X

Financial Assistance

Nevada Department of Education procedures from “Suggested Model Financial Polices
for Nevada Charter Schools”, published November 2008.

Page 55 of 60




Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

[This page intentionally left blank]

Page 56 of 60



Accounting Policies, Procedures and Forms

8.0 FRAUD AND EMBEZZLEMENT PREVENTION
See referenced procedure, 800 Fraud and Embezzlement Prevention
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9.0 ACCOUNTING BASICS
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Accounting Basics: Not-For-Profit Organization
Three important terms are easily confused. They are:

0 Bookkeeping

o0 Accounting

0 Reporting
What are they and how do they interrelate?

BOOKKEEPING REPORTING

Bookkeeping
Bookkeeping and accounting share two basic goals:

= To keep track of income and expenses, thereby improving the organization's ability to
achieve profitability

= To collect the necessary financial information about the organization to file required
reports and tax returns

Bookkeeping refers to the actual transactional entering and recording of data. Examples
are writing checks, processing payroll, making deposits, recording disbursements and
recording receipts.

Accounting

Accounting encompasses the broader responsibilities over developing and maintaining
the accounting system under which bookkeeping functions are performed. Accounting is
concerned with the timely and accurate recording of transactions, providing useful
management information, and properly reporting such information for various user needs.
Developing and maintaining an accounting system involves setting up and maintaining an
appropriate chart of accounts for the particular organization. Policies and procedures are
then established to provide guidance for all possible financial transactions, from source
documents (checks, sales orders, etc.), to journals (payroll journal, cash disbursement
journal, invoice register, etc.), to the general ledger, (based on the chart of accounts), and
ultimately to a variety of reports for all internal and external needs.
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ACCOUNTING

AN

/ INPUT

BOOKKEEPING

OUTPUT \

REPORTING

Bookkeeping and reporting can be thought of as the input and output of a complete
accounting system. Accounting policies and procedures ensure:

e Integrity of the input data; and
e Accuracy and validity of the report (output).

300 Accounting Manual
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Reporting

Reporting, (the output of the data generated through various bookkeeping functions), is
used for both internal and external purposes.

Internal Reports are reports used within the organization, by both management and other
designated personnel. Internal reporting can be further divided into financial and non-
financial data.

Non-financial data

Non-financial data includes a variety of measurement and productivity data,
applicable to the specific organization. These can be daily customer count, web
page "hits", production activity per employee hour, units and total weight of
product shipped, or even daily weather conditions.

Financial data

Examples of financial data reports include:

= Financial statements - Profit and loss reports (Statement of Activities),
balance sheets (Statement of Financial Position) and cash flow statements

= Daily reports with critical balances, such as, sales, cash level, inventory,
accounts receivable and accounts payable

= Segmented profit and loss reports (or P/L) on specific jobs, profit centers,
departments, grants, or programs

= Register reports, listing all transactions for specific areas such as, payroll,
checks, receipts, invoices, etc.

= Listings of source data files such as customer, employee, vendor and inventory
lists.

= Aging reports for both Customers (accounts receivable or A/R) and Vendors
(accounts payables or A/P)

= |nventory reports for costing and valuation

= EXxception reports - open purchase orders.

External reports generated for the use of people or organizations outside of the
organization. Report data and format will vary depending on user:

= Banks, lending institutions. To observe the financial viability of a organization and
to determine its ability to support additional amounts and types of debt financing

= Employees. To determine the stability of the organization of their employer - this
may be useful in wage negotiations

= Suppliers. To assess the suitability of granting credit terms to a organization

= Existing and Potential Investors. To assess the potential risk of investing in a
organization and to monitor the status of existing investment in a organization

= Public. To gain more insight into any organization, which is legally required to make
certain financial information available
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=  Government. To fulfill the requirements of all applicable local, state and federal
reporting statutes, including income, sales, insurance, property, and payroll tax
returns

= Media/Press. To use available organization reports in specific trade and
organization publications

Components of an Accounting System

The financial transactions of any accounting system can be grouped into four major
transaction cycle groups: Revenue Cycle, Purchase Cycle, Payroll Cycle, and General
Journal Cycle.

Cash Receipts Cash Disbursement
Journal » Bank Account g Journal
V-
/ \\‘ ,/ 7N
Sales \__,| Inventory » Purchase
Invoice N\ | Ledger / Invoice
Journal ~ Journal
\\\\ \‘ ’l , //

L 4 v
Accounts \“ General Ledger X’ Accounts Payable J
Receivable

V-
/’ ‘\
General Payroll Payroll Ledger
Journal Journal
GENERAL JOURNAL CYCLE PAYROLL CYCLE

Transactions in the form of sales invoices, receipts, purchase invoices, checks and payroll
entries are posted to the appropriate journals. Simultaneously, these postings are also
recorded in the General Ledger. The General Ledger accumulates all transaction activity,
organized by account classification. Various reports, including financial statements can
then be prepared from the data collected in the General Ledger. Corrections or necessary
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adjustments can be made to the General Ledger by creating adjusting journal entries,
posted to the general journal.

The following outline on the next two pages provides more explanatory detail on these
four cycles:

1. Revenue Cycle
Order Entry

Invoices entered through direct entry, through program invoicing, sales
orders or through a point-of-sales system, (such as a cash register) are
posted to the sales journal.

These entries also accumulate on the accounts receivable ledger, organized
by customer.

If the organization maintains an inventory, the posting of sales also affects
the inventory ledger.

Finally, all sales journal activity is also posted to the general ledger
Cash Receipts / Deposits

Receipts on sales and other bank deposits are posted to the cash receipts
journal.

Sales receipts information also accumulates on the accounts receivable
ledger, organized by customer.

These postings are also entered on the bank account ledger.

Finally, all cash receipts journal activity is also posted to the general
ledger.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable is a separate journal that records both sales and cash
receipt data by customer.

The data comes from the postings to the cash receipts journal and the sales
invoice journal.

2. Purchase Cycle

Purchase Orders / Purchasing

Invoices entered through direct entry or through purchase orders are
posted to the purchase journal

These entries also accumulate on the accounts payable ledger, organized
by vendor.

If the organization maintains an inventory, the posting of purchases also
affects the inventory ledger.

Finally, all purchase journal activity is also posted to the general ledger
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Cash Disbursements / Checks

Payments on account or for expenses are posted to the cash disbursement
journal.

Payment on account information also accumulates on the accounts payable
ledger, organized by vendor.

These postings are also entered on the bank account ledger.

Finally, all cash disbursement journal activity is also posted to the general
ledger.

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable is a separate journal that records both sales and cash
receipt data by vendor.

The data comes from the postings to the cash disbursement journal and the
purchase journal.

3. Payroll Cycle

Payroll data by employee are entered into the payroll journal.

These postings are also entered in the cash disbursements journal and the payroll
ledger.

Finally, all payroll journal activity is also posted to the general ledger.
4. General Journal Cycle

Corrections or adjustments to the above major transaction cycles can be made
through adjusting journal entries, posted directly to the General Ledger.

These are compiled in a separate journal, known as the General Journal.
How does posting work?

The specific postings, as outlined in the cycles above, do not necessarily take
place as separate steps, especially in computerized environments. There are only
two basic methods of posting in computerized accounting systems: real-time
posting and batch posting.

In real-time posting, the source transaction, (check, bill, payment, receipt, etc.), is
posted to the specific journal and any related subsidiary ledgers (accounts
receivable, accounts payable, inventory, bank account, etc.), and is
simultaneously posted to the general ledger.

In batch posting, the journals and subsidiary ledgers are posted, but entries are not
yet posted to the general ledger. Posting these journals to the general ledger is
done separately. Typically, a group of transactions is entered, a full day's worth,
for example. Later, after the journals are reviewed for accuracy, this entire day's
group, or "batch" is posted to the general ledger.
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To understand this posting process better, it would be helpful to follow specific
transactions through a sample organization. First, however, we need to define
various accounting terms and concepts.

Accounting Terms and Concepts
Double-Entry Accounting

We can justifiably thank the 14™ century Italian merchants for developing the double-
entry system of accounting that we still use today. It is widely believed that Benedetto
Cotrugli was the first to document this concept of double-entry accounting. In 1458, he
wrote Delia Mercatura et del Mercante Perfetto (Of Trading and the Perfect Trader),
which included a brief chapter describing many of the features of double entry
accounting.

In 1494, Luca Pacioli, from San Sepulcro in medieval Tuscany, published The Summa's
36 short chapters on bookkeeping, entitled "De Computis et Scripturis™ ("Of Reckonings
and Writings"), so that the subjects of the Duke of Urbino could learn how to conduct
organization and to provide the trader with a fast method to determine his assets and
liabilities.

For centuries before, commercial transactions had been recorded and journalized,
whether on paper, papyrus or clay tablets. However, these journals provided only totals
of transaction groupings. It was the Italians that first recognized that it is impossible for a
organization transaction to occur without affecting at least TWO accounts. There can
never be only one effect from a transaction.

An lItalian farmer sells wood to a shipbuilder for 400 ducats. To account for this
transaction he would record: wood sale - 400 ducats. His "sales" account has been
increased by 400 ducats. But, what else has happened? What other account was
affected? His "cash" account also increased by 400 ducats. What if he sells his wood to
the shipbuilder on credit, and he receives no cash? In this case it's his "accounts
receivable" account, which increased by 400 ducats.

There are always, at least two sides to each transaction.

Later, when the shipbuilder pays his debt to the farmer, the farmer records an increase in
his cash and a decrease in his accounts receivable by 400 ducats, respectively. You can
see that an integral feature of this double entry system is that the transactions must
equal. At the time, this new method was heralded as an astounding discovery, and was
described as: "a magic mirror in which the adept sees both himself and others."”

Today, double entry bookkeeping is used as a method of recording a transaction in two or
more different places or ledger accounts. This practice simplifies finding errors since the
totals of both ledger accounts should agree.

Debits = Credits

Bookkeeping entries are divided into DEBITS and CREDITS. The DEBIT side is
typically on the left of the ledger page and the CREDITS are placed on the right. The
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origin of the words "Debits" and "Credits" come from the simple concept: who owes you
and whom do you owe.

DEBITS record transactions relating to purchases, expenses or increases in the assets of
the organization. CREDITS record transactions relating to revenues or an increase in the
equity and liabilities of the organization. Recording a transaction requires both a DEBIT
and a CREDIT entry. If the entries have been correctly recorded, then the totals from
both sides of the ledger should agree.

This method of “double-entry” bookkeeping, listing debits in one column and credits in
the other, requires that those two columns sum to zero. This is still the basis for tracking
financial affairs today.

The following list illustrates the effect of posting either a DEBIT or CREDIT entry on
each major account type:

Account Type Debits Credits
Assets Increases Decreases
Liabilities Decreases Increases
Owners Equity Decreases Increases
Income Decreases Increases
Expenses Increases Decreases

These account types are the general account classifications used in all accounting
systems. They are also used to organize the general ledger, from which financial
statements are developed.

An expansion of these account types is outlined below.

Basic Accounting Structure
Balance sheet-Statement of Financial Position

Contains accounts whose value is determined at a specific point in time
Assets - accounts with value that you own
= Cash - the amount on hand or in the bank at a specific point in time
= Accounts Receivable - how much people owe you

= Inventory - the value of organization merchandise for sale
= Fixed Assets - the value of property and equipment
Liabilities - accounts with value that you owe to others

= Accounts Payable - how much you owe others for unpaid
purchases

= Debt - how much you owe others for money borrowed
= Other Liabilities - services or money owed to others
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Equity-Net Assets

= Unrestricted Net Assets — money available for general operating
purposes and earnings retained in the organization from net profits

= Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets — money available but
restricted due to donor imposed restrictions or money awaiting certain
performance standards to complete.

Income Statement — Statement of Activities

This statement contains accounts whose value is determined over a period of time
(e.g., day, week).

Income:  total sales and income recorded over a period time
Expenses: total purchases and other expenses recorded over a period of time
Basic Accounting Formula

All transactions are posted to one or more of these accounts. As discussed earlier,
every posted transaction must balance. That is, debits must equal credits. Furthermore,
the result of every posting, if done correctly, will never put the Basic Accounting
Formula out of balance. Asset accounts will always equal the total of all liability and
owner equity accounts. If this formula is ever out of balance, the cause will always be an
incorrect transaction posting where debits did not equal credits.

Assets include those accounts, which give value to the organization: cash,
accounts receivable, inventory, property, etc. Liabilities are those accounts which reduce
the organization's value: accounts payable, debt, and other liabilities. If total assets are
greater than liabilities, then this net value (that is, the total of all assets minus liabilities)
represents the true value of the organization, otherwise known as its Equity. Hence, the
Basic Accounting Formula can be expressed and equally understood in these two ways:

Assets = Liabilities + Equity
or
Assets- Liabilities = Equity

If the organization's assets are less than its liabilities, then it will necessarily show
a negative equity. This makes intuitive sense to anyone following the demise of an
organization in bankruptcy. When a organization owes more than it has in value, the
resulting negative equity is an obvious warning sign.

The equity accounts include owner's contributions, distributions, and retained
earnings. Retained earnings operate in a manner unique to all other accounts. It contains
the net effect of postings to all income and expense accounts. It is truly the one account,
which links the balance sheet accounts (assets, liabilities and owner's equity) with the
income and expense accounts.
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Understanding the importance of retained earnings, the Basic Accounting
Equation could be expanded thus:

Investor and owner contributions,

and distributions Retained Earnings
A A
~ ~ ™
ASSETS = LIABILITIES + (OWNER'S EQUITY ACCOUNTS + INCOME - EXPENSE)
— _
——
EQUITY
Income Statement Balance Sheet
The following illustrates the Assets
. . . Income
interrelationship of these Liabilities
. Expenses
accounts: Owner's Equity
Net Income Retained Earnings
—

When a transaction, like writing a check or paying a bill, is executed in an accounting
program, the software is designed to take this transaction event and create the proper and
necessary debit and credit entries to record the effects of the transaction in the appropriate

journals and general ledger accounts.
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SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING CYCLES & ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS
Accounting Structure - Accounting Software Programs

A final word concerning accounting structure is needed, here. While it is helpful to
understand the accounting structure in terms of its four basic cycles (revenue, purchasing,
payroll and general), and its implementation in terms of the double-entry, debit and credit
system, most accounting programs are not organized in the same manner.

To navigate more easily in any accounting software it is important to understand the basic
organizational structure that is common to all accounting software. In spite of all the
ancillary menu options and all the different terms used by competing software products,
there are really only three major components of any accounting software package: Input,
Output, and Maintenance.

Input refers to all of the "bookkeeping" tasks of all four accounting cycles. This includes
entering invoices, checks, bills, payments, payroll and adjusting entries. Each accounting
software may "disguise” this input function under different names: "tasks" or
"activities"”, or it may include specific input functions separately under each cycle area, or
it may simply provide icon pictures of activities to be clicked on. Regardless of the
specialized "look" of the program, the most important and most heavily used routine in
any accounting software is data input.

Output refers to all of the reporting functions of the program. Once transactional data has
been entered, the only usefulness in having it entered is the ability to retrieve it in a
variety of report formats. Generally, these reporting options are found grouped together
under one menu, not surprisingly labeled, "reports”! However, with some programs, they
are scattered throughout the menus as appendages to each major cycle activity.

Maintenance can be broken down into two sub-categories: utility maintenance and data
file maintenance. Utility maintenance refers to overall utility features like backup,
restore, import and export data, fiscal year close, purge, or condense and repair data.
These are all usually found on one menu and are generally placed under administrative
password control to prevent unwanted casual use.

Data file maintenance does require data input, but the input is not transactional. This
refers to the creation and maintenance of the chart of accounts (in support of the general
ledger), the customer list, vendor list, inventory list and employee list. These are
generally found in one area usually labeled "maintain” or "lists". In other programs they
may be separated and found within each module (i.e.: customer list in the accounts
receivable module or revenue cycle).

Understanding how your own accounting software works, (where its input, output and
maintenance functions are and how the four accounting cycles are organized), is as
important as understanding the actual double entry accounting that is occurring "behind
the scenes”. As you will discover throughout the Accounting Policies and Procedures
Manual, you need to know how the numbers have developed and where they came from,
in order to establish effective policies and procedures to insure their integrity, accuracy
and completeness.
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Accounting Methods
Accrual Method

The accounting method used in the Slick Switch Company example is called the accrual
method, defined as the method of keeping accounts which shows expenses incurred and
income earned for a given period, although such expenses and income may not have been
actually paid or received in cash. Hence, the financial statements of Slick Switch Co.
show revenues and expenses, even before any such revenues or expenses are paid.

The accrual method is the more acceptable and the more widely used because it correctly
matches the earning process to the activity. In other words, revenue is recorded when
services or goods are rendered or shipped, regardless of when paid.

Cash Method

The cash method of accounting is familiar to most individuals since personal income tax
returns are filed on the cash basis. As the name implies, revenues and expenses are only
recorded when the consideration paid actually changes hands. This could be months after
the actual event occurred.

Many small organization owners prefer the cash basis due to its simplicity and ease of
understanding. At the end of any given period, the recorded net income will agree more
closely to the change in the organization's cash balance. However, when requesting
financing from any bank or agency, organization owners are generally asked to furnish
financial statements, prepared on the accrual basis. Clearly any "stakeholders™ want to
see the true effect on the financial statements of activities, as they occur, as opposed to
when they are paid.

Reporting Standards

Many transactions are entered routinely through the accounting system without much
concern about reporting standards. However, other transactions can be handled in
different ways depending on a person's judgment over the facts and circumstances. For
example, if an organization decides to lease an expensive piece of machinery, how should
it record lease payments? Perhaps they should be simply charged to lease expense.

However, maybe the terms of the lease imply an obligation and the payments represent a
pay-off of that obligation. In that case, a portion of the payment should be applied to the
debt and the other portion charged to interest expense.

The resulting financial statements would look different in those two cases. The
usefulness of financial statements would be severely limited if their presentation was
based solely upon the preparer's judgment. Consequently, certain standards must be
agreed upon and followed.

GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

There was no commonly agreed upon standardization over accounting practices until
after the great depression of 1933. In response to the vast sums lost by investors in the
stock market crash, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) was established and
given authority to set accounting standards for publicly held corporations.
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In an effort to stave off further government regulation, the accounting profession,
organized under the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), issued
its first auditing standards in 1939. This began its attempt at self-regulation, though the
AICPA continues to work with the SEC and defers to the SEC on regulatory reporting
requirements for publicly held companies.

Between then and 1959 the AICPA issued 51 authoritative pronouncements known as
Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) that formed the basis of what became known as
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). From 1959 to 1973 the Accounting
Principles Board (APB) issued 31 additional standards.

In 1973 a new full-time independent body, separate from the AICPA was created, called
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). This board has issued over 147
Statements of Standards by the end of 2002. These standards, along with official
interpretations, Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB), previously issued
pronouncements, SEC rulings, industry guides, and other exposure drafts make up the
current basket of generally accepted accounting principles.

The Matching Principle

Woven through all of the GAAP pronouncements are several universal principles. One is
the concept of matching. Accrual and percentage of completion methods represent
attempts to more properly match the financial statement presentation to the actual
transactions that have occurred. Revenues are matched to services performed and
product sold, and expenses are matched to activities that have incurred expenses. This is
why accrual based reporting conforms to GAAP and cash based reporting does not. The
matching principle is a keystone of generally accepted accounting practice.

Conformity

Conformity is another widely used concept in accounting. The method of implementing
percentage of completion, for example, should be the same for all companies. Only by
practicing conformity will there be comparability. Investors, lenders and organization
owners, could not properly evaluate the success of a particular organization as compared
to the rest of its industry, if all organizations used different methods for recording
transactions. Conformity is another fundamental principle in GAAP.

Valuation

A common consensus in GAAP reporting is the agreement that financial statements are
valued on an historical basis. This is an important concept that provides for consistent
conformity. As an example, real estate is valued at its original cost, not what it might be
worth on an appraised value.

Accounting board pronouncements have continued to modify this principle to make
financial reports even more conservative than historical basis, by requiring a downward
adjustment, if the potential selling value has fallen below the original cost.

An example is inventory, when obsolescence reduces its value below its original cost.
Another example is the yearly devaluing of fixed assets through depreciation. Each year
the original cost of a building or equipment is lowered by writing off a portion of its
expected life and expensing it to depreciation. Other assets like accounts receivable are
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reviewed and written down to their expected realizable value by charging off any amount
deemed uncollectible to bad debt expense.

The overall attempt is to present financial statements on the most conservative basis
possible. The objective is to ensure that the net worth recorded on a organization's
financial statements is never more than the true value of a organization, based upon the
lower of historical cost or the expected realized selling price of its assets minus its
liabilities.

Events in the early years of the 2000's have shown how important this objective is. In
spite of all the GAAP pronouncements in place, "creative accounting™ techniques that
push the gray areas of accounting valuation issues have resulted in significant, previously
undisclosed impairments to the financial statements of companies like Tyco, Enron, and
WorldCom.

Inventory Valuation

Inventory valuation is a specially treated area that deserves specific mention. Inventory
is always valued at the lower or cost or market (realizable value, net of selling costs).
However, cost can be determined in three different ways.

First In - First Out (FIFO) values the cost of inventory based on the principle that the first
item purchased is the first item to be sold. Visually, this method mimics a store owner's
method of stocking shelves by putting its most recent purchases at the back of the shelf,
so that the older product is sold first. Hence, the value of the amount of inventory on
hand, always represents the cost of the very latest purchases. In a true FIFO valuation,
each purchase is tracked as a separate layer with its own cost. Sales are also tracked and
taken from one or more specific layers.

A variant on the FIFO method is the Average Cost FIFO method, which eliminates the
need to keep track of separate purchasing layers. The cost of each new purchase is added
to the "pool™ which changes the overall cost of the "pool”. Sales are then taken from this
single "pool”, leaving a value of the inventory on hand that closely resembles, but not
necessarily equals, the value of inventory on a true FIFO method.

A final method of valuation is based on Last In - First Out (LIFO). This is the opposite
of FIFO: the last items purchased are deemed to be the first items sold. This means that
the ending inventory value is comprised of the very first items purchased. This value
could be lower than the FIFO value, particularly in inflationary times.

One might ask how two opposing methods of valuation could both be allowed under
GAAP, particularly, when this would seem to violate the important principle of
conformity. This is one of many good examples of the challenge to create a consensus of
opinion when there are several options, which have equal justification and support.
Accounting principles are not static laws handed down from the mountaintop, hence the
term, "generally accepted™.

In this case, there is current justification and support for either method. In deference to
conformity, GAAP provides that financial statements valuing inventory on LIFO are to
include a footnote reference, which discloses the valuation difference between LIFO and
FIFO. This is one of many compromises that provide conformity over different methods
of valuation.
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Materiality

A final important concept in all of GAAP is materiality. Surprisingly, coming from a
group of professionals known for their penchant for chasing down pennies, every
pronouncement contains a materiality clause that allows for non-compliance in any area,
if the effect on the financial statement presentation is clearly immaterial. In other words,
if the effect is minimal or does not represent a significant change in the financial position
of the account then it might be considered immaterial.

Types of Reports

The reporting standards discussed above may not really affect many small and mid-size
owners, if their reporting needs are primarily internal. However, it does help to
understand the rationale for those standards. These standards trigger the most basic
questions that must be answered in setting up an accounting system: Cash or accrual?
FIFO or LIFO?

External Reports

External reports were discussed briefly in the early part of this introduction, in terms of
the "audience™ or specific users for organization information. Generally, one of the more
important users is the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and various state and local taxing
authorities. Required income tax returns can be prepared more easily from financial
reports that are classified in a comparable manner. A tax practitioner is usually retained
to prepare and file these returns. The report most commonly requested of the
organization is the general ledger and related financial statements.

The second most likely external user for an organization's financial statements is a bank
or other debt or equity institution. The financial institution may well dictate the report
needed. Copies of tax returns and organization prepared financial statements may be all
that is required. On the other hand, the financial institution may require a higher level of
assurance by requesting that an independent accounting firm either compiles, reviews, or
audits the financial statements of the organization.

In this case, the organization might want to know what is required and the difference
between these types of reports. First of all, only Certified Public Accountants (CPAS)
who meet a higher peer review level and other reporting standards can issue these
statements. A public accountant (PA), tax practitioner, or an accountant who is not a
licensed CPA cannot issue such statements. Even a fully licensed CPA must keep their
license current with continuing education and documented peer review to be able to issue
opinions on these reports.

Compilation

A organization owner will need to find a CPA with the necessary credentials to request a
compilation, review or audit. The least expensive report, and one that should satisfy most
banks for small and mid-sized organization, is a compilation. Essentially, the CPA
reviews the financial statements prepared by the organization and attaches an
accountant's report to it. No further investigation is performed.

Interestingly, the standard compilation report issued by a CPA is nothing more than a
glorified disclaimer, stating that the CPA is providing no financial statement assurance.
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The AICPA defines a compilation as "a service where the accountant presents, in the
form of financial statements, information that is the representation of the organization's
management and owners without undertaking to express assurance on the financial
statements.”

Review

A review involves essentially the same process as a compilation except that the auditor
does perform certain analytical reviews: reviewing account balances for reasonableness,
and guestioning management about material modifications that might be made in order
for the statements to be in conformity with GAAP. In a review report the CPA expresses
a "limited assurance", (but not an opinion), about the reasonableness of the financial
statements and their conformity to a comprehensive basis of accounting like GAAP, cash
basis or income tax basis reporting.

Audit

An audit provides the highest level of financial statement assurance. An audit may take
considerably more time than either a compilation or review. The audit work, itself, can
fill several large binders of documentation for a small to medium size organization.

Every balance sheet account is proven, within the limits of materiality. Direct
confirmations of account balances are mailed from the CPA to banks, customers,
vendors, and other debt holders to validate the balances of cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, and other assets and liabilities. If inventory is material, the CPA must
observe the inventory counting as of the report date. The CPA also tests the accounting
procedures and internal controls, including computer controls. All transactions are
subject to audit under a statistical sampling formula.

A surprisingly large amount of time is spent in non-financial areas to determine any
claims, lawsuits, contingencies or other events that could harm the organization.
Incorporation and other organizational papers are reviewed, all leases, loan documents
and other contracts are reviewed, and all minutes and other relevant correspondence are
read. The CPA also sends letters to all attorneys asking for full disclosure on any
relevant matter.

The AICPA defines an audit as an engagement where a CPA provides an opinion about
the fairness of a financial statement presentation in accordance with a comprehensive
basis of accounting such as: GAAP, cash basis or income tax basis. This is a fairly
simple statement for what can easily involve weeks of work for even a relatively well-
structured small organization.

It's important to recognize the relative costs of these three types of reports. If the cost of
an audit is $20,000, a review for the same organization might average $12,000, and a
compilation, $7,000. Relative to an audit, a review and compilation are considerably less
expensive. However, the difference in cost between a review and compilation is not
nearly as great. This is important to remember if faced with a requirement from a lender
or investor. If they request an audit, you might try to convince them that a review is
adequate and certainly provides more assurance than a compilation. This could save you
considerable expense.
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Not-For Profit - Audit

For Non-Profit Organizations, an audit is the minimum level of assurance required. In
addition to the audit, there are often other reporting requirements, depending on the size
of the organization and if the organization has obtained any federal, state, or local grants
or contracts. A full explanation of these Non-Profit reports is beyond the scope of this
introduction.

Internal Reports

Internal reports were discussed earlier in this introduction. Much emphasis has been
given to financial statement reports; the balance sheet, income statement, and statement
of cash flows. These three are the most important reports on the overall financial
condition of the organization over a given period of time. A primary objective in
developing policies and procedures over the accounting function is to improve the
timeliness, accuracy and completeness of these statements.

An organization's accounting or information system can provide much more than those
three statements, however. Management should be encouraged to use the data available
in the accounting system for other uses. Financial statements are extremely useful,
however, they only provide current valuation, and transactional information from the
past.

A statement of cash flow, reconciling the sources and uses of cash, can be a useful
starting point for extrapolating data that projects the anticipated sources and uses of cash
needed into the future. By analyzing changes in aging of accounts receivable and
accounts payable, you can develop more reliable estimates and better anticipate future
cash receipts and future cash payments.

The relationship between sales, inventory levels and related cost of sales can be used to
determine the anticipated needs for additional inventory related to projected sales. Using
the data captured by the accounting system every day, a projected cash flow report,
updated daily, can be a powerful tool to alert management in enough time to properly
react to anticipated additional working capital requirements.

With a powerful forward-looking cash management tool, like the described projected
cash flow report, the projected activity levels in future months can be used to create
budgets in the current and succeeding months.

With income statement projections, projected cash flow reports, and budgets, we have a
truly interactive management information system. Data collected from the past is used to
project the future, fed back into the budgets, which control the present and determine the
future. This creates a continually updated management information loop. This provides
an organization with the tools to act, not just react.
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SOP # G&A101 Revision: 0 Prepared by: Business Office
Effective Date: May 13, 2014 Approved by: BOD

Title: G&A101 CHART OF ACCOUNTS
Policy: To facilitate the record keeping process for accounting, all ledger accounts
should be assigned a descriptive account title and account number.

Purpose: To provide the method for assignment and maintenance of the company's
chart of accounts in order to produce meaningful financial data for the
Organization.

Scope: This procedure applies to all general ledger accounts.

Responsibilities: The Director of Finance is responsible for monitoring and approving
changes to the company’s Chart of Accounts.

Definition:  Chart of Accounts — A categorized listing of all account titles and numbers
being used by an organization to track income, expenses, assets, equity,
and liabilities is called a Chart of Accounts.

Procedure:

1.0 DESIGN OF ACCOUNTS

1.1  Accounts should have titles and numbers that indicate specific ledger accounts
such as Cash in Checking, Furniture and Fixtures, Accounts Payable, etc.

1.2 In general, the Nevada Department of Education chart of accounts (NDE) is
available; however, the Organization has developed and follows its own chart of
accounts numbering and definition system and converts to the NDE format for
reporting purposes.

1.3 QuickBooks class tracking should be used to provide additional clarification, as
needed. A sub-division among the balance sheet accounts should be designated
short term to long term, (i.e. current assets should precede long term assets and
current debt should precede long-term debt).

Unassigned number sequences should be left open within each group of accounts
to provide for additional accounts, which may be added later.

1.4 See Appendix A for guidance regarding NDE to QuickBooks conversion chart.

2.0 DESCRIPTION OF ACCOUNTS

2.1  Each account should be given a short title description that is brief but will allow
the reader to quickly ascertain the purpose of the account.

2.2 For training and consistent transaction coding, as well as to help other non-
accounting managers understand why something is recorded as it is, each account
should be defined. Definitions should be concise and meaningful. The account
name should clearly identify what the account is to be used for.
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An example of definitions follows:
ASSETS

1100 — General Operating Account

Includes all cash held in the operating bank account. All
withdrawals by check and deposits are recorded here. The
reported balances are supported by a bank reconciliation prepared

monthly.
Revision History:
Revision | Date | Description of changes Requested By
0 M;glf’ Initial Release
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APPENDIX A
Quickbooks .
Fund Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object  account Quickbooks Description
numbers Account Class
FUND 100 - REVENUES
100 000 1920 8210 10-10 Restricted Donations
100 000 1921 8270 10-10 Full Day Kindergarten Fees
100 000 1922 8250 10-10 Semester Fees
100 000 1923 8210 90-10 Unrestrected Donations
100 000 1924 8290 10-22 Coral CARE Fees
100 000 1925 8280 10-10 Uniforms
100 201 3110 8110 10-10 State Distributive Funds
FUND 100 - TOTAL REVENUE
FUNCTION 1000 - INSTRUCTION
100 Salaries
100 201 100 1000 101 1104 10-10 Teachers/Licensed Regular
100 201 100 1000 102 1104 10-10 Teachers/Unlicensed Regular
100 201 100 1000 123 1106 10-10 Substitute Teachers - temporary
Total - 100 Salaries
200 Benefits
100 201 100 1000 231 2101 10-10 Retirement
100 201 100 1000 221 2102 10-10 SS-OASDI
100 201 100 1000 241 2103 10-10 Medicare
100 201 100 1000 211 2104 10-10 Health Insurance
100 201 100 1000 271 2105 10-10 Workers Compensation
100 201 100 1000 261 2106 10-10 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senvices
100 201 100 1000 442 3114 10-10 Rent / Lease - Equipment
100 201 100 1000 581 3126 10-10 Travel/Per Diem/Lodging
100 201 100 1000 331 3125 10-10 Conference/Seminar/Training
100 201 100 1000 321 3127 10-10 Conference/Seminar/Training
100 201 100 1000 326 3127 10-10 ‘Purchased Services - Instruction(Subs
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
600 Supplies
100 201 100 1000 610 4111 10-10 General Supplies
100 201 100 1000 615 3130 90-10 Staff Development Expense
100 201 100 1000 616 3120 10-10 Student Incentives
100 201 100 1000 617 4110 10-10 Uniforms
100 201 100 1000 642 4102 10-10 Other Books & Materials
100 201 100 1000 641 4101 10-10 Textbooks
100 201 100 1000 644 4103 10-10 Library Books
100 201 100 1000 611 4104 10-10 Instructional Supplies
100 201 100 1000 651 4105 10-10 Instructional Software -powerschool, r
100 201 100 1000 651 4106 10-10 Instructional Software - online classes
100 201 100 1000 612 4107 10-10 New Equipment & Furniture < $5,000
100 201 100 1000 650 4108 10-10 Technology Supplies
Total - 600 Supplies
700 Property
100 201 100 1000 733 4113 10-10 New Equip. & Furn. > $1,000
100 201 100 1000 734 4109 10-10 Computer Hardware

Total - 700 Property
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Quickbooks Quickbooks
Fund  Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object  account Account Class Description
numbers
800 Other
100 201 100 5000 831 3135 10-10 Principal Payments
100 201 100 5000 832 3133 10-10 Interest
100 201 100 1000 810 3131 10-10 Dues & Fees
100 201 100 1000 890 3132 10-10 Miscellaneous Expenses
Total - 800 Other
TOTAL FUNCTION 1000 - INSTRUCTION
UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES
FUNCTION 2100 - SUPPORT SERVICES - STUDENTS
100 Salaries
100 201 100 2120 106 1107 10-20 Literacy Coach
100 201 100 2121 106 1108 10-20 Collage Advisor
100 201 100 2122 106 1109 10-20 Dean of Students
100 201 100 2110 107 1110 10-20 Clinic Personnel
Total - 100 Salaries
200 Benefits
100 201 100 2100 237 2101 10-20 Retirement
100 201 100 2100 227 2102 10-20 SS-OASDI
100 201 100 2100 247 2103 10-20 Medicare
100 201 100 2100 217 2104 10-20 Health Insurance
100 201 100 2100 277 2105 10-20 Workers Compensation
100 201 100 2100 267 2106 10-20 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senices
100 201 100 2100 320 3127 10-20 “Purchased Services-ACC
100 201 100 2100 321 3127 10-20 ‘Purchased Services - S.Svcs-Stud.
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
600 Supplies
100 201 100 2100 610 4111 10-20 General Supplies
100 201 100 2100 616 3120 10-20 Student Incentives
Total - 600 Supplies
800 Other
Total - 800 Other
TOTAL FUNCTION 2100 - SUPPORT SERVICES - STUDENTS
FUNCTION 2200 - SUPPORT SERVICES - INSTRUCTION
100 Salaries
100 201 100 2220 107 1112 10-21 Librarian
100 201 100 2240 107 1111 10-21 Dean of Academics
100 201 100 2230 107 1105 10-21 IT Manager (50%)

Total - 100 Salaries
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Quickbooks Quickbooks
. . . D inti
Fund Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object account Account Class escription
numbers
200 Benefits
100 201 100 2200 237 2101 10-21 Retirement
100 201 100 2200 227 2102 10-21 SS-OASDI
100 201 100 2200 247 2103 10-21 Medicare
100 201 100 2200 217 2104 10-21 Health Insurance
100 201 100 2200 277 2105 10-21 Workers Compensation
100 201 100 2200 267 2106 10-21 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senvices
100 201 100 2200 320 3127 10-21 *Purchased Services-ACC
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
600 Supplies
100 201 100 2200 610 4111 10-21 General Supplies
Total - 600 Supplies
800 Other
Total - 800 Other
TOTAL FUNCTION 2200 - SUPPORT SERVICES - INSTRUCTION
FUNCTION 2400 - ADMINISTRATION
100 Salaries
100 201 100 2400 104 1101 10-24 Administrators
100 201 100 2400 105 1102 10-24 Administrative Assistants
100 201 100 2400 105 1105 10-24  IT Manager (50%)
Total - 100 Salaries
200 Benefits
100 201 100 2400 234 2101 10-24 Retirement
100 201 100 2400 244 2103 10-24 Medicare
100 201 100 2400 214 2104 10-24 Health Insurance
100 201 100 2400 274 2105 10-24 Workers Compensation
100 201 100 2400 264 2106 10-24 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senices
100 201 100 2400 340 3101 10-24 Professional Service
100 201 100 2400 300 3102 10-24 State Admin Services
100 201 100 2400 310 3103 10-24 Payroll Services
100 201 100 2400 340 3104 10-24 Audit Services
100 201 100 2400 523 3116 10-24 E&O Insurance
100 201 100 2400 535 3121 10-24 Internet
100 201 100 2400 533 3122 10-24 Telephone / Communications
100 201 100 2400 531 3123 10-24 Postage
100 201 100 2400 540 3124 10-24 Advertising
100 201 100 2400 583 3126 10-24 Travel/PerDiem/Lodging
100 201 100 2400 333 3125 10-24 Conference/Seminar/Training
100 201 100 2400 311 3127 10-24 ‘Purchased Services -ACC
100 201 100 2400 313 3127 10-24 “Purchased Services - City/Legal

Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
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Quickbooks Quickbooks
. . . D inti
Fund Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object account Account Class escription
numbers
600 Supplies
100 201 100 2400 610 4111 10-24 General Supplies
100 201 100 2400 642 4102 10-24 Other Books Materials
100 201 100 2400 651 4105 10-24 Instructional Software
100 201 100 2400 612 4107 10-24 New Equipment & Furniture <$5,000
100 201 100 2400 650 4108 10-24 Technology Supplies
Total - 600 Supplies
700 Property
100 201 100 2400 733 4113 10-24 New Equipment & Furniture >$5,000
100 201 100 2400 734 4109 10-24 Computer Hardware
Total - 700 Property
800 Other
100 201 100 2400 810 3131 10-24 Dues and Fees
100 201 100 2400 890 3132 10-24 Miscellaneous Expenses
Total - 800 Other
TOTAL FUNCTION 2400 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
FUNCTION 2600 - OPERATION/MAINTENANCE
100 Salaries
100 201 100 2600 105 1114 10-26 Maintenance Personnel
Total - 100 Salaries
200 Benefits
100 201 100 2600 235 2101 10-26 Retirement
100 201 100 2600 245 2103 10-26 Medicare
100 201 100 2600 215 2104 10-26 Health Insurance
100 201 100 2600 275 2105 10-26 Workers Compensation
100 201 100 2600 265 2106 10-26 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senices
100 201 100 2600 411 3107 10-26 Water / Sewer
100 201 100 2600 421 3108 10-26 Waste Disposal
100 201 100 2600 490 3109 10-26 Security / Alarm System
100 201 100 2600 431 3110 10-26 Repair and Maint. Building + HVAC
100 201 100 2600 432 3111 10-26 Repair and Maint. Equipment
100 201 100 2630 435 3112 10-26 Maint - Outside Grounds
100 201 100 2600 441 3113 10-26 Rental/Lease - Buildings
100 201 100 2600 521 3115 10-26 Property/Casualty Insurance
100 201 100 2600 422 3127 10-26 Purchased Svcs - Janitorial Company
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
600 Supplies
100 201 100 2600 610 4111 10-26 General Supplies/ Janitorial
100 201 100 2610 622 3105 10-26 Electricity
100 201 100 2610 621 3106 10-26 Natural Gas
Total - 600 Supplies
700 Property
100 201 100 4700 450 4112 10-26 Tenant Improvements

Total - 700 Property
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Quickbooks Quickbooks
. . . D inti
Fund Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object account Account Class escription
numbers

800 Other

100 201 100 2600 340 3132 10-26 Miscellaneous Expenses
Total - 800 Other
TOTAL FUNCTION 2600 - OPERATION/MAINTENANCE
FUNCTION 2900 - SUPPORT SERVICES - OTHER
100 Salaries

100 000 100 2900 107 1113 10-22 Coral CARE Personnel
Total - 100 Salaries
200 Benefits

100 000 100 2900 237 2101 10-22 Retirement

100 000 100 2900 227 2102 10-22 SS-OASDI

100 000 100 2900 247 2103 10-22 Medicare

100 000 100 2900 217 2104 10-22 Health Insurance

100 000 100 2900 277 2105 10-22 Workers Compensation

100 000 100 2900 267 2106 10-22 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senvices

100 000 100 2900 320 3127 10-22 Purchased Svcs - Student Support
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
600 Supplies

100 000 100 2900 616 3127 10-22 Coral CARE Expenses
Total - 600 Supplies
800 Other
Total - 800 Other
TOTAL FUNCTION 2900 - SUPPORT SERVICES - OTHER
FUND 250 - REVENUES - SPECIAL EDUCATION

250 201 3115 8120 20-10 State Funds
FUND 250 - TOTAL REVENUE
FUNCTION 2100 - SPECIAL EDUCATION
100 Salaries

250 201 200 2120 101 1104 20-10 Teacher 1

Total - 100 Salaries
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Quickbooks Quickbooks
. . . D inti
Fund Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object account Account Class escription
numbers
200 Benefits
250 201 200 2100 231 2101 20-10 Retirement
250 201 200 2100 221 2102 20-10 SS-OASDI
250 201 200 2100 221 2103 20-10 Medicare
250 201 200 2100 211 2104 20-10 Health Insurance
250 201 200 2100 271 2105 20-10 Workers Compensation
250 201 200 2100 261 2106 20-10 State Unemployment
Total - 200 Benefits
300/400/500 Purchased Senices
250 201 200 2140 322 3128 20-10 Psychological Services
250 201 200 2100 323 3127 20-10 Purchased Services - Other
250 201 200 2150 324 3129 20-10 Speech Therapy Services
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
TOTAL FUNCTION 2100 - SPECIAL EDUCATION
FUND 280 - REVENUES - FEDERAL GRANTS
280 639 4500 8130 41-10 Local Plan B Grant 2
FUND 280 - TOTAL REVENUE
300/400/500 Purchased Senices
280 100 1000 323 3127 41-10 Psychological Services
280 100 1000 323 3127 41-10 Purchased Services - Other
280 100 1000 322 3127 41-10 Speech Therapy Services
Total - 300/400/500 Purchased Senices
100 Salaries
240 200 1000 101 1104 41-10 Teachers
Total - 100 Salaries
TOTAL FUND 280 - FEDERAL GRANTS
FUND 600 - REVENUES
600 000 1970 8300 10-24 Business Services
FUND 900 - TOTAL REVENUE
FUND 900 - REVENUES
900 000 1921 8220 10-35 Fundraising
900 000 1730 8230 10-35 Student Program Fees
900 000 1790 8240 10-35 Other Activity Income
FUND 900 - TOTAL REVENUE
FUNCTION 2900 - STUDENT ACTIVITIES
300/400/500 Purchased Senices
900 000 000 2700 519 3117 10-35 Field Trip Transportation
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Quickbooks )
Eund  Project/Grant Revenue Program Function Object  account A?:;':TC"IZZS Description
numbers

600 Supplies

900 000 000 2900 901 3118b 10-35 Science Activities

900 000 000 2900 902 3118c 10-35 Robotic Activities

900 000 000 2900 903 3118d 10-35 Other Student Activities

900 000 000 2900 904 3119 10-35 Yearbook

900 000 000 2900 905 3118a 10-35 Math Activities

000

Total - 600 Supplies
800 Other

900 000 000 2900 810 3131 10-35 Dues and Fees

Total - 800 Other

TOTAL FUNCTION 2900 - STUDENT ACTIVITIES
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SOP # G&A102 Revision: 0 Prepared by: Business Office
Effective Date: May 13, 2014 Approved by: BOD

Title: G&A102 FILES AND RECORDS MANAGEMENT

Policy: The Organization will retain records in an orderly fashion for time periods

that comply with legal and governmental requirements and as needed for
general business requirements.

Purpose: To outline the methods for filing, retaining and disposing of business
records.
Scope: This procedure applies to all business documentation generated by the

Organization. However, this does not necessarily cover internal or certain
day-to-day business correspondence.
Responsibilities:

The Designated Accountant will be responsible for categorizing and
maintaining a listing of records maintained and the location (i.e. by wall
unit and shelf row number).

The Director of Finance is responsible for overseeing the execution of
Organization policy for Record Retention, Storage and Destruction of
obsolete Organization records.

Procedure:

1.0 FILING SYSTEM

1.1  To ensure efficient access, filing centers will be established in each department.
To reduce the amount of duplicate and unnecessary record retention, individual
desk files should be avoided unless they are used in daily operations. All other
departmental or Organization records should be filed in the departmental central
filing areas.

1.2 Unless necessary, records should usually only be kept by the originator or sender
and not by the receiver to avoid duplicate filing systems.

1.3 The following filing guidelines should be adhered to optimize filing efficiency
and records access:

e All file cabinets and files should follow recognized rules of order, such as Left
to Right, Top to Bottom, Front to Back and in the case of chronological
records, newest to oldest.

e File markers or label headings should always be placed at the beginning or
front of a file or group of files.

e Alphabetical files should always be filed under broad topical categories. Files
should never be filed under individual employee names (except Human
Resources records) to avoid confusion and re-filing in the event of turnover.
Files should always be filed under the "proper"” or Organization names
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whenever appropriate. In the case of individuals, files should be maintained
according to the persons "Last name" then First name and Middle initial.

e Extra care should be used for sensitive or private information. Organization
financial data or personnel records that contain performance reviews, salary
information, and any health related information should be kept in a secure
area with limited access to only those that have a “need to know” such as the
Designated Accountant or the Director of Finance.

2.0 RECORD RETENTION AND LONG-TERM STORAGE

2.1  Storage of archived records will be maintained in the locked storage area of the
building. Access to this area will be limited to the Director of Finance, officers of
the Organization and the Designated Accountant.

2.2 Non-permanent files will be stored in cardboard file boxes. Each file box will be
labeled on the front with the contents, dates covered, and destruction date if
applicable. Permanent records will be maintained in metal fire-resistant file
cabinets.

2.3 Files should be stored only in boxes with similar items, dates and retention
periods. This will allow easier access and purging of records. A general rule to
keep in mind is that it is better to only half-fill a file box than to file dissimilar
types of files in the same box.

2.4  The Designated Accountant will be responsible for categorizing and maintaining
a listing of records maintained and the location (i.e. by wall unit and shelf row
number).

2.5  Maintain all files for as long as is necessary but only to the extent they serve a
useful purpose or satisfy business or legal requirements. G&A102 Ex1
RECORDS RETENTION PERIODS, provides a guide to the typical business life
of various documents. The retention periods provided are suggested with federal
requirements in mind. Be sure to check with local and state authorities for
specific record retention requirements.

2.6 Copies of critical records that are vital to the daily operations of the Organization
should be kept off site in case of possible disasters. This may include information
needed to file insurance claims (assets lists, insurance contacts, policy numbers),
financial data for tax purposes (wages paid, income and expenses), contacts lists
to inform or restart the business (vendors, customers, investors and employees),
and other data that would assist in rebuilding the business (business plans,
intellectual property, or proprietary information).

3.0 RECORD DESTRUCTION

3.1  Three to six months after each year-end, the Designated Accountant will proceed
with destruction of all files that have exceeded their recognized holding period.
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3.2

3.3

A listing of file categories to be destroyed will be circulated to all managers thirty
days prior to destruction for review and comment. The actual listing of records
destroyed will be maintained permanently for future reference.

Destruction of the files will be performed by an independent, outside service for
shredding and disposal. Disposal of records into the Organization's general trash
service is not allowed.

References:

A.

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)

The Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (the
Privacy Rule) creates national standards to protect individuals' personal health
information and gives patients increased access to their medical records. As
required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(HIPAA), the Privacy Rule covers health plans, health care clearinghouses, and
those health care providers who conduct certain financial and administrative
transactions electronically. Most covered entities (certain health care providers,
health plans, and health care clearinghouses) must comply with the Privacy Rule
by April 14, 2003. Small health plans have until April 14, 2004 to comply with
the Rule.

Note: Employment records maintained by a covered entity in its capacity as an
employer are excluded from the definition of protected health information. The
modifications do not change the fact that individually identifiable health
information created, received, or maintained by a covered entity in its health care
capacity is protected health information.

AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT (ADEA)

ADEA applies to employers with 20 or more employees. If an EEOC charge or
lawsuit is filed, keep records until final disposition of the charge or lawsuit.
Otherwise, ADEA compliance suggests keeping basic employee files from one to
three years as listed:

e Payrolls or other records (for temporary and permanent positions) for three
years.

e Basic employee information such as employees’ names, addresses, birth dates,
occupations, rates of pay, and weekly compensation for three years.

e Applications and personnel records relating to promotion, demotion, transfer,
selection for training, layoff, recall or discharge for one year.

e Job advertisements and postings for three years.

e Copies of employee benefit plans, seniority and merit systems must keep on
file for the full period the plan or system is in effect and for at least one year
after its termination
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C.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)

ADA applies to employers with 15 or more employees. If an EEOC charge or
lawsuit is filed, keep records until final disposition of the charge or lawsuit.
Otherwise, ADA compliance suggests keeping employment applications and
other personnel records including promotions, transfers, demotions, layoffs, and
termination or requests for reasonable accommodation for at least 1 year from the
making of the record or the personnel action.

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964

Applies to employers with 15 or more employees. If an EEOC charge or lawsuit
is filed, keep records until final disposition of the charge or lawsuit. Otherwise,
basic non-discrimination compliance suggests keeping employment applications
and other personnel records including promotions, transfers, demotions, layoffs,
and termination or any EEO-1 Reports for at least one year from the making of
the record or the personnel action. If an employee is involuntarily terminated,
his/her personnel records must be retained for one year from the date of
termination.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT (ERISA)

The ERISA reporting and disclosure obligations apply to all pension and welfare
plans including summary plan descriptions, annual reports, reportable events, and
plan termination, unless the Organization plan is exempt under ERISA.

ERISA suggests the Organization should maintain all reports, documents,
information, and materials for a minimum of six years in order to disclose and or
support all transactions to participants and beneficiaries (and report to certain
governmental agencies), as requested or needed.

EMPLOYEE POLYGRAPH PROTECTION ACT

All polygraph test results and reasons for administering the test should be kept for
three years.

EQUAL PAY ACT

Payroll records including time cards, wage rates, deductions from wages, and
records explaining the difference in wage rates between men and women in
similar positions should be kept for three years.

EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246

Applies to federal contractors and requires the preparation of affirmative action
plans. Affirmative action plans must be updated annually and retained for two
years along with all applications and other personnel records that form the basis
of the Organization’s employment decisions. Generally, personnel and
employment records must be retained for two years.
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l. FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA)

FLSA applies to employers engaged in or employees who work in interstate
commerce and suggests the following records are retained for three years:

Payroll and other records containing employee’s name, birth date, gender, and
occupation.

Employee’s beginning of workweek and time employee begins work.
Regular rate of pay or other basis of payment.

Hours worked per day and for workweek.

Daily and weekly straight time earnings.

Deduction from wages.

Total wages per pay period.

Date of payment and the pay period covered.

For exempt professional, executive and administrative employees, and those
employed in outside sales, the employer must maintain records that reflect
basis on which wages are paid to permit calculations of the employee’s total
remuneration.

In addition, employers must keep for at least two years all records (including
wage rates, job evaluations, seniority and merit systems, and collective
bargaining agreements) that explain the basis for paying different wages to
employees of opposite sexes in the same establishment.

J. FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)

FMLA applies to employers with 50 or more employees within a 75 mile radius
and whose employee must have worked for at least one year and accumulated at
least 1,250 hours of service with the employer during the previous year. FNLA
suggests the following records are retained for 3 years

Basic employee data including name, address, occupation, rate of pay, terms
of compensation, daily and weekly hours worked per pay period, deductions
from wages, and total compensation.

Dates of leave taken by eligible employees.
For intermittent leave, the hours of leave.

A copy of employee notices and documents describing policies and practices
regarding leave.

Records of any dispute regarding the designation of leave.

K. IMMIGRATION REFORM & CONTROL ACT (IRCA)

IRCA applies to all employers and requires a signed Form 1-9 is retained for three
years after the date of hire and at least one year after termination.
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L. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH ACT (OSHA)

OSHA applies to employers with 10 or more employees and suggest that the log
of occupational injuries and illnesses is retained for five years. All other records
should be retained for at least 30 years after employee separation. Other records
include:

e Occupational injuries and illnesses.
e The annual summary of injuries and illnesses.

e Medical records and records of exposure to toxic substances.

M. REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973

Applies to federal contractors. If a charge or lawsuit is filed, keep records until
final disposition of the charge or lawsuit. Otherwise, basic compliance suggests
keeping personnel and employment records including requests for
accommodation, physical exams, job advertisements and postings, applications,
resumes and records regarding hiring, assignments, promotions, demotions,
transfers, layoffs, terminations, rates of pay and selection for training for two
years (only 1 year if contractor has less than 150 employees or a federal contract
of $150,000 or less). Note: Affirmative action plans also may have to be
maintained by the employer

N. RIGHT TO FINANCIAL PRIVACY ACT

The act establishes specific procedures and exceptions concerning the release of
customer financial records to the federal government. It provides customers of
financial institutions with a right to expect that their financial activities will have
a reasonable amount of privacy from federal government scrutiny.

O. GUIDE TO RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS

A good source of federal retention requirements is the "Guide to Record
Retention Requirements™ published by the Office of the Federal Register National
Archives and Records Administration. It can be purchased from the U.S.
Government Printing Office in Washington DC. Additional sources of
information include: IRS regulations, state and local government retention
requirements or the AICPA (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
Filing and Record Retention Procedures Guide.

P. IRS REVENUE PROCEDURE 98-25 RECORDS RETENTION

The Income Tax Regulations require that, except for farmers and wage-earners,
any person subject to income tax, or any person required to file an information
return with respect to income, must keep such books and records, including
inventories, as are sufficient to establish the amount of gross income, deductions,
credits, or other matters reported. The books or records required by must be kept
available at all times for inspection by authorized internal revenue officers or
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employees, and must be retained so long as the contents thereof may become
material in the administration of any internal revenue law.

Note: Section 6.01 requires taxpayers to maintain and make available
documentation of the business processes that (1) create the retained records, (2)
modify and maintain its records, (3) satisfy the requirements of section 5.01(2) of
the procedure and verify the correctness of the taxpayer's return, and (4) evidence
the authenticity and integrity of the taxpayer's records.

Section 6.02 sets forth four elements that the documentation required under
section 6.01 must establish: (1) the flow of data through the system, (2) internal
controls that ensure accurate processing, (3) internal controls that prevent
unauthorized record changes, and (4) charts of account.

Section 6.03 sets forth six specific types of documentation for each retained file:
(1) record formats, (2) field definitions, (3) file descriptions, (4) evidence that
periodic checks are undertaken to ensure that data remains accessible, (5)
evidence that the records reconcile to the taxpayer's books, and (6) evidence that
the records reconcile to the taxpayer's return.
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G&A102 Ex1 RECORDS RETENTION PERIODS

Accident reports and claims (Settled CaSes) ......c.cvvvrvereereiiieiiere e 7 years
Accounts payable ledgers, schedules and trial balances ............cccccccooevviiennne, 7 years
Accounts receivable ledgers, schedules and trial balances ............cccccooeienen. 7 years
ASSTONIMIENTS ...ttt bbbttt e bbbttt 3 years
Audit reports 0f aCCOUNTANTS ........ccveiieiieicie e Permanently
Bank reCONCIHlIAtioNS ........cocoviiiiiicc e 1 year
Bank statements, cancelled checks, and deposit SHPS .......ccccoovveeiiiiiiiinnenenne 7 years
BillS OF 1a0ING ..o 3 years
Capital stock and bond reCords .........cccceieiieereiieiie e Permanently
(08 ] 11 o0 Lo 2GS USSR Permanently
Cash receipts and diSDUISEMENTS .........coviiieiiriieie e 7 years
Chart Of ACCOUNTS ..o Permanently
Checks (cancelled, all OtNer) .......cceoiiiieiicece e 7 years
Checks (cancelled, for important payments, i.e. taxes, property purchases,

special contracts, etc. File checks with the transaction papers)............c........ Permanently
CoNSLruction AOCUMENTS ......c.viuieiiieierierieseeee e Permanently
Contracts and 18ases (EXPIFEA) ....ccveiveivereeiesieesie e nae s 7 years
Contracts and leases still in effect...........ccceeviiiiievicici e Expiration +7 years
Corporate records and MINUEES ........cccooueiieieeneniesee e Permanently
Correspondence (legal and important matters only) .........cccooeveieicniiennnnn Permanently
Correspondence gENETAl .........coveiueiie e 3 years
Credit Applications (CONSUMEN) ......cccccvevverreeiieieeie e 25 Months (after notification)
Credit Applications (BUSINESS) ......ccovvvirreeiieiie e 1 year (after notification)
Deeds, mortgages, and bills of sale ... Permanently
Depreciation SChEAUIES ........cecvi i Permanently
Duplicate depOSIt SHPS ....ccveiieiieiieiecieie e 1 year
Electronic fund transfer dOCUMENES ..........cccvoiiiiiiiniiiie e 7 years
Employee personnel records (after termination) ...........c.ccocvvvvvveienenenineneen, 7 years
Employment appliCations ...........cccevviieiieieeie e 3 years
Expense analyses and Expense distribution schedules............c.cccceeviiiiiernennenn, 7 years
Expired contracts and notes receivable ... 7 years
EXpired purchase CONEIACES .........coorveiiririiieieiee e 7 years
Federal, state and local taX returns .........cccccveveieerieie e Permanently
Financial statements (end-of-year trial balances) ..........ccccocevvivieviiiieinens Permanently
Fixed asset records and appraisals ..........ccceeieeiiiin e Permanently
FOIMS W=4 e 7 years
GarNISNMENTS ...oveei et neesneenne s 3 years
General Ledgers (end-of-year trial balances) .........ccccccoovvveviiieiceciecec, Permanently
1-9s (after termMiNALION).........ccoiiiiiiie e 1 year
Insurance records, current accident reports, claims, policies, etc................... Permanently
Interim and year-end financial statements and trial balances.............c........... Permanently
Inventories of products, materials, and SUPPHIES .......cccoeveiieiiievrcicceeee 7 years
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INVOICES .ottt ettt bbbt 7 years
[0 0 USSR Permanently
LLICBNSES ...vvieie ettt ettt et et e b e et et e aa e nae et e e e re et Permanently
L0an dOCUMENLES, NOTES.......eeiuiiriiiiieiiieiesieesieeie sttt sne e Permanently
Minute books of directors and stockholders, including bylaws and charter... Permanently
Monthly trial DAlanNCeS .........cooiiiriiee e Permanently
Notes receivable ledgers and SChedules ...........ccccoeeiiieiiiii i 7 years
OSHA LGS -ttt ettt ettt b et sbe b e e nae s 5 years
Paid Dills and VOUCKNEIS ........oooiiiiiiiiieee e 7 years
PaYTOHl JOUINAIS ..ot nne s 7 years
Payroll records and SUMMATIES ........c.coiveieiieieeiie e se e 7 years
Payroll reports (federal & State) .........cccvveerieiiiii e 7 years
Perpetual INVENTOIY FECOTTS .....cc.oiviiiiiiiiiiieiee e 7 years
Petty CaSh VOUCKELS ......c.oeiiiiiecc e 7 years
Physical INVENLOIY FECOTUS .......eoiieieiieiiecie e 7 years
PhysSical INVENTOIY tAGS ....oveeveiiiiieiiieie ettt 7 years
PIant COSE IEAGEIS ..o s Permanently
Polygraph test results and reasons for test...........cccccevveieiieie e 3 years
Property appraisals by outSide appraiSers .........cccoovevereereeresieeseese e Permanently
Property records including costs, depreciation schedules, blueprints, plans.. Permanently
Property titles and MOrtgages ........c.ccooeeieienene s Permanently
PUIChASE JOUMNAIS .....cvvieiiiieiece ettt nne s 7 years
PUICNASE OFAEIS ...t et re e re e 7 years
RECEIVING SNEELS ... et 1 year
REQUISTEIONS ..ttt 7 years
SAIES JOUMNAIS ... nne s 7 years
SAIES TECONAS ...ttt sre e s be et e e e e s reenteaneesneeneeas 7 years
Savings bond registration records of employees .........cccocvvieeiiiiininninie s 7 years
Scrap and salvage records (inventories, Sales, eC) ........ccvverivereriniiieresieseeeens 7 years
SHIPPING LICKELS .. nres 3 years
Stock and bond certificate (cancelled) ...........cccoovveiiiiiiici 1lyr
Stockroom withdrawal FOrMS .........coouiiiiiii s 7 years
SUDSIAIANY TEAGETS ... 7 years
Tax returns and worksheets, revenue agents’ reports and other documents... Permanently
TIME DOOKS/CAIAS ....vveveeieeie ettt 7 years
Trade Mark regiStratioNs .........c.ovveieiieiieieee e Permanently
Uncollectible accounts and wWrite OffS ..........cooviiiiiiiiiiie e, 7 years
Voucher for payments to vendors, employees, etc.

(includes all allowances and reimbursement of employees, officers) ................. 7 years
Voucher register and SChEAUIES ..........coeeiiiiiiii s 7 years
W-2 FOMIMS L.ttt 4 years
Workman’s cOmpP OCUMENTS ........cueveereeieieesie e see e ste et 11 years
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SOP # G&A103 Revision: 0 Prepared by: Business Office
Effective Date: May 13, 2014 Approved by: BOD

Title:

Policy:

Purpose:

Scope:

G&A103 TRAVEL AND ENTERTAINMENT

All reservations required for business travel and entertainment will be made
through the Purchasing/Payroll Manager or designated staff. Expenses are to be
within established Organization guidelines and will be reimbursed with proper
documentation. Employees are expected to spend the Organization’s money as
carefully and judiciously as they would their own.

The Organization recognizes that employees who travel far from home to
represent the Organization's business interests must forego their living
accommodations and may forfeit personal time. Accordingly, the Organization
will make efforts to provide comfortable and secure accommodations for lodging,
meals and travel for employees. However, these items are not intended to be
perquisites and the Organization reserves the right to deny reimbursement of
expenses that are considered lavish or extravagant.

To provide guidelines for travel and entertainment expenses as they were actually
spent, account for all advances promptly and accurately and to communicate the
procedures for reimbursement.

This procedure applies to all departments and individuals who travel or entertain
for the Organization.

Responsibilities:

Procedure:

Responsible Party: The individual employee and/or the Purchasing/Payroll
Manager

e When the Purchasing/Payroll Manager does not make travel arrangements,
each employee is responsible for making arrangements needed for
business travel.

e The Purchasing/Payroll Manager may make travel arrangements when
requested, provided that arrangements are made at least 15 days in
advance.

Business Office will receive and review the expense report documentation and
process necessary employee reimbursement. (See PUR106, Reimbursements, for
more detailed information.)

1.0 TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS
1.1  Out-of-state travel requires prior Site Director or Executive Director approval.

1.2 All arrangements required for business travel are to be made individually through
CoolSIS. When possible, the Purchasing/Payroll Manager can solicit better corporate
discounts and rates for hotels, airlines, car rental agencies and travel agencies.
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1.2

1.3

14

1.5

2.0
2.1

2.2

Employees benefit because they do not have to spend their own time comparing rates and
making their own arrangements. If making your own arrangements, the employee must
find the best possible travel pricing.

For maximum savings on airfares, this form should always be completed at least 15 days
in advance unless an emergency trip is required.

It is preferable that all employees travel during non-working hours to maximize
efficiency. The Purchasing/Payroll Manager will make arrangements for the trip as
required and will return a travel itinerary and any tickets or reservation forms to the
employee.

Cash Advances - To help ensure accurate and timely expense report preparation and
reduce the additional paperwork required to process and track Cash Advances, the
Organization generally discourages cash advances unless special circumstances apply.
Employees are encouraged to use credit cards with a grace period to provide float time
between incurring the expense and receiving reimbursement from the Organization.

If an employee requires a cash advance, a formal request must be made through CoolSIS
as a check request. The advance request will then be forwarded to accounting for
processing upon approval. Travel advance amounts are approved on an as needed basis.

When a cash advance is received, the employee will reduce their expense reimbursement
by the amount of the cash advance. In the case where the cash advance exceeds the
expenses for the report submitted, the remaining cash must be turned into the Business
Office with the expense report. Amounts owed the Organization cannot be carried
forward to future expense reports. Any advance outstanding will be deducted from the
employee's paycheck.

Direct Billings - Direct billings to the Organization from motels, restaurants, etc. are not
permitted unless previously authorized.

EXPENSE GUIDELINES

Air Travel - Airline reservations are based on the following criteria:

e Expediency: Getting the employee to their destination in an expedient way. (Direct
flights when possible or connecting flights if necessary for faster flight schedules).

e Cost: Employees will fly coach class unless extenuating circumstances apply.

e Air Carrier: An employee's preferred airline can be utilized as long as expediency
and cost factors are equal. In most cases, airfare will be directly billed to the
Organization's credit card account.

On occasion, employees may have no alternative but to book their own flight. If this
is the case, employees must use regularly scheduled airlines and obtain the lowest
(discount) fare available. This may mean that employees will fly at times that are not
always the most convenient for them.

Lodging - Lodging arrangements are based on value, convenience for the traveler and
according to what is usual and customary Organization guide lines.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6
2.7

Whenever multiple employees are traveling to the same location, employees will be
required to share accommaodations if possible (i.e. male/male or female/female). Lodging
accommodations will then be made for double rooms acc